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Our Structure
DCC operates across four 
separate divisions, DCC Energy, 
DCC Technology, DCC Healthcare 
and DCC Environmental.

Our Strategy 
DCC’s objective is to build  
a growing, sustainable and cash 
generative business which 
consistently provides returns on 
capital employed significantly 
ahead of its cost of capital.

section on pages 18 to 25.

DCC is an international sales, 
marketing, distribution and 
business support services 
group with revenues of  
£10.6 billion.
The Group is headquartered in Dublin, Ireland and employs 
over 10,200 people in 14 countries.

Technology
Expanding  
our geographic  
reach in Europe

Energy
Targeting Oil to  
LPG conversions

Energy 
Expanding in the  
retail service  
station market

Healthcare
Improving  
manufacturing  
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Dear Shareholder

Results and Financial Position 

2015 marks 21 years since DCC became  
a publicly listed company and to note that 
the year to 31 March 2015 continued the 
track record of growth and development 
for the business.  

Operating results were strong, with 
 

by 10.5% on a continuing basis. Adjusted 
earnings per share were up by 9.8% on  
a continuing basis.

Return on capital employed was 18.9%,  

end was £30.0 million, with total equity  
of £987.0 million. 

Taking account of committed acquisition 
expenditure of £554 million, as outlined 
further below, and the need to be able  
to take advantage of development 
opportunities as they arise, the Board  
has today agreed a share placing of up  

5% of share capital, in order to maintain  
a strong and liquid balance sheet. 

Dividend 

dividend of 55.81 pence per share.  
This brings the total dividend per share 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 to 
84.54 pence per share, up 10% on  
the previous year. We have now had  
21 years of uninterrupted dividend 

listed company. 

A year of strong 
results and 
development

We have now had 21 years of uninterrupted 
dividend growth since DCC first became  
a publicly listed company. 

Dividend (pence) – years ended 31 March

2015201420132012201120102009200820072006200520042003200220012000199919981997199619951994
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63.2

59.8
51.5

39.8
33.5

29.2
25.422.5

18.015.112.911.310.08.68.17.16.14.8
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Strategy 
DCC’s core development strategy is to 
build an international sales, marketing, 
distribution and support services 
business of scale that is sustainable and 
cash generative and which provides our 
shareholders with returns on capital 
employed substantially ahead of our  
cost of capital. 

In pursuit of this strategy, there was a 
record level of committed development 
expenditure during the year and since the 
year end of £554 million.

The agreement in principle reached today 

would be the largest ever acquisition  
by DCC and a major step forward in the 
expansion of our LPG business.

The acquisition of Esso Retail France,  
a French network of unmanned retail 
petrol stations and the Esso Motorway 

step in furthering our strategy to enter 
the unmanned petrol station market and 
more broadly to continue to expand 

both in the UK and more widely.

In Technology, the acquisitions of 

Unlimited, operating primarily in the  
UK but with operations in France and 

 
and product footprint.

In Healthcare, the acquisition of Williams 
Medical Holdings means that DCC Vital 
now has the most comprehensive sales 
and distribution network in the British 
and Irish healthcare markets. Leveraging 
this expanded market coverage is expected 

to provide near term synergy 
opportunities, as well as strengthening 
the platform for further growth.

We continue to pursue development and 
consolidation opportunities in each of our 
core businesses.

Board 
There were a number of changes to the 
Board during the year. 

I would like to take the opportunity to  
pay tribute to my predecessor Michael 
Buckley, who was Chairman for the past  

 

contribution to DCC and to wish him  
all the best in the future. 

executive Director since 2008, passed 
away suddenly in June last year. I would  
like to acknowledge the corporate  
and entrepreneurial expertise as well  
as the insight and enthusiasm which  
he brought to DCC. 

I would like to welcome David Jukes who 
joined the Board in March this year and 
brings considerable international, 
commercial experience in the business to 
business trading and chemicals 
distribution sectors to the Board. 

Investor Communications
We have continued our active approach 
to investor communications, which 
involves direct contact with shareholders 

providers. Further details on this 
programme is set out in the Governance 
Report on page 76.

Our People
On behalf of the Board, I would like  
to thank all 10,220 employees of DCC,  
led by Tommy Breen and his executive 
team, for their continuing commitment 
and contribution.

Outlook
We are well placed for continued growth 
and achievement of our strategic objectives.

I would like to thank you, our shareholders, 
for your continued support.

Chairman
18 May 2015 
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Very strong 
performance 
against strategy

Performance against Strategy
DCC’s primary strategic objective is 
simple and has been consistent for  
a very long time – “to continue building a 
growing, sustainable and cash generative 
business which consistently provides 
returns on total capital employed 

We have also measured pretty much 
everything we do against this objective 
and believe that if we stay loyal to our 
values and continue to deliver in line with 
our primary strategic objective, we will 

for shareholders over the long term. 

I am pleased to say that performance 
against strategy was very strong in the 
year to 31 March 2015. 

 –
four divisions resulting in Group 

activities of £222 million, 10.5% ahead 
of the prior year (11.9% ahead on  
a constant currency basis).

 –
conversion of 138% resulted in record 

cash at 31 March 2015, before 
committed acquisition expenditure 
referred to below, of £30 million. 

 – Return on capital employed increased 
in each of DCC’s four divisions, 
resulting in an 18.9% return on total 
capital employed in the Group.

 –
dividend which would result in an 
increase of 10% in the total dividend 
for the year, the 21st consecutive year 
of dividend growth.

 –
Food & Beverage subsidiaries, helping 
to bring increased strategic focus to 
the Group. 

 –
months to 31 March 2015 was 26.3% 

 – Record development activity resulting 
in expenditure committed during  
the year and since year end of  
£554 million.
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20152005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
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171.2

142.0

173.1
157.9

139.7
115.9

97.5
84.578.4

%30

The Businesses

(10.3% in a constant currency basis) and 

the impact of the mild winter weather 
conditions relative to the 10 year average. 
Excellent progress was achieved in DCC 
Energy’s strategy to expand both its retail 
and LPG businesses having announced 
during the year that it had reached 
agreement to acquire the Esso Retail 
business in France and today has reached 
agreement in principle to acquire the 

Together these two acquisitions will 

breadth of our Energy business.

Growth in DCC Technology was more 
modest at 2.6% (3.7% on a constant 
currency basis) with growth across the 
continental European and supply chain 
services businesses and also into the UK 
and Ireland reseller customer base being 

market for tablets and mobile phones in 
the UK. Return on capital employed was 
very strong at 25.5% and good progress 
was made in the further development of 
the business through the acquisitions of 
CapTech and Computers Unlimited, which 
was completed since year end. In line  
with strategy, CapTech broadens the 
geographic reach of the business while 
Computers Unlimited expands the 
product range in the UK. 

particularly strong at 30.6% (40.4% 
excluding Virtus Inc.) and the business 
has enhanced its market position and 

activity. The acquisition of Williams 

market leadership in the supply of 
medical devices, pharmaceuticals and 
related services to GP surgeries in Britain. 
Beacon Pharmaceuticals, acquired in the 
second half, has given further strength to 
our generic pharma business, particularly 
in the area of hospital injectable 
pharmaceuticals. DCC Health & Beauty 

integration and full year contribution  
of UPL, acquired in January 2014. 

13.2% and drove some improvement in 
its return on capital employed, despite the 
impact in the year of sustained weakness 
in commodity prices. Volumes in the 
British business grew by 18% and the 

increased. In Ireland, the business grew 

People
DCC’s greatest strength is the quality  
and commitment of the people who  
work throughout the Group. I would like 
to thank all of them publicly for all of their 

committed to providing opportunity  
for development and progression  
where possible and, to that end, have 
commenced a process to enhance our 
talent development programme.

Outlook
DCC remains ambitious to continue the 
growth and development of its business. 

generation last year along with the recent 
acquisition activity augur well for the future. 

The outlook for the year to 31 March 2016 
is based on the important assumptions 
that:
 – The acquisitions of Esso Retail France 

and Butagaz will complete by the end 

quarter of 2015 respectively; and
 – There will be normal winter weather 

conditions.

At this very early stage, the Group 

adjusted earnings per share will be very 

The Group strategy has always included 
maintaining a strong and liquid balance 
sheet to leave it well placed to take 
advantage of opportunities as they arise. 
To that end, the Board has today agreed  

representing up to 5% of the existing 
issued share capital of the Group 

raised from this placing will ensure the 

further development while preserving 
balance sheet strength.

Chief Executive
18 May 2015

Adjusted earnings per share (pence) – years ended 31 March
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Our objective is to build a growing, sustainable  
and cash generative business which consistently 
provides returns on capital employed significantly 
ahead of its cost of capital. 

We will achieve this by focusing on five strategic 
priorities as illustrated.

 

• the creation of shareholder value through  
growth in share price and dividends;

• enhanced levels of customer service;
• strengthening of the relationship with our suppliers;
• increased employment and development 

opportunities for all our employees; and
• positively impacting on the wider communities  

in which we operate.

 
growth

Strategic Priority

Market leading  
positions

Operational  
efficiency 

Extend our  
geographic  
footprint

Financial  
discipline

Development  
of entrepreneurial  
teams
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What this Means Progress in 2015 Priorities for 2016

DCC aims to be the number 1 or 2 
operator in each of its chosen markets. 
This is achieved through a consistent 
focus on increasing market shares 
organically and via value enhancing 
acquisitions. We have a long and 
successful track record of acquisitions 
which have strengthened our market 
positions and generated attractive 
returns on capital invested.

The Group maintained or increased market share  
in the primary markets in which it operates. This was 
achieved through good organic growth, contributions 
from acquisitions in the current year, the most 

CapTech (DCC Technology) and Williams Medical  
and Beacon (DCC Healthcare), and the successful 
integration of acquisitions completed in prior years.
Read more: Strategy in action on p20

The Group will continue to pursue growth 
organically and through value enhancing 
acquisitions. The acquisitions of Butagaz 

expected to complete in June 2015 and  

respectively and are market leading 
businesses with returns on capital 
employed well above the Group’s cost  
of capital.

business in each of the sectors in which 
it operates. We continuously benchmark 

KPIs which we judge are important 
indicators in our drive for superior 
returns on capital in the short, medium 
and longer term.

During the year the Group successfully completed 
the integration of acquisitions made in prior years, 

 
of the Vitamex business in DCC Healthcare. 
Read more: Strategy in action on p25

DCC Technology is planning to further 
integrate its operations and service 

logistics and IT infrastructure.
Read more: Case study on p37

In recent years we have been expanding 
certain of the Group’s businesses into 
Continental European markets which  
we believe provide good opportunity  
for future growth. We will look to further 
develop our businesses in these markets 
and to enter new geographic markets  
on a selective basis in the coming years.

Following a year of modest acquisition expenditure  
in FY14, the current year saw an increase in activity. 

into the transport fuels market in Europe through  

independent technology distribution business. 
Read more: Strategy in action on pages 19 and 23

The Group will be completing its second 
major acquisition in the European 
unmanned petrol station market through 

addition, DCC Energy will enter the LPG 
market in France through the acquisition 
of Butagaz, a market leader in France. The 
Group remains disciplined in its approach 
to acquisition spend and the development 
strategy remains unchanged.

In pursuing our strategic objectives,  
we will only do so in the context of 
maintaining relatively low levels of 

that this not only provides the greatest 
likelihood of generating value for 
shareholders in the long term but also 
leaves the Group best placed to react 
quickly to commercial opportunities  
as they arise.

well funded and highly liquid. The Group moved  
to a modest net cash position of £30 million at 
31 March 2015. 

Undertaking acquisitions to complement 
organic growth is core to DCC’s development 
strategy. Taking account of the committed 
development expenditure of £465 million, 
which it is anticipated will be paid in 2016, 
DCC’s balance sheet strength will be 
further enhanced by the issue of up to  
5% of the existing share capital of the 
Group by way of a share placing. The 
funds raised from this placing will provide 

further development.

Our people are the essential 
ingredient in our continued success  
and we are focused on the attraction, 
motivation and empowerment of  
the best leadership teams across  
the Group. Given the diverse market 
sectors in which we operate, we 
believe that providing appropriate 
short and long term incentives  
to these leaders, based on the 
performance of the businesses  
which they manage, is the best way  
to drive sustained performance  
and good returns for shareholders. 
Our devolved management structure 
demands leaders of the highest 
calibre, skill and experience. 

The Group was successful in retaining the key 
management teams in businesses acquired during 
the year. These teams strengthen our talent pool 
and bring additional industry experience and 
capability to the Group. 

In addition, the Group continues to invest in its 
talent programme and processes which will be 
important to support the continued development 
and retention of high performing employees at 
Group, divisional and subsidiary levels. 

We are engaged with external advisors 
in developing a more structured Group 
talent programme which will provide  
us with a framework to select, assess 
and develop talent across DCC.  
We are keeping our short and long 
term incentive programmes under 
review to ensure their continued 

performance across the Group.
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Our business model is highly cash generative and offers 
significant growth potential with high levels of profitability  
and shareholder returns on capital employed significantly  
ahead of our cost of capital.

How we create  
and share value

Our businesses
The common attributes of the businesses  
we own and operate

Market leadership  
positions

management teams

Financial discipline

Cash generative

 
– Continuous focus on safety culture

Integrity 
– Ethics, honesty and responsibility

Partnerships 
– Creating sustainable partnerships

Excellence 
– In everything we do

Foundations
What’s important to us
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Creating value
How we win

Focus on cash  
generation and ROCE 

Consistent strategic direction

Ability to identify, execute  
and integrate acquisitions

Talent development  
and retention

Disciplined capital allocation

Best practice in governance 
and compliance

Robust risk management

 
customer relationships

Devolved management 
structure

Sharing value
How value is shared with stakeholders

 
value creation: 

 
– Dividends

Reinvestment  
and acquisitions

Enhanced customer service 
and supplier relationships

Taxes
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The Board of DCC is responsible for setting the 
Group’s risk appetite and ensuring that appropriate 
risk management and internal control systems, 
designed to identify, manage and mitigate potential 
material risks to the achievement of the Group’s 
strategic and business objectives, are in place.

Effective  
management  
of risk 

Risk Management
The Board has approved a Risk Appetite 

the Group is prepared to accept in key 

the internal controls that are maintained 
in those areas.

The Board has also approved a Risk 
Management Policy which sets out 
delegated responsibilities and procedures 
for the management of risk across the Group.

Management Policy are reviewed at least 
annually to ensure that they remain current.

management of risk requires the 
involvement of people at every level of the 
organisation and seeks to encourage this 
through a culture of open communication 
in addition to the operation of formal risk 
management processes.

The risk management framework in  
place in the Group and the roles and 
responsibilities of the key elements  
of the framework are set out below.

Risk Management Framework
The risk management framework has 
been designed using a ‘three lines of 

subsidiary and divisional management, 

designing, implementing and maintaining 

individual subsidiaries and divisions. The 
second line comprises Group oversight 
functions who provide expertise in  

risks, in particular health, safety and 

The third line of defence principally 
comprises Group Internal Audit and also 
includes the external auditors and 
specialist third party auditors/regulators. 

The detailed roles and responsibilities 
assigned under the risk management 
framework are summarised below:

The Board is responsible for determining the 

Risk Management Policy. The Board is also 
required to report on the annual review of 

management and internal control systems.

The Board reviews a summary risk report at 
each meeting, which focuses on the Group 
Risk Register (as detailed on page 11), on 

in risk management practice.

In addition, recognising that Health, 

Risk Management Framework

Governance, Risk
and Compliance Report

Audit Committee

DCC plc Board

Executive Risk  
Committee

Group Risk Register Group Internal
Audit Report

Second line of defence
(Group oversight

functions)

First line of defence
(Subsidiary and

divisional management)

Third line of defence
(Group Internal Audit and

other independent
assurance providers)



11

Financial Statem
ents

Supplem
entary Inform

ation
G

overnance
Strategic Report 

particularly in the Energy and 
Environmental divisions, the Board takes 
particular responsibility for this area 
through direct quarterly reporting to it by 

The Audit Committee is responsible for 
assisting the Board by taking delegated 

assessment and for reviewing the Group’s 
risk management and internal control 
systems and making recommendations  
to the Board thereon.

regular reports from Group Internal  
Audit and from second line providers, in 
particular the Executive Risk Committee 
and Group Compliance.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee 
reports to the Board at each Board 
meeting on its activities, both in regard to 
audit matters and risk management.

The Audit Committee also reports to the 
Board on the detailed work done by 
management in respect of the annual 
assessment of the operation of the 
Group’s system of risk management and 
internal control.

The activities of the Audit Committee are set 
out in detail in its report on pages 77 to 81.

The Executive Risk Committee is chaired 
by the Chief Executive and comprises 
senior divisional and Group management. 
Its responsibilities are to analyse on a 
continuous basis the principal risks facing 
the Group, the controls in place to 
manage those risks and the related 
monitoring procedures and to consider 
any changes in business strategy which 
impact on the Group’s risk environment 
and material risks and controls.

The Executive Risk Committee maintains 
the Group Risk Register and the Integrated 
Assurance Report (as detailed below)  
and reports on changes to these to the 
Audit Committee. 

The Executive Risk Committee also 
evaluates all reports prepared by Group 

Compliance and ensures prompt action  
is taken to address control weaknesses 
highlighted by these reports, prior to 
these reports being considered by the 
Audit Committee or the Board as appropriate.

Compliance and Group Finance, which 

provides independent assurance on the 

controls that are in place in the Group’s 

facilitates the exchange of best practice 

registers and developing appropriate  
 

the Board receives direct reports on the 

The Group Compliance function is 
responsible for ensuring that each Group 

compliance risks, in particular legal and 

controls in respect of these risks. Controls 
in this context will include policies, 
procedures and training. These controls  
are supported by a clear ‘tone from the top’ 
from both the business and the Group. 

Each Group subsidiary has a compliance 

responsibility for this area within their  
own business. 

The Group Compliance function carries  
out regular compliance audits in Group 
subsidiaries to ensure that controls are 

Group Internal Audit, which incorporates 
a dedicated IT audit and data analytics 
function, is responsible for reviewing the 
risk management and internal control 
processes and identifying areas for 
improvement and providing independent 
and objective assurance on risk matters 
to senior management and the Audit 
Committee. Group Internal Audit 

audit programme, which is approved by 
the Audit Committee.

Risk Register Process
The Group’s risk register process is based 
on a consistent, Group wide approach to 

and the manner in which they are 
managed and monitored. 

with the most relevant risks covering 

compliance areas, has been developed. 
These risk registers are completed at all 
levels of the Group, with the impact and 
probability of occurrence for each risk 
determined and scored at both a gross 
(before mitigation) and net (after 
mitigation) basis. A risk scoring matrix  
is used to ensure a consistent approach  
is taken when completing the probability 

and impact assessments. New or emerging 
risks are added to the risk register as they 

reviewed and updated at least annually.

Each subsidiary is required to maintain a 
risk register, which is reviewed and updated 
for submission to divisional management 
twice a year, following formal review and 
approval by the subsidiary board. Control 

as part of the risk register process are 
formally monitored through an online 
Group audit management system.

update the divisional risk registers, which 
are approved by the divisional boards and 
submitted to the Executive Risk 
Committee twice a year.

The Group Risk Register is maintained  
by the Executive Risk Committee and is 

noted in the reviews of divisional risk 
registers. The ‘bottom up’ risk register 
process is complemented by the 
presentation by subsidiary and divisional 
management of their view of their top 

and fraud related. This provides ‘top 
 

risk registers.

The Group Risk Register is then reviewed 
and formally approved by the Audit 
Committee and the Board.

An Integrated Assurance Report (‘IAR’)  
is maintained to identify the assurance 
activities planned for the forthcoming 
year, across the three lines of defence, 
which are intended to address the key 

register process. The IAR is updated  
and discussed by the Executive Risk 
Committee before being formally presented 
to the Audit Committee and Board.

Reporting
Formal risk reporting timetables and 
structures are in place across the Group 
and in particular from the Executive Risk 
Committee and the second line of defence 
functions to the Audit Committee and 
Board, by way of the Governance, Risk and 

report respectively, and from Group 
Internal Audit to the Audit Committee.

This facilitates full, comprehensive 
reporting by the Audit Committee to  
the Board.
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Continued

Key:
Movement  
in Risk

Key:
Impact on  
Strategic Priorities

Market leading  
positions

Operational  Extend our  
geographic  
footprint

Financial  
discipline

Development  
of entrepreneurial  
teams

Increased risk
No change
Decreased risk

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The principal risks and uncertainties which have the potential, in the short to medium term,  
to have a significant impact upon the Group’s strategic objectives are set out below, together 
with the principal mitigation measures and an indication of the particular strategic priorities  
to which the risks relate. 
These represent the Board’s view of the principal risks at this point in time. However, this is not 
an exhaustive statement of all relevant risks and uncertainties. Matters which are not currently 
known to the Board or events which the Board considers to be of low likelihood could emerge 
and give rise to material consequences. 
The mitigation measures that are maintained in relation to these risks are designed to provide 
a reasonable and not an absolute level of protection against the impact of the events in question. 

Risk Impact Principal Mitigation Measures Movement

Health,  
safety and 
environmental

The principal health & safety and 
environmental risks faced by the Group 
relate to:
 –

resulting in one or more fatalities;
 –

environmental damage or compliance 
breach;

 –
activation of our crisis management plan 
and/or business continuity plans; and

 – poor product quality control requiring 
activation of our product recall 
procedures.

 
Group’s reputation.

All Group subsidiaries operate health, safety 

systems appropriate to the nature and scale 
of their risks. Within the Energy division in 
particular there is a strong focus on process 
safety and ongoing communication with the 
relevant safety authorities.
All manufacturing and product processing 
facilities operate quality management 
systems, which are subject to regulatory 

assurance processes are in place to ensure 

accordance with regulatory requirements 

independent resources are engaged  
where additional assurance is required.
Emergency response and business 
continuity plans are also in place to minimise 

take place.
Inspection and auditing processes are  

systems. These checks are conducted by  
the subsidiaries in question, by the Group 

providers, as appropriate. 
Insurance cover is maintained at Group level 
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties Continued

Risk Impact Principal Mitigation Measures Movement

Legislation  
and regulation

DCC’s operations across four divisions  
in fourteen countries must comply with  
a broad range of legal and regulatory 
requirements which are subject to changes 
as well as increasing levels of enforcement. 
Failure to comply clearly with applicable legal 
or regulatory obligations could result in 
enforcement action, legal liabilities, costs 
and damage to the Group’s reputation.

All Group subsidiaries have recorded their 
key legal and regulatory obligations and the 
controls they have in place to ensure those 
obligations are met. Primary responsibility 
for compliance rests with subsidiary 
management, who are supported by the 
Group Compliance function, which provides 
detailed support on legal and regulatory 
issues and conducts compliance audits 
across the Group.

Acquisitions/ 
Change 
management

A failure to identify, execute or properly 
integrate acquisitions, change management 
programmes or other growth opportunities 

the strategic development of the Group.

Group and divisional management teams 
engage in a continuous and active review  
of potential acquisitions. All potential 
acquisitions are subject to an assessment  
of their ability to generate a return on capital 
employed well in excess of the cost of capital 

The Group conducts a stringent internal 
evaluation process and external due 
diligence prior to completing any acquisition. 
Group and subsidiary management have 

integrating acquisitions. Performance 
against original acquisition proposals is 
formally reported to the Board on an annual 
basis and account is taken of learnings.
Projects and change management 
programmes are resourced by dedicated 

personnel, supported by external expertise.

Key supplier  
& customer 
relationships

Certain Group subsidiaries derive a 

suppliers and customers and the loss of any 
of those relationships would have a material 

The Group as a whole trades with a very 
broad supplier and customer base. Close 
commercial relationships exist with all our 
suppliers and customers and there is a 
constant focus on providing a value added 
service to them.
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Continued

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Continued

Risk Impact Principal Mitigation Measures Movement

Cyber and 
information 
security

Maintaining adequate IT systems and 
infrastructure to support growth and 

 – accidental exposure or deliberate theft  
of sensitive information;

 – loss of service or system availability;
 –

and
 – cybercrime.

Dedicated IT personnel with the appropriate 
technical expertise are in place in Group 
subsidiaries to oversee IT security. 
IT standards and policies have been subject 
to a comprehensive review and update 
project over the last three years to ensure 
they are in line with appropriate best 
practices. Cybersecurity reviews are 
performed by a dedicated internal IT audit 
team and external technical experts to 
provide independent assurance.
Business continuity, IT disaster recovery  
and crisis management plans are in place 
and tested.

Talent 
management

The Group’s devolved management 
structure has been fundamental to the 
Group’s success. A failure to attract, retain 
or develop high quality entrepreneurial 
management throughout the Group  
could impact on the attainment of  
strategic objectives.

The Group maintains a constant focus  
on this area with structured succession 
planning, management development and 
remuneration programmes, incorporating 
long and short term incentives, in place.  
A graduate recruitment programme has  
also been established.
These programmes are reviewed regularly 
by Group Human Resources, divisional 
management, the Chief Executive and  
the Board. 

Crime The Group is potentially subject to  
a variety of criminal threats including  
fraud, particularly in relation to payments, 
and theft of product.

The security of the Group’s IT and banking 
systems are subject to both external and 
internal review and are updated and 
improved as needed. Other internal controls 
against fraud are maintained in every 
subsidiary and are monitored at Group level. 

physical crime such as theft and vandalism.

in relation to risks in this area.

Financial  
and reporting

The Group is exposed to liquidity, foreign 
exchange and interest rate risk, as well as 
ongoing demands for credit. 

 
and relatively long term debt maturities. 
There is a continued focus on working 
capital management, cash generation  
and managing supplier and customer 

management is governed by policies  
and guidelines which are reviewed and 
approved annually by the Board.

Key:
Movement  
in Risk

Key:
Impact on  
Strategic Priorities

Market leading  
positions

Operational  Extend our  
geographic  
footprint

Financial  
discipline

Development  
of entrepreneurial  
teams

Increased risk
No change
Decreased risk
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties Continued

Risk Impact Principal Mitigation Measures Movement

External Factors 
(including 
weather)

External factors outside of the direct 

cycles, technological changes and weather, 

Demand for some of the products sold by 
the Group, most notably heating products  
in the Energy division, is directly related  
to weather conditions. The inherent 
uncertainty of weather conditions therefore 

 
that division.

The impact of external factors is mitigated 

management, a broad spread of products 
and customers across the divisions and 
careful geographical expansion. 
The Energy division continues to expand  

of the market, primarily in transport fuels 
(with a particular emphasis on retail petrol 
stations), in marine and in aviation.

Pricing The Group is exposed to commodity cost 
price risk in its Energy division, in both  
its oil distribution and LPG distribution 
businesses. The ability to maintain margins 
by recovering these costs on a timely basis 
may be adversely impacted by external 
factors including changes to consumer 
spending, competition and regulations.

Commodity cost price movements are 
 

and within a short period in LPG sales 
prices. Approved matching forward 
contracts and hedges are used where  
price movement exposures exist.
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KPI Strategic Linkage

Return on capital  
employed (‘ROCE’)

 
before amortisation and exceptional items 
expressed as a percentage of the average 
capital employed. Capital employed 
represents total equity adjusted for net cash/
debt, goodwill and intangibles previously 

equity accounted investments.

ROCE is the key financial benchmark  
we use when evaluating both the 
performance of existing businesses and 
potential investments. The Group strives  
to consistently provide returns well in  
excess of its cost of capital. ROCE is a key 
component of DCC’s executive bonus  
plans and Long Term Incentive Plan.

Growth in  
operating profit 

before amortisation and exceptional items 
achieved in the current year compared to 

exceptional items reported in the prior year.

Operating profit measures the underlying 
operating performance of the Group’s 
businesses and gives an insight into  
activity levels, cost management and 
performance efficiency.

Growth in adjusted  Measures the change in adjusted EPS 
achieved in the current year compared to 
adjusted EPS reported in the prior year.

corporate profitability and represents  
an important metric in determining the 
generation of superior shareholder returns. 
It is a key component of DCC’s executive 
bonus plans and Long Term Incentive Plan.

Operating  
cash flow

Measures cash generated from operations 
before exceptional items.

Operating cash flow represents the funds 
available for reinvestment, acquisitions and 
dividends, so maintaining a high level of  
cash generation is key to delivering strong 
shareholder returns.

Committed acquisition 
expenditure

Measures cash spent and future contingent 
consideration amounts for acquisitions 
committed to during the year.

The Group constantly seeks to add 
 

to provide shareholders with returns on  
capital in excess of our cost of capital. 

Health and safety Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate (‘LTIFR’) 
measures the number of lost time injuries  
per 200,000 hours worked.

Lost Time Injury Severity Rate (‘LTISR’) 
measures the number of calendar days lost  
per 200,000 hours worked.

The safety of our employees and the wider 
community is central to everything we do.  
A continually improving occupational and 
process safety culture is a key element  
in delivering on our strategic objectives.

Gender diversity Gender diversity measures the percentage  
split of the workforce between male and  
female employees.

The Group benefits from attracting and 
developing a workforce with diverse skills, 
qualities and experiences.

strategy. Each division has its own KPIs which are in direct alignment with those of the Group and are included in the divisional operating 
reviews on pages 26 to 53.
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2015 v 2014: 10.5%

2015 v 2014: 9.8%

Linked to Directors’ 
Remuneration

Market leading  
positions

Operational  Extend our  
geographic  
footprint

Financial  
discipline

Development  
of entrepreneurial  
teams

Performance Comment FY16 Outlook and Aims

The ROCE of 18.9% is significantly in excess  
of our current cost of capital. The increase  
in ROCE over the prior year reflected 
improvements across all four divisions and  
was driven by continued strong working capital 
management and the increase in the Group’s 
operating profit of 10.5%.

The achievement of returns on capital 
employed in excess of the Group’s cost  
of capital will continue to be a key focus  
in order to ensure the efficient generation  
of cash to fund organic growth, acquisitions 
and dividend growth. 

Approximately one third of the growth in the 
Group’s operating profit was organic and 
operating profit growth was achieved across all 
four divisions, despite the impact of a weaker 

denominated profits. Good growth was 
recorded in DCC Energy’s Retail & Fuel Card 
business and there was a strong performance 
in DCC Healthcare, reflecting growth in DCC 
Health & Beauty and the impact of acquisitions. 

The outlook for FY16 is based on the 
important assumption that there will be 
normal winter weather conditions and that 

complete by the end of June 2015 and in the 
final calendar quarter of 2015 respectively. 
The Group anticipates that operating  
profit will be very significantly ahead of the 
prior year.

driven by the factors mentioned under the 
operating profit KPI.

 
be very significantly ahead of the prior year  
and is based on the same assumptions as  
the anticipated growth in operating profit 
mentioned above.

The Group generated excellent operating cash 
flow of £377.8m during the year, driven by 
operating profit from continuing operations  
of £221.7m and a reduction in working capital  
of £102.6m.

Cash generation and working capital 
management will remain a key focus  
of the Group. 

The Group had a successful year of 
development activity with committed 
acquisition expenditure of £554.1m which 
principally comprised Butagaz (£338m),  

 
and Captech (£15m).

The Group will continue to pursue attractive 
opportunities in our traditional markets as 
well as looking to extend our business into 
selected new geographic markets. We 
continue to pursue a strong pipeline of 
opportunities but acquisition targets must 
meet our demanding criteria and the Group 
will remain disciplined in its approach to 
acquisition spend. 

The number of injuries from slips, trips, falls  
and manual handling increased during the year, 
reversing the historically positive downward 
trend of LTI performance metrics. All LTIs, 
regardless of severity, are investigated to 
determine root causes and to implement 
effective corrective actions. The emphasis on 
near miss reporting, employee engagement 
and safety leadership activities is continuous 
and the key to a return to a positive trend.

The Group will continue to focus on 
promoting a strong safety culture across our 
businesses to raise risk awareness and the 
identification of improvement opportunities. 
LTI rates are targeted to decrease back in 
line with historical trends. 

On an overall basis, female employees 
accounted for 33% of the workforce. Within 
this, 20% of senior management and 30% of 
Board members were female.

The Group will continue to focus on actions 
which will improve the diversity within our 
workforce and is targeting an improvement 
in the percentage of female employees.

Key
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Strategic linkage
DCC Energy’s strategy is to expand its retail service 
station business in Europe by extending its geographic 
footprint through acquisition. DCC Energy is building 
positions in new geographies through the development 
of a hub and spoke structure to facilitate building  
a larger business without duplication of costs.

What we did in 2015
 

(325 unmanned retail sites and 311 million litres of 

2014, DCC Energy announced that agreement in 
principle had been reached with Esso for DCC Energy 
to acquire its Esso Express network and the Esso 
Motorway network (comprising 274 unmanned retail 
sites and 48 retail sites respectively and selling 
approximately 1.9 billion litres of transport fuels) in 

France network, DCC Energy has set up an operation 
in Drogheda (just north of Dublin), from where the 
majority of the key business functions including 
pricing will be carried out. This facility will be scalable 
with the ability to run additional retail networks  
if further acquisitions become available. 

Read more: in on
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Read more:  in  on 

Strategic linkage

continues to drive DCC Energy’s growth in cleaner 
energy products. 

What we did in 2015

asphalt facility at Arlanda airport from burning fuel oil 
to LPG. We won the contract by demonstrating to the 
customer the energy and operating savings, along 

fuel in comparison to fuel oil. Flogas’ engineering 

LPG equipment (including a 50 tonne storage tank) 
and to carry out adjustments to their burner to allow 
the safe burning of LPG. The outcome is a longer  
term value added customer relationship for DCC and 
a reduction in emissions for our customer while 
delivering competitive pricing. 
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to form the basis for the development of a Pan  
Nordic IT distribution business and the CapTech 
management (led by Managing Director, Daniel 
Johnsson) have stayed on to grow the CapTech 
business within the wider Exertis business. CapTech 
has now been rebranded Exertis and the acquisition 
will strengthen our relationship with some key  
IT vendors including Acer, Asus, Dell, Microsoft,  

Strategic linkage
The acquisition of CapTech will help Exertis to extend 
its geographic footprint into the Nordic region.  
This will help to provide new horizons for growth  
and access to new customers in the region.

What we did in 2015
Exertis is focused on expanding its geographic  
reach in Europe to enable the business to provide  

and a detailed search was undertaken of acquisition 

 
as an excellent opportunity in terms of vendor 
partners, customer base, service levels and the 
strength of the management team.

focuses on IT hardware, professional AV and home 
entertainment products. This acquisition is expected 

Read more: in on



Strategic Report 

 
Continued



Financial Statem
ents

Supplem
entary Inform

ation
G

overnance
Strategic Report 

and development. Over an 18 month period, DCC 
Healthcare management developed and executed  
an integration plan that involved consultation and 
working with key stakeholders – customers, suppliers, 
employees and unions – to ensure its delivery. The 

with minimum disruption to service levels and 
continues to be supported by a Nordic market 
focused R&D and business development team based 

Strategic linkage

of our operating model and delivered a range of 

activities on one site, optimising manufacturing 
 

prices and a greater depth of product development 
and technical resources to existing and target 
customers in the Nordic region. This supports both 
business retention and growth and enables DCC 
Healthcare to leverage its existing customer base  

What we did in 2015
In June 2012, DCC Healthcare acquired Vitamex,  

 
and international consumer healthcare and health  
& beauty brand owners. This acquisition allowed  
DCC Healthcare to extend the breadth of its service 

sector and to expand its European customer base. 
The business was housed in a seven storey building 
which was originally a textile factory and was not 
suitable for further development. 

DCC Healthcare has operated a high quality licensed 
tablet facility in the UK, supplying both leading 
domestic and international brand owners, for many 
years. While this facility had capacity, a skilled 
workforce and development potential, it did not have 

After a detailed review of our development options,  
a decision was taken to invest in the UK facility,  
adding capacity and the technology to manufacture 

centre of all DCC Healthcare’s tablet manufacturing 

Read more:  in  on 
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Exploration, production 

DCC Energy’s activities
External activities

DCC Energy – What we do

 

What we do

DCC Energy is the leading oil and 
liquefied petroleum gas (‘LPG’) 
sales, marketing and distribution 
business in Europe. In oil 
distribution, DCC Energy is the 
market leader in Britain and 

distribution businesses in Austria, 
Denmark and Ireland. In LPG, DCC 
Energy is the market leader in 

in the Netherlands and is the 
strong number two player in both 
Britain and Ireland. In Retail & Fuel 
Card, DCC Energy is building strong 
market positions in Britain, France 

In the year ended 31 March 2015, 
DCC Energy sold 10.8 billion litres 
of product to its customer base  
of approximately one million 
customers across 9 countries. 

Leading  
the way

8.1%5.7%

2014: 17.5%

Results
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Outbound logistics

Importation terminal

Domestic

Agriculture

Aviation

Fu
el
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ar

d

Marine

Commercial/Industrial

Retail forecourts

Inbound logistics Inland depots

Markets and  
Market Position

Oil Distribution
DCC Energy’s oil distribution business 
sells transport fuels, heating oils and  
fuel oils to commercial, retail, domestic, 
agricultural, industrial, aviation and 
marine customers in Britain, Ireland, 

In Britain, DCC Energy has been  
a consolidator of the fragmented oil 
distribution market since 2001. Operating 
as Certas Energy, the business sells  
oil under a large portfolio of brands, 
including Bayford, Brogan, Butler Fuels, 
Carlton Fuels, CPL Petroleum, Gulf, Pace 

Outside Britain, DCC Energy sells oil 
under the leading brands of Emo Oil 

 
 

 
Bayern and Bronberger & Kessler 
(Bavaria, Germany).

DCC Energy has been the consolidator  
of what was, and continues to be, a highly 
fragmented oil distribution market in 

and since then has acquired and 
integrated 38 businesses including the oil 

Chevron Texaco (2008) and Total (2011). 
DCC Energy has grown to become, by far, 
the largest oil distributor in Britain. DCC’s 
addressable market in Britain comprises 
transport fuels and heating oils to 
commercial, industrial, domestic, 
agricultural and dealer owned petrol 
stations with volumes of approximately 
30 billion litres. In the year ended 
31 March 2015, DCC Energy sold 5.7 
billion litres of product giving a market 
share of approximately 18%.

The total retail petrol station market  
in Britain is approximately 35 billion litres 
with 45% of volumes sold through 
supermarket sites, 25% through company 
owned and operated stations and 30% 
through independent dealer owned 
stations. DCC Energy operates in the 
independent dealer owned segment  
of the retail market and is the largest 
supplier to this segment, based on the 
1,600 sites we supply. DCC Energy has  
a market share of circa 4% of the total 
market and supplies to approximately 
10% of the dealer network.

How we Create Value

delivering potentially hazardous 
products safely and reliably.

Passionate, experienced and 
committed team of people.

Customer focused.

 
and ability to tailor contracts  
to customers’ requirements.

Key Brands

Oil
Bayford, Brogan*, Bronberger & Kessler*, 
Butler Fuels*, Carlton Fuels*, CPL 
Petroleum, DCC Energi*, Emo Oil*, 
Energie Direct*, Gulf, Pace Fuelcare, 

Texaco, Top Oil*(in Austria).

Retail & Fuel Card 
BP, Diesel Direct, Esso, Fastfuels, Gulf, 

LPG 
Flogas*, MacGas*, Benegas*.

* DCC owned brands
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Emo Oil is one of the leading oil 
distributors in Ireland with a market share 
of 9%. DCC’s addressable oil market in 
Ireland is estimated to be 9 billion litres.

with a share of approximately 16% of the 
addressable market which is estimated  
to be 2 billion litres. In Denmark, the 
addressable oil distribution market  
is estimated at 2 billion litres of which  
DCC Energi Danmark has a market  
share of 12% making it the number two  
oil distributor. The addressable oil 
distribution market in Austria is estimated 
to be 5 billion litres and DCC’s subsidiary, 
Energie Direct, is number two in this 
market with a share of 12%. With the  
oil majors continuing to divest of oil 
distribution assets, DCC Energy is  
well placed to continue its growth in 
Continental Europe through acquisitions. 

LPG
Through the Flogas Group, DCC Energy 
supplies LPG (propane and butane) in 
both cylinder and bulk to commercial, 
domestic, agricultural and industrial 
customers across six countries in Europe. 
The product is used for industrial 
applications, space heating, hot water  
and cooking, and also as road fuel 
(autogas). Unlike the oil distribution 
markets, which remain highly fragmented, 
the LPG markets across Europe are 
relatively consolidated and the Flogas 
Group has a leading position in each 
market that it operates in.

Britain is Flogas’ largest LPG market with 
an addressable market of approximately 
800,000 tonnes. Flogas Britain is the clear 
number two LPG distributor in Britain 
with a market share of circa 30%, having 
focused on organic growth with commercial 
customers. The business operates from  
a nationwide infrastructure of 67 depots. 
In 2015 the business invested further  
in the assets required for supplying 

solution to large industrial businesses 

distributes a wide range of LPG fuel 
appliances such as mobile heaters and 
barbecues while the Flogas Renewables 
team provides customers with products 
such as biomass boilers, solar panels  
and heat pumps.

Flogas Ireland, operating in both the 
Republic of Ireland and Northern Ireland, 
is the number two LPG distributor and 
has continued to grow organically to an 
estimated 40% share of the addressable 
market of approximately 180,000 tonnes. 
The business operates from six depots 
throughout the country including three 
import facilities. Flogas Ireland has  
also established a leading position  
as a distributor of natural gas to the 
commercial market. In addition, Flogas 
Ireland markets a range of heaters and 
barbecues and is currently developing  

In the Netherlands, where the Flogas 
Group trades under the Benegas brand, 
the business has an overall market share 
of 26% of the addressable market of 
approximately 330,000 tonnes and is  

joint market leader. Operating from  
one central depot and a number of third 
party locations, the business delivers to 
commercial, industrial, agricultural and 
domestic customers in the Netherlands 

player in the sale of LPG for aerosol and 
autogas use. 

from six third party operated locations 
which include three key import facilities. 
Flogas is the market leader in both these 
markets with 55% and 38% market shares 

addressable market is estimated to be 

and 190,000 tonnes in Norway.

On 18 May 2015, DCC Energy reached 

This would represent the largest ever 
acquisition by DCC and a major step 
forward in the continuing expansion of  
its LPG business. The French LPG market 
is the second largest in Western Europe 
and approximately twice the size of the 
market in Britain. The acquisition of 
Butagaz would provide DCC Energy with  
a substantial presence in the French LPG 
market, an experienced management 
team and a high quality sales, marketing 
and operating infrastructure. Butagaz  
is the leading LPG brand in France with 
very high levels of consumer brand 
recognition. Butagaz has a strong supply 
base, sourcing LPG from a number of 
supply points in France and also from 

transports product by road, rail, sea and 

business sells to circa 210,000 small and 
large bulk customers, while cylinders are 
stocked at 46 depots nationally and are 
distributed to some 26,000 retail points 
of sale, including hypermarkets and 
independent retailers, which in turn sell The acquisition of Butagaz would provide  

DCC Energy with a substantial presence in  
the French LPG market, an experienced 
management team and a high quality sales, 
marketing and operating infrastructure.
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Retail & Fuel Card
DCC Energy is one of the leading sales 
and marketing of branded fuel cards 
businesses in Britain. The business sells 
approximately 1 billion litres of transport 
fuels annually and provides its customers 
with access to the breadth of the British 
retail petrol station and bunker networks 
through its portfolio of fuel cards under 

Direct brands. As well as selling fuel  
cards, which are an essential tool for 
commercial organisations to manage  
their transport fuel costs, DCC also 
provides an innovative range of value 
added services to help further minimise 
spend on transport fuels.

station market through the acquisition  

DCC Energy’s stated ambition of building 
a larger presence in the transport fuels 

national coverage through a network  
of unmanned forecourts which is 
complemented by an additional 70 dealer 
operated petrol stations trading under 
the Bilisten and Pump brands.

In August 2014 DCC Energy announced 
that it had reached agreement in principle 
to acquire Esso’s retail petrol station 
business in France. The business comprises 
the Esso Express unmanned retail petrol 
station network (274 sites) and the  
Esso motorway concessions (48 sites)  
in France. Following the completion of this 
acquisition, DCC Energy will have a network 
of 685 unmanned and manned retail 

and Ireland.

Strategy and Development
DCC Energy’s vision is to be a global leader 
in the sales, marketing and distribution of 
fuels and related products and provision 
of services to energy consumers: 
 – with strong local market shares;
 – operating under multiple brands;
 – consolidating fragmented markets;
 – selling a broad range of related 

products and services;
 – building a position in new geographies;
 – continuing the development of its 

presence in the green/renewable 
energy sector; and

 – generating high levels of ROCE.

 – Continue to consolidate existing 
markets to drive greater customer 

 –
products; 

 –
services e.g. fuel cards, lubricants, 
heating services;

 –
into logistics operations; and

 – Expand into new geographies. 

 – Target oil to LPG conversions;
 – Target market share gains on  

a segment by segment basis, 
particularly commercial bulk;

 – Cross sell complementary green/
renewable energy products;

 –  
e.g. natural gas, LNG; and

 – Expand into new geographies.

 – Expand business in the retail petrol 
station market:
 – Unmanned – key pillar for growth
 – Retail Company Owned– in 

partnership with a retailer
 – Retail Dealer Owned

 –
business leveraging the investment  
in Retail networks. 

DCC Energy’s strategy is to be the leading 
oil distribution business in Europe by 
continuing to consolidate existing 
markets, driving targeted growth, 

segments of the market, expanding into 
new geographies through acquisition and 

growth is targeted by leveraging the scale 

products and services such as lubricants 
and boiler maintenance services to its 
extensive customer base.

A key element of DCC Energy’s expansion 
involves building a larger presence in the 
transport fuels segment of the market. 
DCC Energy intends to pursue this strategy 
by growing its presence in the retail 
forecourt sector of the market through 
expansion of supply to independent 
dealers, by leveraging its existing scale  
and supply infrastructure and by 
developing industry leading propositions 
for its dealers and retail consumers.

DCC Energy’s strategy in Britain is to 
continue to grow its market share 
(currently 18%) to in excess of 20% of its 
addressable market. Key to achieving this 
target is growth in transport fuels with  
a particular focus on retail petrol stations 
and the marine and aviation sectors.  
DCC Energy is now the largest supplier to 
independent dealer owned retail petrol 
stations in Britain, selling to approximately 
1,600 sites across the country. The business 
has been actively rolling out the Gulf 
brand across this network. 
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DCC Energy will further leverage its strong 
LPG market positions across the Flogas 

 
on a sector by sector basis. Building on 
recent success, we will continue to target 
growth by promoting LPG to industrial 
and commercial entities looking to switch 
to more environmentally friendly and 
competitively priced energy sources.  
We will also seek to extend into related 
product areas and into new geographic 
markets, as the recently agreed 
acquisition of Butagaz demonstrates.

Operationally, with recent acquisitions 
now fully integrated, the business will 

through a number of business improvement 
initiatives across the Flogas Group. These 
initiatives include the roll out of new 
Customer Relationship Management 
(‘CRM’) systems and telemetry (remote 
tank reading) on customer tanks to 

 
a retail business across Europe in pursuit 
of its strategy of capturing a greater share 
of the consumer margin in the transport 
sector of the market.

The retail business will be further 
strengthened with the completion of the 
acquisition of the Esso retail petrol station 
business in France which will make DCC 
Energy one of the leading retailers of 
diesel and petrol in France and provide  
a platform for further growth in the 
French market. 

In Fuel Card, DCC Energy is continuing  
to target high levels of organic growth 
through its extensive telesales team and 
by cross selling fuel cards to its broad  
oil distribution customer base. The Fuel 
Card business has expanded its customer 

to customers such as ‘CO2Count’ and 
‘Mileage Capture’ which provide customers 
with key information on fuel consumption 
and emissions to allow them to better 
manage their businesses.

Customers
DCC Energy has a very broad customer 
base selling directly to approximately  
1 million customers across the 
geographies in which the businesses 
operate and also has access to a broad 
range of retail and cylinder consumers. 
Customers are primarily spread over  
the commercial, retail, industrial, 
domestic, agricultural and marine 
markets. DCC Energy has no material 
customer dependencies. 

Volume split by customer type

Commercial & industrial 60%

Retail 18%

Domestic 11%

Agricultural 4%

Marine 4%

Other 3%

Volume split by product

Oil 72%

Retail & Fuel Card 15%

LPG 13%

Suppliers
As with its customer base, DCC Energy’s 
supplier portfolio is broadly based.  

approximately 50% of total volumes 
supplied with no one individual supplier 
accounting for more than 15% of volumes 
supplied in the current year. The major 
suppliers to the division are BP, Essar, 

has, over many years, built long term 
strategic partnerships with its suppliers 
and we have continued to strengthen 
these relationships during the year. 

Following completion of the 
acquisition of Esso’s petrol 
station business in France, 
DCC Energy will have a 
network of 685 unmanned 
and manned retail petrol 

Britain and Ireland.
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Our People
DCC Energy’s business is a people 
business at its core. Therefore we are 
very focused on developing processes 
and practices that ensure the well being, 
development and engagement of our 
people across all areas of the business 
and to ensure that we have the necessary 
resources, talent and skills to deliver the 
service levels expected by our customers 
in a safe way, every day.

DCC Energy has highly experienced and 
ambitious management teams with a 
deep knowledge of the markets in which 
the businesses operate. As our businesses 
have grown we have looked to augment  
the existing management teams with 
experienced personnel in senior roles and 
we will continue to develop the management 
teams as the businesses grow. 

DCC Energy currently employs 4,693 people. 

Health & Safety
Continuous improvement of our safety 
performance is a key priority and 
responsibility for all line managers  
and directors who are supported by 
experienced health and safety functions 
in each business. Occupational and 
process safety (relating to the larger 
terminals which have the potential for  
a major accident) is managed through 
systems and processes which identify, 
control and monitor health and safety 
risks. Monthly KPIs are reviewed by the 
DCC Energy Board which sets annual 
objectives to drive improvements in near 
miss reporting, safety awareness, safety 
competence and overall safety culture.

In the year to March 2013, DCC Energy 

initiative focused on improving attitudes 
and behaviour towards safety and led by 
the senior management teams. Following 
the successful adoption in Certas Energy 

companies in the business.

DCC Energy’s expanding Fuel Card 
business provides fuel cards to small 

 
that enable businesses to reduce 
administration time and costs 
associated with the purchase of diesel 

 
DCC Energy’s Fuel Card business  
is an authorised reseller of major petrol  
and diesel fuel card brands including 

market in Britain through an acquisition 
in 2005, which provided DCC Energy 
with a business selling 150 million litres 
of fuel to a customer base of 6,400 and 

£2 million. Through a mixture of strong 
organic and acquisition growth, DCC 
Energy has consistently grown its Fuel 
Card business and in the year to March 
2015, the business sold approximately 
900 million litres to a broad customer 
base of approximately 50,000 small to 
medium sized enterprises and achieved 

 
£20 million. 

Organic growth has been achieved 
through developing and expanding  
fuel card ranges, while building upon  

 

 
for online account management. 
Investment in marketing has included 

programmes, including video and 
smartphone apps, for stronger 
customer engagement and lead 
generation. In addition, an expanding 
sales force has been winning new 

retentions department actively seeks  
to reduce customer churn and retain 
customer loyalty. The continuing 

by ongoing investment in training and 
professional development.

 
from competitors continues alongside 
impressive customer retention and has 
contributed to the business achieving 
12% market share in Britain. New 
products, new services and new 
partnerships are already in development 

continue to build upon the progress 
made to date.

Pumping up the 
volume
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Key Risks
DCC Energy sold 10.8 billion litres of 
product during the year ended 31 March 
2015 and the businesses operate with 
inherent risks to the environment and 
people. Ensuring that our businesses 
maintain rigorous health, safety and 
environmental standards is one of our 
core business principles. Having rolled 

business, the focus is now on reinforcing 
the programme through quarterly 
communications campaigns to ensure  
we drive continued improvement and 
maintain momentum. 

DCC Energy has a broad customer base 
across a number of geographies and 
many of the economies in which the 
division operates are showing signs  
of recovery. However, a deterioration  
in this economic recovery and its impact 

 
is a key risk faced by the business. 

volumes are generated through the sale 
of heating dependent products and 
accordingly, as noted in previous years, 
the division can be impacted by extreme 
movements in weather conditions. The 
development focus has been to reduce 
the heating dependence of the division 

heating segments of the business. The 
 

a key building block in this strategy, which 
will continue in the coming year with the 
completion of the acquisition of Esso’s 
retail petrol station business in France. 

DCC Energy has been highly acquisitive 
over the last number of years and 
ensuring the smooth integration of these 
acquisitions is critical to the success of 
the division. This is achieved through close 
monitoring of the acquired businesses 
and ongoing management development.

Environment
DCC Energy’s approach to sustainability 
recognises the reality of climate change 
and the challenges arising from changing 
weather patterns and more frequent 
extreme weather events. Government 
responses to climate change include 
levies and taxes on carbon emissions, 
incentives for renewables and energy 

term carbon reduction targets. At the 
same time, the economy relies on energy 
(primarily from fossil fuels) to function 
and grow. DCC Energy is committed  
to assisting our customers reduce their 
environmental impact. This is being 

innovative solutions, enabling customers 
to monitor their own energy use and 
quantify carbon emissions. 

The potential for oil spills to impact on  
the environment is a risk that is managed 
on a daily basis. From domestic deliveries 
to large storage facilities in coastal 
locations, a range of controls are in place 
to minimise the potential of this becoming 
a reality. Controls include the design and 
maintenance of vehicles and depots, the 

procedures and, critically, the 
engagement of competent, trained 
employees who are handling product 
safely every day. 

All spills have the potential to cause  
local damage so in the event of any spill 
occurring, immediate action is taken to 
contain and recover the product to 
minimise impact to the surroundings. 
Detailed investigations are completed  
to identify the root causes of any  
incidents to identify learning points  
and opportunities for improvement.  

DCC Energy’s businesses have a local 
footprint in all the markets in which we 
have a presence. Therefore it is crucial  
to our long term strategy that we have a 
high degree of trust within the communities 
in which we operate. All our businesses 
operate to the highest standards, invest 
heavily in infrastructure and training, and 

in the communities within which they work.

Performance for the  
Year Ended 31 March 2015
It was an excellent year for growth and 
development in DCC Energy. DCC Energy 
delivered a strong trading performance 

prior year (10.3% ahead on a constant 
currency basis). The trading performance 

weather conditions, relative to the 10 year 
average, which impacted all geographies 
in which DCC Energy operates. DCC 
Energy made excellent progress in its 
strategy to expand both its retail and LPG 
businesses by committing to acquire both 
the Esso Retail and Butagaz businesses  
in France. 

DCC Energy sold 10.8 billion litres of 
product during the year, an increase of 
5.7% over the prior year (1.2% organically). 

The Oil Distribution business performed 
robustly, notwithstanding the impact  
of the mild winter weather conditions. 

and continued growth in the commercial 
sectors of the market. The business 
continued its focus on growth in the 
transport fuels sector and made good 
progress in supplying retail petrol station, 
marine and aviation customers. 

The LPG business performed well during 
the year. Good growth was achieved  
in sales to commercial and industrial 
customers in the UK and Ireland, while  
in Benelux the autogas sector performed 
strongly. Continuing its strategy to 
expand the LPG business into new 
markets, DCC reached agreement in 
principle to acquire Butagaz, which would 
position DCC Energy as the strong 
number two in the LPG market in France.

It was an excellent year for growth and 
development in DCC Energy. DCC Energy 
delivered a strong trading performance with 
operating profit 8.1% ahead of the prior year.



DCC Energy KPIs

 

Return on capital employed

Deliver superior  
shareholder returns

 
organic and acquisition growth  
and dividends

Deliver superior  
shareholder returns 

Volumes

Drive increase in sales volumes 

5.7%

Drive for enhanced  
operational performance

8.1%
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DCC Energy made excellent progress in 
developing its business in Retail & Fuel 
Card. DCC’s Fuel Card business in Britain 
had an excellent year and recorded  
very strong organic volume growth.  

 

retail petrol station market and positions 

nationwide network of 325 unmanned 

expectations since acquisition. DCC 
Energy made further progress in the 
retail sector when it announced in August 
2014 that it had reached agreement in 
principle to acquire Esso’s retail petrol 
station business in France, comprising 
274 unmanned Esso Express sites and 
concessions to operate 48 Esso branded 
motorway sites. 

Following the completion of the Esso 
Retail acquisition in France, DCC Energy 
will operate across ten countries in 
Europe and remains well positioned to 
grow in those markets and to continue  
to expand into new geographies.
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350+ Global
technology brands
& manufacturers

DCC Technology’s activities
External activities

DCC Technology – What we do

Continued

A broad range  
of services

2.6%3.8%

2014: 21.1%

Results

What we do

DCC Technology is a leading  
sales, marketing, distribution and 
supply chain services business 
providing a broad range of 
technology products and services 
to customers in Europe. 
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Pro-active sales  
& marketing

Specialist retailers

Grocers

Etailers

Resellers

Kitting, localisation
& customisation  

of products

Demand & logistics 
management,

including import/export

Category, product & 
technical expertise

Product sourcing, 
website & category 

management

Stock hubbing, 
bundling & returns 

management

white-label services  
& in-store product 

positioning

Markets and  
Market Position

DCC Technology, which trades as Exertis, 
sells a range of technology products to  
a very wide customer base of technology 
retailers, etailers and resellers, primarily 

the Netherlands. The products 
distributed include a broad range of 
computing products (including tablets 
and PC’s), communications products 
(including smartphones, feature phones, 

servers & storage, audio visual products, 
printers, peripherals, networking & 
security products and consumables.  
In addition, the business sells a  
diverse range of consumer technology 
products including games consoles  
& software, wearable technology, 
consumer electronics and accessories  
& peripherals. The business partners  
with many of the world’s leading 
technology brands.
 
DCC Technology provides technology 
brand owners and manufacturers with  
an exceptionally broad customer reach 
and proactively markets their products 
through product and customer focused 
sales teams. The business provides  

reseller and retail channels to both its 
customers and suppliers, including 

category management and merchandising, 
kitting, product customisation and cross 
supplier bundling, third party logistics 
and web site development & management. 

technology supply chain, DCC Technology 
provides global supply chain services 
through its dedicated supply chain 
operations in Western Europe, Poland, 

 
of the art IT systems and procurement 
processes. These services include 
product sourcing & procurement, 
supplier hubbing, consignment stock 

 

compliance and supplier & customer 
 

its partners to bring technology  

manner possible.

How we Create Value

approach to a very broad customer 
base across a number of countries.

Excellent supplier portfolio.

Agile, responsive and service focused.

customers and suppliers.

added services expertise.

Financial strength.

Key Brands

Acer, APC, Apple, Asus, Belkin, Cisco,  
 

Lenovo, LG, Logitech, Microsoft, Netgear, 

Western Digital. 
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DCC Technology’s principal addressable 
markets are the retail and reseller 
channels for technology products in  

Netherlands. The value of the technology 

During the year, DCC Technology acquired 
CapTech, the third largest IT distributor  

 
the foundation for the development  
of a broader based business in the  
Nordic region.

DCC Technology is now the largest 
distributor of technology products in  
the UK & Ireland and the third largest  

distributor of technology products in 
France with a focus on the retail channel. 
In the Netherlands the business is 

 
DCC Technology is the fourth largest 
distributor of technology products  
in Europe.

Revenue by product type

Computing 30%

Communications & mobile 13%

Printers, consumables & IT peripherals 13%

Storage & networking 12%

Gaming consoles, software & peripherals 10%

Consumer electronics 8%

Other 14%

Strategy and Development
DCC Technology’s vision is to become  
the leading sales, marketing, distribution 
and supply chain services business for 
technology products in Europe, delivering 

on capital employed. 

DCC Technology’s principal medium term 
strategic objectives are:
 – to broaden the range of sales channels 

and products addressed by the 
business in its existing markets, 
including emerging technology segments;

 – to further develop and deliver a range 
of industry leading services supported 
by best in class infrastructure; and

 – to extend the geographic footprint of 
the business through complementary 
acquisitions.

DCC Technology is constantly reviewing 
trends and innovations in technology 
products and services and is focused on 
ensuring that the business continues to 

these areas of future growth.

Customers
The business has a very broad customer 
base, selling to approximately 15,000 
customers. The largest customer 
accounted for approximately 9% of 
revenues in the year ended 31 March 
2015 and the ten largest customers 
accounted for 39% of total revenues  
in that year.

DCC Technology seeks to provide an 
excellent standard of customer service 
combining an extensive range of services 
with a commitment to identify the most  

customers’ requirements. By constantly 
focusing on building the breadth of our 
reseller and retail customer base, we ensure 

to adapt to their growing demands, as well  
as delivering an exceptional route to market 
for our suppliers. 

Our supply chain services customers 
include IT equipment manufacturers, 
outsourced equipment manufacturers, 
consumer electronics companies and 
telecommunications equipment 
manufacturers. Customer relationships  
in this area of our business tend to be 
long term in nature and several of our 
customers have been dealing with us  
for over ten years.

Revenue by business unit

UK & Ireland 79%

Continental Europe 14%

Supply Chain Services 7%

Suppliers
DCC Technology has a diverse supplier 
base and partners with hundreds of 
suppliers including many of the world’s 
leading technology brands, such as Acer, 
APC, Apple, Asus, Belkin, Cisco, Dell, 

Logitech, Microsoft, Netgear, Nokia, 

Digital. The largest supplier accounted for 
11% of total purchases in the year ended 
31 March 2015 and the top ten suppliers 
represented 58% of total purchases. 

The business adopts a proactive 

recruitment of new suppliers and 
technologies and seeks to position itself 
as the obvious choice for owners of 
growing brands to access the retail and 
reseller channels. In addition, we seek  
to ensure that we have a position of 
strategic relevance with our principal 
vendor partners. 
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Investment to support 
future growth and  
drive efficiency

Exertis in the UK has always maintained 
a top class logistics capability. The 

volume growth in recent years and this 
has necessitated an incremental 
extension of its logistics footprint to  
the point where the business currently 
operates from six warehouses. It is now 
undertaking a project to consolidate its 
warehousing operations into a single 
National Distribution Centre (‘NDC’) in 
Lancashire. The NDC will have a gross 

an option to build an extra 200,000 
square feet) and will have capacity for 
over 65,000 pallets, representing a 50% 
increase in current capacity. 

This investment is required in order to 
support the continued strong growth of 
the business by providing extra capacity. 
In addition, it is expected to increase 

 
to serve as well as supporting the 

The NDC is expected to come on stream 
in 2017.

When providing supply chain services  
to technology manufacturers and brand 
owners, a core element of the services 
provided by the business is the 

and supply chain partners for the 
manufacturer or brand owner and 
carrying out the quality assurance on 
those suppliers to ensure that they 
conform to required quality, regulatory 
and ethical standards. 

sustainable relationships with each of our 

service, the operating principles we adopt 
with our suppliers have been formalised 
and communicated to our suppliers in 
our ‘Code of Practice’.

Our People
DCC Technology employs 1,941 people in 
11 countries and recognises that they are 
fundamental to the ongoing success of 
the business. At all levels, employees are 
encouraged to adopt a service orientated 
approach to meeting the demands of 
suppliers and customers. 

At senior management level, our 
operating businesses are run by some  
of the best regarded entrepreneurial 
management teams in the industry. DCC 
Technology seeks to foster and maintain 
an entrepreneurial culture, coupled with  
a commitment to ensuring that the 
highest ethical standards in business 
conduct are maintained.

DCC Technology is committed to 
conducting its business in a sustainable 

in how it interacts with customers, 
suppliers, employees and the communities 
in which it operates. In common with the 
rest of the DCC Group, the business has 
processes to assess and control health 
and safety risks and aims to provide the 
best possible working environment for  
its employees. 

DCC Technology is an active participant  
in the DCC Graduate Programme. The 
business also operates a wide variety  
of employee training programmes within 
individual businesses to promote the 

training encompasses both personal 
 

in addition to formal training for 
personnel in areas such as health & 
safety, risk and compliance. The business 
undertakes regular employee surveys 
and responds to the results of these 
surveys where required.
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Key Risks
DCC Technology faces a number of 
strategic, operational, compliance and 

broad range of suppliers and customers 
with whom we have built excellent trading 
relationships. However, the business 

loss of a small number of key suppliers  
or customers.

DCC Technology is undertaking a 

warehousing and IT system, involving 
gross capital expenditure of c. £60 million. 
While this transition will be undertaken 
on a phased basis to reduce risk, risks 
remain that the project is not carried out 
on time, on budget or that the operations 
of the business are adversely impacted  
by the project.

The division recently appointed a Head  
of Legal & Compliance to manage and 
support the extensive compliance 
structures already in place to ensure that 
the increasingly complex regulatory 
environment is fully understood and 
complied with on an ongoing basis.

Managing the potential risk of stock 
obsolescence is a critical success factor in 
the day to day operations of the business 
given the diverse product and supplier 

our relationships with our suppliers and 
the existence of formal contractual stock 
rotation and price protection provisions 
with the vast majority of our suppliers 
assist in mitigating this risk. 

Performance for the Year 
Ended 31 March 2015
DCC Technology achieved a satisfactory 

3.7% on a constant currency basis. The 
business recorded strong growth in its 

 
in its UK & Ireland reseller customer 
channel. This strong performance was 

market for tablets and mobile phones in 
the UK, following a very strong prior year. 

Exertis UK & Ireland achieved strong 
growth across its UK reseller customer 
channel driven by sales of technical and 
specialist products, such as servers, 
storage, networking and security. This was 

channel, primarily driven by lower sales  
of tablets and smartphones, particularly 
in the second half. The UK business was 
impacted by the fall in the overall tablet 
market, which declined by 17% in 2014, 
and reduced sales of mobile computing 
and communications products of one 
large supplier in the second half of the 

in gaming products as the business 

latest generation of gaming consoles, 
which were launched in advance of 
Christmas 2013. The Irish business 

business and good cost control. Exertis 
UK & Ireland now accounts for 79% of 
revenue of the division. In May 2015,  
DCC Technology acquired Computers 
Unlimited (‘CU’), a consumer technology 

distributor, operating primarily in the UK 
but also with operations in France and 

‘Connected Home’ and professional 
design market and distributes a range  
of products that are complementary to 
those distributed by Exertis, including 
design software, printers, accessories  
and premium audio systems.

Following the successful rebranding of all 
of the businesses within DCC Technology 
to Exertis in the prior year, the business  
is in the process of upgrading its logistics 
and IT infrastructure in the UK. This 

Exertis UK to continue to expand its 

Exertis Continental Europe, which 
accounts for 14% of divisional revenue, 
achieved very strong growth. The business 
made further progress in expanding its 
geographic coverage, in line with its strategic 
objectives, by acquiring CapTech, the third 

acquisition will provide the foundation for 
the development of a more broadly based 
business in the Nordic region. In France 
the business generated strong organic 

of a number of new suppliers and good  
cost management. 

Exertis UK & Ireland achieved strong growth 
across its UK reseller customer channel driven  
by sales of technical and specialist products, such 
as servers, storage, networking and security. 
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Operating margin

Grow operating margin 

Return on capital employed

Deliver superior  
shareholder returns

 
organic and acquisition growth  
and dividends

Deliver superior  
shareholder returns 

Revenue growth

Drive for enhanced  
operational performance

3.8%

Drive for enhanced  
operational performance

2.6%

accounts for 7% of divisional revenue, 
achieved excellent organic growth as it 
won new business, achieved growth with 
existing customers and made further 
progress in positioning its supply chain 

by DCC Technology. 

DCC Technology has strong market 

enable further development of its service 
propositions, leaving the business well 

product innovations of its suppliers and 
the expansion of sales channels for 
technology products.

DCC Technology KPIsDCC Technology seeks  
to provide an excellent 
standard of customer service 
combining an extensive  
range of services with  
a commitment to identify  
the most cost effective and 
flexible solutions to our 
customers’ requirements.
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Our Customers

Product development, contract 
manufacturing and packing of  

health & beauty products

Health & 
beauty brand 

owners

Specialist 
health & 
beauty 

retailers

Direct sales/
mail order 
companies

DCC Healthcare’s activities
External activities

DCC Health & Beauty Solutions
– What we do

Continued

What we do

DCC Healthcare is a leading 
provider of healthcare products 
and services to the British, Irish 
and Continental European 
markets. The business is focused 
on the sales, marketing and 
distribution of pharmaceuticals 
and medical devices to hospitals, 
pharmacies, GPs and other 
healthcare providers in Britain and 
Ireland and on the provision of 
contract manufacturing and 
related services to the European 
health and beauty sector.

Focused  
delivery

30.6%20.1%

2014: 14.2%

Results
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Our suppliers

Our Customers

3rd party brand owners Own brand/licence products

Hospitals Pharma retailers  
and wholesalers

Primary Care  
(GPs & Community Care)

Sales, marketing 
& distribution 

Portfolio 
development 
and product 

licensing

Procurement Vendor 
management

Supply chain 
management & 

logistics services 

Markets and  
Market Position

DCC Vital sells, markets and distributes  
a broad range of own and third party 
branded pharmaceuticals and medical 
devices to hospitals, pharmacies, GPs  
and other healthcare providers in Britain 
and Ireland. 

DCC Vital’s pharmaceutical portfolio 
comprises solid dose, injectable and 
inhaler products across a range of 
therapy areas including oncology, beta 
lactam and other antibiotics, anaesthesia, 
pain management, haematology, 
respiratory, addiction and emergency 
medicine. DCC Vital is the product licence 
holder for almost half of its pharma 
revenues. The business works with 
leading branded, generic and contract 
manufacturing pharma companies such 
as Actavis, Cipla, Fresenius Kabi, Grifols, 
Hikma, Martindale Pharma, Rosemont 
and Teva. Following on from the acquisitions 
of Kent Pharma and Neolab in recent 
years, DCC Vital’s pharma portfolio was 
further strengthened in November with 
the acquisition of Beacon Pharmaceuticals, 
a niche pharma business which markets 
and sells its own licensed and third party 
pharma products primarily to the hospital 
sector in the UK. The business has been 
fully integrated into DCC Vital’s existing 
UK pharma operations.

DCC Vital sells and markets a broad  
range of medical devices and consumables 
in areas such as wound care, urology, 
procedure packs, critical care 
(anaesthesia, endovascular, cardiology, 
and IV access), diagnostics, orthopaedics, 
neurology as well as the full range of 
consumables and equipment used by 
GPs. Products are typically single use  

represents a small element of total sales 
and typically relates to generating sales  
of consumable products, for example  
the sale (or placing) of diagnostic testing 
equipment in order to drive sales of the 
consumable test kits used with the 
equipment. DCC Vital represents leading 
medical, surgical and diagnostics brands 
including BioRad, Carefusion, Diagnostica 

account for approximately one third of 
DCC Vital’s medical devices revenues.

How we Create Value

Broad range of own and third party 
brand/licence pharmaceuticals and 
medical devices. 

Comprehensive sales channel coverage 
in the British and Irish healthcare markets 
including hospital, retail pharmacy,  
GP and community care channels.

Full range of contract manufacturing 
services for health and beauty brand 
owners from high quality facilities with 
strong product development capability 

IT platforms.

Key Brands

DCC Vital’s Brands

Kabi, Grifols, Hikma, ICU Medical, Kent 
Pharmaceuticals*, Martindale Pharma, 

Medical, Williams Medical*.

DCC Health & Beauty  

Actavis, Alliance Pharma, Apotheket, 

Liz Earle, Healthspan, Holland & Barrett, 

Natures Best, Lamberts), Midsona, 

* DCC owned brands

DCC Vital  
– What we do
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in May 2014 was a significant further step in 
broadening out DCC Vital’s market coverage, 
enabling a holistic approach to addressing  

 
Care sector.

DCC Vital is also a leading provider of 
value added logistics services in Britain, 
providing innovative stock management 
and distribution services to hospitals and 
healthcare brand owners/manufacturers, 
focused principally on the operating theatre.

DCC Vital has the most comprehensive 
sales channel coverage in the British and 
Irish healthcare markets selling into the 
hospital, retail pharmacy, GP and 
community care channels. The acquisition 

broadening DCC Vital’s market coverage, 
enabling a holistic approach to addressing 

Care sector. Williams is the market leader 
in the supply of medical consumables, 
equipment and services to GPs in Britain 
and has a growing presence in the 
developing community healthcare sector. 
Williams services its customer base of 
more than 10,000 GP surgeries and other 
healthcare providers through a highly 

customer contact centre in Wales in 

account managers. 

highly trained sales and marketing 
professionals who have strong 
relationships with senior management, 
clinicians and procurement professionals 

regional pharmacy wholesale/retail 
groups and private healthcare providers. 
Leveraging the strength of its customer 
and supplier relationships and the 
breadth and quality of its product 
portfolio, in tandem with targeted 

acquisition activity, DCC Vital has built 
strong market positions including 
leadership positions in GP supplies,  
beta lactam antibiotics, electrodes  
and diathermy consumables in Britain 
and hospital supplies in Ireland. 

DCC Vital principally operates in sectors 
of the healthcare market which are 
government funded. Fiscal budgets in 
Britain and Ireland have been severely 
restricted over the last number of years 
and, in common with the majority of 
developed economies, the burden of 
care, particularly to support ageing 
populations, is growing. Healthcare 
providers are focused on cost saving 
opportunities and value for money. Public 
healthcare policy makers are increasingly 
focusing on shifting the point of care to 

typically away from expensive acute care 
settings to primary and community care 
settings. In addition, healthcare payers 
and providers are seeking to leverage 
their procurement scale through 
increased use of tendering, framework 
agreements and reference pricing. They 
are switching to equivalent quality, lower 
cost medical devices and generic 
pharmaceuticals as well as outsourcing 

these trends.

Competitors in this market sector include 
global healthcare companies as well as a 
large number of smaller pharmaceutical, 
medical and surgical manufacturers and 

added distribution sector in Britain 

DHL Logistics) and Bunzl plc.

DCC Health & Beauty 

reputation for providing a 
highly responsive and flexible 
service to its customers and 
for assisting customers in 
rapidly bringing new products 
from marketing concept 

ready products.
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of Europe’s leading outsourced contract 
manufacturing service providers to the 
health and beauty sector with a broad 
customer base of international and local 
brand owners, direct sales companies 
and specialist retailers. DCC Health & 

services is focused principally on the 
areas of nutrition (vitamins and health 
supplements) and beauty products (skin 
care, hair care, bath and body). The 

development, formulation, stability and 
other testing and regulatory compliance, 
as well as manufacturing and packing. 

four GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice) 
facilities in Britain, each of which is 
approved and licenced by the MHRA 
(Medicines and Healthcare Products 
Regulatory Agency). The business 
contract manufactures a wide variety  
of product formats (tablets, soft gel and 
hard shell capsules, creams and liquids). 

 
a reputation for providing a highly 

customers and for assisting customers  
in rapidly bringing new products from 

 
a strong market share in Britain and 

in Continental Europe, especially in 
Benelux, Germany and Poland. 

The market background for DCC Health  

Consumer demand for nutrition and 
beauty products has been robust 
through the economic downturn with 
continued demand for product 
innovation. The trend for health and 
beauty brand owners to outsource 

(including product development) and to 
streamline their supply chains is a critical 
factor in driving demand in the contract 
manufacturing sector. There is also a 
general trend towards increased 
regulation in the health and beauty sector 
in Europe and to higher manufacturing 
standards. These trends are favouring 

 
has the resources to invest in regulatory 
expertise and high quality facilities.  
Our main competitors include Catalent, 
Aenova, Brunel Healthcare and Ayanda in 

in creams/liquids.

 

Leveraging the scale  
and capability of our  
Pharma activities

Building on expertise and relationships 
in its Irish business and driven by good 
organic and acquisitive development in 
recent years, particularly the acquisition 
of Kent Pharmaceuticals in 2013,  
DCC Healthcare established a leading 
position in generic pharmaceuticals  
in Britain. Our business markets,  
sells and distributes a broad range of 
primarily own licence pharma products 
across all channels to market in Britain, 
supported by a strong regulatory  
and operational infrastructure. 

A key element of DCC Healthcare’s 
strategy in the pharma sector has been 
to identify and acquire complementary 

Healthcare had tracked the progress  
of Beacon Pharmaceuticals (‘Beacon’),  
a niche pharma business, over a number 

of years. Its focus on own and third party 
licensed hospital injectables sourced 
from a range of European manufacturers 

Healthcare’s existing British pharma 
activities, which included growing sales  
of hospital injectables. 
 
In November 2014, DCC Healthcare 
acquired Beacon and the strength of 
DCC’s infrastructure meant the business 
was integrated quickly post acquisition 
without additional overhead. DCC 

enhanced presence in the hospital 
sector with a more comprehensive 

base, making it a more attractive partner 
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2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015
39.7

28.3

2118.4

17.4

15.911.6

13.2

13.1

11.18.9

Revenue split by business

DCC Healthcare  

* Continuing activities

DCC Vital 70%

DCC Health & Beauty Solutions 30%

Continued
Continued

Strategy and Development
DCC Healthcare’s vision is to build a 
substantial European healthcare business 
focused on the sales, marketing and 
distribution of pharmaceuticals and 
medical devices and the provision of 
contract manufacturing and related 
services for the health and beauty sector. 
DCC Healthcare seeks to drive continued 

returns on capital well above the DCC 
Group’s cost of capital.

DCC Vital has a very strong track record  
of growth, having more than doubled  
the scale of its business (measured by 

 

against a backdrop of challenging market 
conditions in the public healthcare sector 
in both Britain and Ireland which reduced 
organic growth opportunities. Targeted 
acquisition activity, with strong valuation 
discipline and integration execution,  

 
of DCC Vital’s market coverage in Britain,  
a broader product portfolio, particularly 
in the pharma area, together with strong 

DCC Vital aims to continue this track 
record of growth through:
 – Expanding its product portfolio both 

organically and by acquisition, with a 
particular focus on own brand/licence 
products in product categories which 
can deliver sustainable returns over 
the longer term;

 – Leveraging the breadth of its market 
coverage in Britain, in particular 
providing a holistic approach to 
addressing the requirements of the 

with the general market trend to shift 

primary and community care settings; 
and

 – Expanding its market reach into 
Continental Europe, particularly 
Northern European markets, both 
organically and by acquisition.

DCC Vital has a strong regulatory 
capability in the pharma area including 

 
and assurance and pharmacovigilance. 
This capability, together with strength  
in product sourcing and the uniformity  
of European Union product licensing 
regulations, will open up opportunities  
for the business to extend its pharma 
activities into new geographic markets 
over the coming years. The medical 
devices market is becoming increasingly 

 
in specialist therapy areas and value for 
money commodity products. DCC Vital 
seeks to attract quality specialist agencies 
while also selectively launching products 
under its own brands. 

 

 
an excellent track record of growth,  
the vast majority of which has been 
organically driven. The scale of the 

 

increased by a compound annual growth 
rate of approximately 20% – such that 

one of Europe’s leading outsourced 
service providers to the health and 
beauty sector. 

 
to continue this track record through:
 – Driving continued growth with existing 

customers by leveraging the strength 
and depth of its product development 
and technical resources;

 – Attracting new customers with its  
high quality facilities, strong business 
development capability and highly 

service;
 – Enhancing and expanding its service 

with a particular focus on healthcare 
creams and liquids and sports 
nutrition; and

 – Expanding its market reach further  
in Continental Europe, organically and 
by acquisition.

Our high quality facilities, together with 
the strength and depth of our business 
development, product development  
and technical resources, has enabled  

 
a reputation for providing a highly 

customers and for assisting customers  
in rapidly bringing new products from 

DCC Healthcare’s vision is to build a substantial 
European healthcare business focused  
on the sales, marketing and distribution of 
pharmaceuticals and medical devices and the 
provision of contract manufacturing and related 
services for the health and beauty sector. 
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Customers
DCC Vital services approximately 15,000 
customers across all channels to market 
in Britain and Ireland (public and private 
hospitals, procurement groups, retail 
pharmacies, pharma wholesalers, 
community healthcare providers and 
GPs) as well as international distributors. 

market coverage in recent years, in 
particular through the acquisitions of 

May 2014), which provided DCC Vital with 
comprehensive access to GPs, community 
healthcare providers and dispensing 
doctors in Britain, and Kent Pharma 
(acquired in January 2013) which brought 
strong relationships with the major retail/
wholesale pharma groups, as well as 
direct reach to independent pharmacies. 
DCC Vital’s market position in the hospital 
sector was further enhanced in 
November 2014 with the acquisition  
of Beacon Pharmaceuticals. 

focuses on providing services to a broad 
customer base of international and local 
brand owners, direct sales companies 
and specialist retailers in the areas of 
nutrition and beauty products. DCC 
works with leading brand owners such  

Beauty, Ren and Vitabiotics; direct selling 

Best and Healthspan; specialist health 
and beauty retailers such as Apotheket, 

Barrett and pharma companies such  
as Actavis, Alliance Pharma, Astellas 

the geographic expansion of the 
customer base and today more than  
half of the output from our facilities is 
consumed in international markets 
outside of Britain. 

DCC Healthcare has a broad customer 
base and its ten largest customers 
account for approximately 26% of revenue 
in the year ended 31 March 2015.

Suppliers
DCC Vital works with leading innovative 
and generic pharma companies like Cipla, 
Fresenius Kabi, Grifols, Hikma, Martindale 
Pharma and Rosemont. The business also 
operates its own specialist manufacturing 
plant for beta lactam antibiotics in Ireland 
servicing customers in Britain, Ireland  
and international markets. DCC Vital 
represents leading medical, surgical  
and diagnostics device brands including 

from high quality raw materials and 
ingredient suppliers across the globe  
in order to provide customers with high 

 
with an increasing focus on sourcing 

 

DCC Healthcare’s supplier portfolio is 
broadly based with the top ten suppliers 
representing approximately 25% of 
revenue in the year ended 31 March 2015.

Our People
DCC Healthcare employs 1,980 people, 
principally based in Britain and Ireland, 
led by strong, entrepreneurial management 
teams. Training and education is critical in 
the healthcare sector and DCC Healthcare 
continually invests in ensuring that our 
people are experts in their respective 
product or service areas and are fully 
conversant with the relevant regulatory 
frameworks within which the business 
operates. DCC Healthcare continues to 

DCC Graduate Programme.

Continuous improvement in our 

performance is a key priority within DCC 
Healthcare. DCC Healthcare is investing  
to enhance and, where appropriate, 

across the business, including rolling  
out a common safety awareness and 
culture programme which leverages the 

 
in DCC Energy. 

Key Risks
DCC Healthcare operates in geographic 
markets where healthcare spending is 
predominantly funded (directly or indirectly) 
by governments. Our competitive product 
portfolio, strength in generics, growing 
range of value for money own brand 

is providing new growth opportunities 
and has helped in mitigating the impact  
of the economic downturn experienced 
over the last number of years and the 

healthcare budgets. We are committed  
to working closely with our suppliers  

 

constraints in the acute care sector.

We continually invest in technical and 
regulatory resources, quality systems, 

quality standards are consistently 
maintained and the requirements of the 
relevant regulatory authorities are met  
or surpassed. All our manufacturing  
sites are licensed and subject to ongoing 
regular internal and external third party 
audit reviews. 

DCC Healthcare trades with a very broad 
supplier and customer base and our 
constant focus on providing a value added 
service ensures excellent commercial 
relationships. Recent acquisitions such  

Pharmaceuticals have introduced new 
supplier relationships, an extended 
product portfolio and expanded customer 
reach. In the case of a very small number 
of key suppliers, principals and customers, 
their loss could have a serious operational 
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Environment 
DCC Healthcare continues to be focused 
on improving the environmental 
sustainability of its businesses and range 
of products and services. Many of our 
customers monitor our progress in this 
area and are keen to see their business 
and brands share in the successes  
we have been able to deliver on the 
sustainability agenda. In the last year,  

installed a solar renewable energy  
system at one of its manufacturing  
sites generating 225MWh of electricity, 
which will reduce carbon emissions  
by 170 tonnes per annum. The capital 
investment plan for this site provides  
for the installation of two wind turbines  
in the coming year which will further 

environmental credentials of the site. The 
business is also progressing a number  
of other energy management initiatives 
which are delivering reductions in carbon 
emissions, energy use and costs. Our 
contract manufacturing business 
continues to enhance its procurement 
capability in the area of sustainable 
ingredients and now also sources glycerol 
from sustainable palm oil and has received 
accreditation on the traceability and 

Performance for the Year 
Ended 31 March 2015
DCC Healthcare had another excellent 

(40.4% excluding Virtus Inc. which was 
disposed of in March 2014), approximately 
one quarter of which was organic. The 
business also increased its return on 

enhanced its market position and scale 

activity and the successful integration  
of recent acquisitions. 

DCC Vital recorded strong operating 

in the current and prior year and good 
organic growth. Williams Medical , which 

in line with expectations. This acquisition 
has given DCC Vital market leadership  
in the supply of medical devices, 
pharmaceuticals and related services  
to GP surgeries in Britain, as well as a 
growing business in supplying healthcare 
providers in the evolving community and 
domiciliary care sectors. DCC Vital now 

 
all sales channels in Britain and is well 

health and social care policies which are 
focused on shifting the point of care to 

away from acute care settings to primary 
and community care settings.

DCC Vital now offers 
comprehensive coverage 
across all sales channels in 
Britain and is well positioned 
to benefit from government 
health and social care policies 
which are focused on shifting 
the point of care to the  
most cost effective location, 
typically away from acute  
care settings to primary and 
community care settings.
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Operating margin

Grow operating margin 

Return on capital employed

Deliver superior  
shareholder returns

 
organic and acquisition growth  
and dividends

Deliver superior  
shareholder returns 

Revenue growth

Drive for enhanced  
operational performance

20.1%

Drive for enhanced  
operational performance

30.6%

DCC Vital recorded particularly good 
organic growth in hospital injectable 
pharmaceuticals, an area that was further 
enhanced by the acquisition of Beacon 
Pharmaceuticals in November 2014. 
Good growth was also achieved in 
medical devices including electrodes, 
diathermy consumables, anaesthesia 
products and gloves.

driven by integration synergies, margin 
improvement, good cost control and also 

from UPL, acquired in January 2014.  
The business is leveraging its increased 
market presence in the beauty area  
and its enhanced capability in the 
manufacturing of creams and liquids.  

operations have now been fully integrated 
into the larger tablet manufacturing 
facility in Britain with sales and regulatory 

 
on business development in the Nordic 

seeks to focus its resources on 
developing and manufacturing more 
complex, higher added value products  
on behalf of its customers. The business 
made good progress in this regard during 
the year which enabled it to improve its 
sales mix, particularly in nutritional soft 
gel capsules, and achieve higher margins. 

DCC Healthcare remains well placed to 
continue the strong record of growth  
and development across its business. 

DCC Healthcare KPIs
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Construction and demolition waste

DCC Environmental’s activities
External activities

Commercial and industrial waste

DCC Environmental – What we do

Continued

Market  
leader

13.2%9.9%

2014: 8.6%

Results

What we do

DCC Environmental is a leading 
British and Irish provider of 
recycling, waste management  
and resource recovery services  
to the industrial, commercial, 
construction and public sectors, 

hazardous and hazardous 
segments of the market. 
 
This year DCC Environmental 
handled approximately 1.9 million 
tonnes of waste through its twenty 
one facilities in Britain and Ireland. 
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EnergyMaterial recycling facility

Raw material for 
manufacturing

Markets and  
Market Position

DCC Environmental is a market leader  
 

 

Tracey brand, DCC Environmental 
operates a comprehensive recycling 
infrastructure across the central belt, 
including one of the largest material 
recycling facilities in Britain in Linwood, 
close to Glasgow airport. In the East 
Midlands, operating under the Wastecycle 
brand, DCC Environmental operates three 
material recycling facilities in Nottingham 
and Leicester along with a civic amenity 
site on behalf of Nottingham City Council. 
These facilities process waste, collected 
by both company owned and third party 
vehicles, into valuable commodities which 
can be used as a substitute for virgin 
materials. Both companies produce a fuel, 
from waste unsuitable for recycling, which 
is used in Continental European energy 
from waste facilities and, in addition,  
in the East Midlands, DCC Environmental 
has the added capacity to process material 
into a fuel which is used by the British 
cement industry. 

In hazardous waste management, also 
operating under the William Tracey brand, 
DCC Environmental is a market leader  

 
with three dedicated facilities providing  
a wide range of treatment solutions for 
hazardous waste. In addition, operating 
under the Oakwood Fuels brand, DCC 
Environmental is a leading national collector 
of waste oils. These oils are transported 
to Oakwood’s facility in Nottingham, 
where some are converted into a fuel 
which can be used as a substitute for 
heavy fuel oil and the remainder is 

Europe which process the oils into base 
oil which can be used to produce 
lubricating oil. 

DCC Environmental is constantly seeking 
to provide new innovative solutions to 
waste management, extracting greater 
value from material historically discarded, 
and thereby assisting in the development 
of a more sustainable circular economy. 
One such example is the treatment of  
ash from industrial kilns to create valuable 
products rather than simply sending  

Overall, the British business handles  
1.7 million tonnes of material, the majority 

 
of 227 vehicles, and 78% of all waste 

 

How we Create Value

Clear understanding of customers 
requirements.

Provider of innovative solutions  
for customers.

Respond quickly to opportunities 
arising from new regulations.

Absolute focus on recycling/recovery 
without the distraction of legacy  

Key Brands

Enva*, Wastecycle*, William Tracey*, 
Oakwood*.

* DCC owned brands
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DCC Environmental is leading the way  

fuels produced from waste to Continental 
European energy from waste plants and 
British cement kilns. As additional British 
energy from waste capacity is developed, 
it is envisaged that the material currently 
being exported to Continental Europe will be 
diverted to a new indigenous infrastructure. 

The improved economic backdrop has 
resulted in greater demand for waste 
services across the spectrum of services 
provided, particularly from the 
construction sector. Certain recycling 
activities, such as the treatment of local 
authority comingled waste, have seen 
excess capacity being removed from the 
market in recent times which has resulted 
in a more appropriate supply and 
demand balance. Excess capacity remains 
a feature of the waste oil collection 
market although some recent industry 
consolidation may help to address the 
issue. Recyclate prices have fallen in line 
with oil prices which has resulted in less 
value being derived from recycling. 

New waste regulations in England 
requiring the separate collection of paper, 

from 1 January 2015 following similar 
requirements being introduced in 

 
new regulations have coincided with  
DCC Environmental introducing new 
technology which allows for the tracking 
of material from the point of collection 
through to sale in local or international 
markets and also allows customers and 
regulators alike to understand both the 
volume and quality of material being 
produced. In addition the new systems 

the customer experience through sharing 
information via dedicated extranets or 
portals and providing customers with 
access to recycling rates or service levels.

Operating under the Enva brand,  
DCC Environmental’s Irish business is 
recognised as Ireland’s leading hazardous 
waste treatment company. Enva operates 
from six EPA/NIEA licensed sites in both 
the Republic of Ireland and Northern 

solutions to a wide range of waste 
streams for both multinational and 

infrastructure to treat a broad range  
of materials including waste oil, 
contaminated soils, bulk chemicals and 
contaminated packaging. In cases where 
it is unable to treat the waste itself, it has 
relationships with a network of European 
based companies to provide a range  
of solutions for hazardous waste which 
are not available in Ireland. Enva’s water 
treatment division provides specialised 
chemicals, equipment and professional 
services to the drinking, industrial and 
waste water sectors. The division 

facility as well as a fully accredited 
laboratory to support these services.

the Irish environmental sector is now 
 

from the recovery evident in the wider 
economy. DCC Environmental’s Irish 
business is now seeing the impact of the 
recovery which includes multinational 
customers announcing major 
investments in their Irish facilities and  

customer base. The business is ensuring 
that cost competitive gains obtained in 
recent years are retained and indeed built 
on and, as part of this process, some 
support functions are, where appropriate, 
being more closely aligned with other 
DCC companies.

The new systems will  
allow for a significant 
improvement in the customer 
experience through sharing 
information via dedicated 
extranets or portals and 
providing customers with 
access to recycling rates  
or service levels.
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Strategy and Development
DCC Environmental’s strategy is to grow 
as a leading broadly based waste 
management and recycling business in 
Britain and Ireland by positioning itself to 
take advantage of the trend towards more 
sustainable waste management, with a 
particular emphasis on resource recovery 
and recycling. 

DCC Environmental will ensure that it 
harnesses the opportunities arising from 
the recovery in the economies it operates 
in. The strategy includes delivering 

customers through a deep understanding 
of their requirements and the development 
of innovative solutions. Furthermore,  
DCC Environmental is aligning its business 
to support the transition to both a low 
carbon economy and the emerging 
circular economy through a focus on 
resource rather than waste, developing 
internal climate change expertise and 
continually improving its recycling capability. 

Customers
DCC Environmental provides recycling, 
waste management and resource recovery 
services to the industrial and commercial, 
construction and public sectors. 

The customer base is quite fragmented, 
with the ten largest customers accounting 
for approximately 25% of total revenue  
in the year ended 31 March 2015. Many  
of the customers have been with DCC 
Environmental for a long time, in some 
cases over 30 years, and the business  
has developed a clear understanding  
of their requirements.

Revenue split by customer

Industrial & commercial 65%

Construction & demolition 22%

Public sector 13%

 

Tracey converts  
a waste stream  
into a resource 

Industrial kilns such as those at paper 
mills and energy from waste plants  
use lime to ensure emissions meet 

the process is that an ash is produced 
which contains a high concentration of 
lime. Historically this ash was treated 

have developed a new infrastructure, 
unique to Britain, which is allowing  
the lime, a valuable commodity, to be 

recovered and used as substitute for 
virgin lime. In addition, once the lime is 
extracted, Tracey are now producing 
concrete blocks from the remaining ash, 
again reducing society’s consumption of 
virgin material. This represents a good 
example of the new ‘circular economy’  
in action.  
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Our People
DCC Environmental’s management have 
deep industry knowledge with a number 
of the former owners of the businesses 
still with the Group. Each company seeks 
to develop their employees as illustrated 
by a policy of promoting from within  
the organisation wherever possible. 
Employee engagement is critical and 
employee surveys are regularly undertaken. 

The businesses constantly strive for 
excellence in health and safety to ensure 
that a safe place of work is provided  
to all employees. The businesses seek to 
empower employees at all levels within 
the organisation to take a leadership role 
from a health and safety perspective. In 
addition the company actively encourages 
employees to make suggestions on how 
the businesses can become even safer 
and near miss reporting is promoted 
across the business. It was encouraging 
to see a decline in the number of lost time 
incidents in the second half of the year 

DCC Environmental currently employs 
1,020 people.

Key Risks

DCC Environmental faces a number of 
strategic, operational, compliance and 

Procedures and safety culture programs 
are in place to ensure that the risk of 
accidents, in particular, from the 
interaction of heavy plant and people  
is kept to an absolute minimum. 

and a disciplined approach to investment  

are delivering a gradual improvement  
in returns to more satisfactory and 
sustainable levels.

DCC Environmental has enhanced 
alignment between customer charges or 
rebates to movements in the underlying 
commodity value to counteract the 
exposures from negative movements in 
both recyclate and oil commodity prices.

Environment
The environment is at the core of DCC 
Environmental’s strategy in ensuring  
that the use of precious resources are 
reduced and reused. An example is the 

 
in the amount of waste lubricating oil  

 
in Continental Europe which process  
the oil into base oil which can be used  
to produce new lubricating oil.

During the year there have been  
a number of routine inspections by 
environmental regulatory agencies.  

licensing were recorded and all minor 
 

were actioned as a priority. DCC 
Environmental’s 21 sites continue to 
maintain excellent or good ratings  
from their respective regulators. 

The businesses constantly 
strive for excellence in health 
and safety to ensure that a 
safe place of work is provided 
to all employees. The 
business seeks to empower 
employees at all levels within 
the organisation to take a 
leadership role from a health 
and safety perspective. 
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Operating margin

Grow operating margin 

Return on capital employed

Deliver superior  
shareholder returns

Operating cash flow

 
organic and acquisition growth  
and dividends

10 year operating profit CAGR

Deliver superior  
shareholder returns 

Revenue growth

Drive for enhanced  
operational performance

9.9%

Operating profit growth

Drive for enhanced  
operational performance

13.2%

Performance for the Year 
Ended 31 March 2015
DCC Environmental recorded a strong 

13.2% and an improvement in its return 
on capital employed. 

Despite the impact in the year of 
sustained weakness in commodity prices, 
the British business performed strongly. 
Volumes grew by 18% primarily as a  
result of increased economic activity, 
particularly in the industrial and 
construction sectors, and good new 
business development initiatives. 
Underlying margins also improved aided 
by an increase in the proportion of waste 

and least environmentally sustainable 
disposal outlet.

The business successfully expanded its 
range of services, particularly to the 
waste water treatment sector. In addition, 

management and its continuing focus on 

DCC Environmental KPIs
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developments
We are very pleased with the overall 
performance of the Group in terms  

conversion and working capital 
management, improvements in returns 

level of development activity.

The Group’s long term track record  
of strong cash generation has enabled  
it to pay a growing dividend for the  
past 21 years and to support its  
growth and development strategy  
by making acquisitions and reinvesting  
in its businesses.

This Financial Review provides an overview 

the year ended 31 March 2015 and of the 
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Overview of Results

 
2014

Change on 
prior year

%

11,044.8

DCC Energy 110.5 +8.1%
DCC Technology 48.1 +2.6%
DCC Healthcare 30.4 +30.6%
DCC Environmental 11.7 +13.2%

200.7  +10.5%
Discontinued activities – DCC Food & Beverage 6.6

207.3  +10.1%
1.0

Finance costs (net) (21.4)
186.9 +6.8%

Amortisation of intangible assets (20.5)
Exceptional charge (net) (15.4)

151.0 +8.1%
Taxation (27.1)

(2.7)
121.2 +19.1%

191.20 +9.4%
184.09 +9.8%

Table 1: Performance Metrics

 11.0%
Volume growth – DCC Energy (%) 6.1%
Revenue growth – excl. DCC Energy (%) 22.4%

3.2%
Adjusted earnings per share growth (%) 11.7%

Return on average capital employed (%) 16.3%
346.9

Working capital days (days) (0.6)
Debtor days (days) 31.4

277.0
134%

EBIT:net interest (times) 9.7
EBITDA:net interest (times) 12.3
Cash balances (net of overdrafts) (£’m) 813.6
Net cash/(debt) (£’m) (87.3)
Net debt as a % of total equity (%) 9.1%
Net debt:EBITDA (times) 0.3

* Excluding exceptionals and amortisation of intangible assets

*** Continuing operations i.e. excluding DCC Food & Beverage.
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Table 2: Revenue – Continuing Operations
2014 Change

H1 H1 H2 FY H1
%

H2
%

FY
%

DCC Energy 4,093.4 4,150.3 8,243.7
DCC Technology 959.2 1,304.8 2,264.0 +8.2% +0.6% +3.8%
DCC Healthcare 195.1 211.4 406.5 +21.4% +18.8% +20.1%
DCC Environmental 64.9 65.7 130.6 +13.3% +6.6% +9.9%

5,312.6 5,732.2 11,044.8 +2.1%
Weighting % 48.1% 51.9% 100.0%

2014 Change

H1 H1 H2 FY H1
%

H2
%

FY
%

DCC Energy 33.5 77.0 110.5 +13.6% +8.1%
DCC Technology 14.1 34.0 48.1 +7.7% +0.5% +2.6%
DCC Healthcare 12.6 17.8 30.4 +26.7% +33.3 % +30.6%
DCC Environmental 6.3 5.4 11.7 +11.7% +14.8% +13.2%

66.5 134.2 200.7 +5.4% +13.0% +10.5%
Weighting % 33.1% 66.9% 100.0%

Revenue/Volumes
Volumes in DCC Energy increased by 5.7% 
over the prior year and on an organic 
basis were 1.2% ahead of the prior year. 
Average temperatures in Britain, DCC 
Energy’s largest market, were in line with 
the prior year although warmer than the 
ten year average. Due to the impact of 
lower oil prices, DCC Energy’s revenue 
declined by 7.5% (5.6% on a constant 
currency basis). 

Revenue from continuing activities, 
excluding DCC Energy, was up 6.5%  
(8.4% on a constant currency basis). 
Approximately a quarter of this growth 
was organic and was driven by the  
growth in DCC Technology’s Continental 

good organic growth in DCC Healthcare. 

Overall Group revenue from continuing 
activities decreased by 4.0% (2.1% on a 
constant currency basis) to £10.6 billion, 

activities increased by 10.5% to £221.7 
million. This growth was impacted by the 
movement in the rate used for translating 

sterling translation rate for the year 
ended 31 March 2015 of 0.7890 was 6.5% 
weaker than the average of 0.8441 in the 

constant currency basis was 11.9% and 
approximately one third of this growth 
was organic. 
 

Group’s largest division, was 8.1% ahead 
of the prior year (10.3% ahead on a 
constant currency basis). Approximately 
one third of this growth was organic with 

 
retail business which was acquired in  
May 2014. 

Group’s second largest division, was 
modestly ahead of the prior year (3.7% 

ahead on a constant currency basis) with 
growth from the UK & Ireland reseller 

business and a strong performance from 
the Continental European business, which 

CapTech, which was acquired in 

 
in the UK for tablet and smartphone 
products, following a particularly strong 
performance in DCC Technology’s UK 
business in the prior year. 

30.6% ahead of the prior year (40.4% 
excluding Virtus Inc. which was disposed 

time contributions from Williams Medical, 
acquired in May 2014, and UPL, acquired 
in January 2014, and also from a very 
strong organic performance in DCC 

was 13.2% ahead of the prior year as  
the recovery in the business continued  
in Britain and Ireland.

Continued
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Although DCC’s operating margin on a 
continuing basis (excluding exceptionals) 
was 2.1%, compared to 1.8% in 2014, it is 
important to note that this measurement 
of the overall Group margin is of limited 

in oil product costs on the percentage. 
While changes in oil product costs will 
change percentage operating margins, 
this has little relevance in the downstream 
energy market in which DCC Energy 

absolute contribution per litre (or tonne) 
of product sold and not by a percentage 
margin. Excluding DCC Energy, the 
operating margin on a continuing basis 
(excluding exceptionals) for the Group’s 
other divisions was 3.4% compared to 
3.2% in 2014.

An analysis of the performance for the 

ended 31 March 2015 is set out in Tables 
2 and 3.

A detailed review of the operating 
performance of each of DCC’s divisions  
is set out on pages 26 to 53.

The compound growth rate in DCC’s 

operations over the last 21,15,10 and  
5 years is as follows:

CAGR %

21 years (i.e. since 1994) 13.8%
15 years (i.e. since 2000) 13.4%
10 years (i.e. since 2005) 13.2%
5 years (i.e. since 2010) 6.9%

Change in Accounting Policy  
and Restatement 

Joint Arrangements has been 

ended 31 March 2015. Whilst the impact 
on the comparatives is not material,  
they have been restated accordingly. 
Further details are set out in note 4 to  

Finance Costs (net)

million (2014: £21.4 million) primarily as  
a result of the incremental interest cost  

year. Average net debt during the year  
of £309 million compared to £366 million 
in the prior year. Interest was covered  

before depreciation and amortisation  
of intangible assets (12.3 times in 2014). 

 
Items, Amortisation of Intangible 
Assets and Tax 

amortisation of intangible assets and tax 
increased by 6.8% to £199.6 million. 
 
Net Exceptional Charge and 
Amortisation of Intangible Assets
The Group incurred a net exceptional 
charge of £10.9 million as follows:

Restructuring costs
Acquisition related costs
Mark to market loss
Net gain on disposals 
Gain arising on pension 
curtailments
Other 

 
2014 Change on 

prior year

Adjusted earnings 160.2 +9.7%
Amortisation of intangible assets after tax (16.3)

(22.7)
121.2 +19.1%

 
 2014

pence
Change on 
prior year

191.20 +9.4%
Amortisation of intangible assets after tax (19.38)

(27.12)
144.70 +18.8%

The Group’s long term  
track record of strong cash 
generation has enabled  
it to pay a growing dividend 
for the past 21 years and  
to support its growth  
and development strategy  
by making acquisitions and 
reinvesting in its businesses.
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The Group incurred an exceptional 
charge of £23.9 million mainly in relation 
to restructuring of existing businesses 
and is inclusive of a goodwill impairment 
charge of £5.6 million.

Acquisition costs include the professional 
and tax costs (such as stamp duty) 
relating to the evaluation and completion 
of acquisition opportunities. During the 
year, acquisition and related costs 
amounted to £3.5 million.

Most of the Group’s debt has been raised 

swapped, using long term interest, 
currency and cross currency interest  

rate sterling and euro. The level of 

together with gains or losses arising from 
marking to market swaps not designated 

translation gains or losses on the related 
 

as an exceptional item. In the year ended 
31 March 2015 this amounted to an 
exceptional charge of £2.2 million.

year the Group disposed of its Irish Food 
& Beverage subsidiaries. The aggregate 
consideration from these disposals was 
£55.1 million and the disposals generated 
an exceptional gain, net of disposal costs, 
of £8.2 million. The remaining small UK 

as an asset held for sale at the balance 
sheet date. The sale of the subsidiary  
was completed on 28 April 2015. 

The restructuring of certain of the 
Group’s pension arrangements gave rise 
to an exceptional gain of £8.7 million. 

The balance of the exceptional items 
relates to a gain arising from the  
write back of contingent acquisition 
consideration no longer payable  
(£1.1 million) and a gain in relation to  
the Pihsiang legal claim (£0.9 million) 
where there was further modest  
cash recovery. 

The charge for the amortisation of 
acquisition related intangible assets 
increased to £25.4 million from £20.5 

completed in the current and prior year.

£163.3 million.

Taxation

decreased to 12% compared to 14% in 
the prior year. The decrease is primarily 

and a reduction in the UK corporation  
tax rate. 
 
Adjusted Earnings Per Share 
Reported adjusted earnings per share 
increased by 9.4% to 209.19 pence. On  
a continuing basis, adjusted earnings per 
share increased by 9.8% to 202.22 pence.

The compound annual growth rate in 
DCC’s adjusted earnings per share over 
the last 21,15,10 and 5 years is as follows:

CAGR %

21 years (i.e. since 1994) 12.2%
15 years (i.e. since 2000) 11.3%
10 years (i.e. since 2005) 10.3%
5 years (i.e. since 2010) 5.8%

Dividend
The Board is recommending an increase 

pence per share, which, when added to 
the interim dividend of 28.73 pence per 
share, gives a total dividend for the year 
of 84.54 pence per share. This represents 
a 10% increase over the total prior year 
dividend of 76.85 pence per share. The 
dividend is covered 2.5 times by adjusted 
earnings per share (2.5 times in 2014). It is 

23 July 2015 to shareholders on the 
register at the close of business on 
29 May 2015. 

Over its 21 years as a listed company, 
DCC has an unbroken record of dividend 
growth at a compound annual rate  
of 14.6%.

Return on Capital Employed
The creation of shareholder value 
through the delivery of consistent, long 
term returns well in excess of its cost of 
capital is one of DCC’s core strategic aims. 
Return on capital employed increased 
from 16.3% to 18.9% driven by the 

and strong working capital management. 
The return on capital employed by 
division was as follows:

Table 4: Return on Capital Employed
2014 

ROCE

DCC Energy 17.5%
DCC Technology 21.1%
DCC Healthcare 14.2%
DCC Environmental 8.6%
Group 16.3%

Cash Flow
The Group generated excellent operating 

summarised in Table 5.

million compared to £346.9 million in the 
prior year. Working capital reduced by 
£102.6 million with overall working capital 

Continued

Table 5: Summary of Cash Flows 
2014

207.3
Decrease in working capital 87.0
Depreciation and other 52.6

346.9
Capital expenditure (net) (69.9)

277.0
Dividend from equity accounted investments 0.6
Interest and tax paid (52.8)

224.8
Acquisitions (50.1)
Disposals 11.1
Dividends (62.1)
Exceptional items (21.1)

2.0
104.6

Opening net debt (186.6)
Translation and other (5.3)

(87.3)



Financial Statem
ents

Supplem
entary Inform

ation
G

overnance
Strategic Report 

days improving by 4.3 days to a  
negative 4.9 days sales. Working capital 
improvements were achieved across  
each of the Group’s divisions with overall 
Group inventory days reducing from  
16.4 days to 11.7 days. DCC Technology 

a portion of the receivables relating to 
certain larger supply chain/sales and 
marketing activities. The level of supply 

£148 million (31 March 2014: £123 million) 
and this had a positive impact on Group 
working capital days of 5.4 days (31 March 
2014: 4.0 days).

After capital expenditure of £63.3 million 

amounted to £314.5 million, an excellent 

cash. The conversion rate of operating 

before interest and tax payments) is an 
important measure as to how the Group’s 

The Group’s long term track record of 
strong cash generation has enabled it to 
pay a growing dividend for the past 21 years 
and to support its growth and development 
strategy by making acquisitions and 
reinvesting in its businesses.

Acquisitions and Capital Expenditure
Including the commitment to acquire 
Butagaz, committed acquisition  
and capital expenditure amounted  
to £617.4 million as follows:

 Acquisitions Capex  Total

DCC Energy 457.7 40.7 498.4
DCC Technology 39.7 8.0 47.7
DCC Healthcare 54.3 5.8 60.1
DCC Environmental – 8.2 8.2
DCC Food & Beverage 2.4 0.6 3.0

Committed acquisition expenditure 
amounted to £554.1 million. 

DCC Energy
Butagaz

 
 

 
 

granted exclusivity while it consults with 
its French Work Councils as required 
under French law. The acquisition of 
Butagaz would represent the largest ever 
acquisition by DCC and a major step 
forward in the continuing expansion of its 
LPG business. The French LPG market is 
the second largest in Western Europe and 
approximately twice the size of the 
market in Britain. The acquisition of 
Butagaz would provide DCC Energy with  
a substantial presence in the French LPG 
market, an experienced management 
team and a high quality sales, marketing 
and operating infrastructure. 

Key transaction features: 
 – Butagaz has a market share of  

leading LPG brand in France. 
 – Butagaz is market leader in the  

LPG cylinder and small bulk  
market segments and sells directly or 
indirectly to over four million customers.

 –
increase the scale of DCC’s LPG 
business from approximately 700,000 
tonnes to 1.2 million tonnes.

 –
 

(£338 million).
 –

(£53.9 million) with excellent  
cash conversion.

 – Underlying EBITDA and EBIT multiples 
of 3.8 and 6.2 respectively.

 –  
return on capital employed expected 
to be substantially above DCC’s cost  
of capital. 

Esso Retail France
As previously announced on 28 August 
2014, DCC reached agreement in principle 

comprise the Esso Express unmanned 
retail petrol station network and the  
Esso branded motorway concessions  
in France. The business to be acquired  
will have annual volumes of approximately  
1.9 billion litres. All of the relevant 
competition and legal clearances have 
now been received and the transaction is 
expected to complete by the end of June 
2015, once implementation of the IT and 
operational infrastructure required to 

The total consideration, inclusive of stock 
in tank at the date of acquisition, will be  

payable in cash on completion

DLG Denmark
In March 2015 DCC Energy agreed  
in principle to combine its Danish oil 
distribution business with the oil and 
wood pellet distribution activities of DLG, 
a leading Danish agricultural business. 
The transaction is subject to competition 
clearance and will result in DCC Energy 
owning 60% of the enlarged entity which 
will distribute approximately 400 million 
litres of oil and 180,000 tonnes of wood 
pellets and will be managed by DCC 
Energy’s existing management team.  
The cash impact of the transaction  
will be very modest. 
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DCC Technology 
CapTech

expanded its European footprint with the 
acquisition of CapTech Distribution AB, 

distribution business for an initial 
enterprise value of £15.7 million. With annual 
revenue of approximately £140 million, 
CapTech has a particularly strong market 
position in IT hardware and AV systems. 
CapTech partners with many of the 
world’s leading technology manufacturers 
and brand owners, including Acer, Asus, 

and sells to a very broad range of etail, 
retail and reseller customers.

Computers Unlimited
In May 2015, DCC Technology acquired 
Computers Unlimited (‘CU’) for an initial 
enterprise value of £24.0 million. CU is  
a consumer technology distributor 
operating primarily in the UK but also 

 
The business has annual revenue of 
approximately £140 million and is  
focused on the ‘Connected Home’ and 
professional design market. The business 
distributes a range of products that are 
complementary to those distributed  
by Exertis, including design software, 
printers, accessories and premium  
audio systems.
 
DCC Healthcare
Williams Medical
As previously announced on 3 June 2014, 
DCC Healthcare acquired Williams 
Medical, the market leader in the supply 
of medical and pharmaceutical products 
and related services to general practitioners 
(‘GPs’) in Britain. The consideration  
(which was paid in cash at completion) 
was based on an enterprise value of  
£45 million. Williams Medical supplies  
a wide range of own and third party 
branded products – medical equipment, 
consumables and pharmaceuticals –  
to a very broad customer base of 
approximately 10,000 GP practices and 
healthcare providers in the community 
care and domiciliary care sectors. The 
acquisition of Williams Medical represents 

material step forward for DCC Healthcare, 
following the acquisitions of Kent Pharma, 
Leonhard Lang UK and UPL over the last 
two years.

Beacon
In November 2014, DCC Healthcare 
acquired Beacon Pharmaceuticals Limited 
in a transaction based on an enterprise 
value of up to £10 million. Beacon is a 
niche pharma business which markets 
and sells its own licensed and third party 
pharma products primarily to the hospital 
sector in the UK. 

 

unmanned retail petrol station company, 
along with its related fuel distribution  
and fuel card businesses, previously 
announced on 17 February 2014, was 
completed on 12 May 2014 for a total 
consideration of £38.7 million. The 
consideration for the Esso Retail France, 
Butagaz, DLG Denmark and CU 
transactions will not be paid until these 
transactions complete in the year to 
31 March 2016. Accordingly, the cash 

 
ended 31 March 2015, inclusive of a net 
movement in deferred and contingent 
acquisition consideration of £7.8 million, 
was £123.5 million. 

Net capital expenditure in the year  
of £63.3 million (2014: £69.9 million) 
compares to a depreciation charge  
of £59.7 million (2014: £55.4 million). 

In its Interim Results announcement, the 
Group outlined the progress made by 
DCC Technology in integrating its UK 
businesses under the Exertis brand as 

sales proposition to its entire customer 
base. It also announced the 
commencement of a program to upgrade 
its ERP and logistics infrastructure to 

the preferred ERP platform and the 
implementation of this system will take 
place on a phased basis over the next two 
years. In addition, DCC Technology is 
developing a new purpose built, 450,000 
sq.ft. UK national distribution centre, 
close to the majority of its existing 
facilities, which will consolidate the 
activities of most of its seven existing 
warehouse facilities and provide capacity 
for further growth. The relocation to the 
new facility will be conducted on a staged 
basis and will begin in the year ending 
31 March 2017. The capital expenditure 
relating to these developments is of the 
order of £55 million, most of which will fall 
in the year ending 31 March 2016. 

Following the completion of these projects, 
apart from the capacity increases and 

is expected to be recouped from the 
disposal of the existing facilities owned by 
DCC Technology and from improvements 
in working capital.

With the cash impact of acquisitions in 
the year of £123.5 million and dividend 
payments of £66.1 million less the 
proceeds from disposals of £55.1 million, 

million in the year, leaving the Group  
in a modest net cash position at 31 March 
2015 of £30.0 million (31 March 2014: 
£87.3 million).

Balance Sheet and Group Financing 
DCC’s balance sheet remains highly liquid 
with the Group moving to a modest net 
cash position of £30 million at 31 March 
2015 (average net debt during the year  
of £309 million). The modest net cash 
position is before development 
expenditure committed during the year 
and since the balance sheet date of £465 
million which it is anticipated will be paid 
in the year ending 31 March 2016. The 
modest year end net cash position is net 
of term debt of £1.1 billion with an 
average maturity of seven years and an 
average credit spread over euribor/libor 
of 1.65%. 

included in the Group’s various lending 
agreements, are as follows:

2014
Actual

Lender
covenants

Net debt: 
EBITDA 0.3 3.5
EBITDA: 
net interest 12.3 3.0
EBITA: net 
interest 9.7 3.0
Total 
equity (£’m) 946.3 425.0

Further analysis of DCC’s cash, debt and 

2015 is set out in notes 27 to 30 in the 

DCC remains ambitious to continue the 
growth and development of its business. 
The Group’s strategy has always included 
maintaining a strong and liquid balance 
sheet to leave it well placed to take 
advantage of opportunities as they arise.  
To that end and cognisant that the Group  
is already committed to development 
expenditure totalling £465 million, the 
Board has today agreed a placing of new 

Continued
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the existing issued share capital of the 

funds raised from this placing will ensure 

further development while preserving the 
balance sheet strength that has served it 
well over many years.

Financial Risk Management

governed by policies and guidelines which 
are reviewed and approved annually by 
the Board of Directors. These policies  
and guidelines primarily cover foreign 
exchange risk, commodity price risk, 
credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate 
risk. The principal objective of these 
policies and guidelines is the minimisation 

 

instruments nor does it enter into any 
leveraged derivative transactions.  
DCC’s Group Treasury function centrally 
manages the Group’s funding and 
liquidity requirements. Divisional and 
subsidiary management, in conjunction 
with Group Treasury, manage foreign 
exchange and commodity price exposures 
within approved policies and guidelines. 
Further detail in relation to the Group’s 

 

Foreign Exchange Risk Management
DCC’s presentation currency is sterling. 
Exposures to other currencies, principally 

of ordinary trading.

net assets are denominated in euro. The 
sterling/euro exchange rate strengthened 
by 12.2% from 0.8282 at 31 March 2014 to 
0.7273 at 31 March 2015 and the average 
sterling/euro exchange rate at which the 
Group translates its euro denominated 

from 0.8441 in 2014 to 0.7890 in 2015.

Approximately 16% of the Group’s 

31 March 2015 was denominated in 
currencies other than sterling, primarily 
the euro. DCC does not hedge the 

to the extent that they are not intended 
to be repatriated. The strengthening of 
the average translation rate of sterling, 
referred to above, negatively impacted 

 
by £3.2 million in the year ended 
31 March 2015. 

primarily euro denominated, operations 
which are cash generative and cash 
generated from these operations is 
reinvested in development activities 
rather than being repatriated into 
sterling. The Group seeks to manage the 
resultant foreign currency translation risk 
through borrowings denominated in or 
swapped (utilising currency swaps or 
cross currency interest rate swaps) into 
the relevant currency, although this 

The 12.2% strengthening in the value of 
sterling against the euro during the year 
ended 31 March 2015, referred to above, 
was the main element of the translation 
loss of £15.0 million arising on the 

denominated net asset position at 
31 March 2015 as set out in the Group 

 

Where sales or purchases are invoiced  
in other than the local currency and there 
is not a natural hedge with other activities 
within the Group, DCC generally hedges 
between 50% and 90% of those transactions 
for the subsequent two months.

Commodity Price Risk Management
The Group is exposed to commodity cost 
price risk in its oil distribution and LPG 
businesses. Market dynamics are such 
that these commodity cost price 

oil commodity sales prices and, within a 
short period, in LPG commodity sales 
prices and in the resale prices of recycled 
oil products. Fixed price oil supply 
contracts are occasionally provided to 
certain customers for periods of less than 
one year. To manage this exposure, the 
Group enters into matching forward 
commodity contracts which are 

Group hedges a proportion of its 
anticipated LPG commodity exposure, 
with such transactions qualifying as 
‘highly probable’ forecast transactions for 

addition, to cover certain customer 
segments for which it is commercially 

proportion of LPG commodity price and 
related foreign exchange exposure is 
hedged. All commodity hedging 
counterparties are approved by the Chief 

reviewed by the Board.

Credit Risk Management
DCC transacts with a variety of high credit 

purpose of placing deposits and entering 
into derivative contracts. The Group 
actively monitors its credit exposure to 
each counterparty to ensure compliance 
with limits approved by the Board.

Interest Rate Risk and  
Debt/Liquidity Management
DCC maintains a strong balance sheet 

balances with deposit maturities up to 
three months. In addition, the Group 
maintains both committed and 
uncommitted credit lines with its 
relationship banks. DCC borrows at both 

31 March 2015, 83% of the Group’s drawn 

and cross currency interest rate swaps 
which qualify for fair value hedge 

mitigates interest rate risk on its 
borrowings by matching, to the extent 
possible, the maturity of its cash balances 
with the interest rate reset periods on the 
swaps related to its borrowings.

Investor Relations
DCC’s senior management team are 
committed to interacting with the 

ensure a full understanding of DCC’s 
strategic plans and its performance 
against those plans. During the year, the 
executive management presented at six 
capital market conferences, conducted 

group meetings and presented to 17 

On 4 June 2015, a Capital Markets Day will 

which will be attended by the Chairman 

Directors. Most of DCC’s top shareholders 
as well as various brokers, analysts and 
fund managers will be present at this 
Capital Markets Day. The previous 
Investor Day was held in June 2013.

Share Price and  
Market Capitalisation
The Company’s shares traded in the 
range £30.33 to £41.96 during the year. 
The share price at 31 March 2015 was 
£40.23 (31 March 2014: £32.60) giving  
a market capitalisation of £3.4 billion 
(2014: £2.7 billion). 
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DCC’s objective is build a sustainable business and  
a key element in achieving this objective is to ensure 
that our businesses operate responsibly and meet 
increasing societal expectations. By doing so we will 
enhance our reputation with stakeholders and 
protect the value we create over the longer term. 

Creating sustainable 
value for our 
stakeholders

Introduction
At a DCC Group level, there are four areas 
which are material to the sustainability  
of our businesses: our people, health & 
safety, ethics and compliance and the 
environment. Further details on each of 
these areas are provided below. Individual 
subsidiaries also have additional business 

ongoing sustainability, for example 
relationships with customers, suppliers, 
regulators and local communities, 
procurement of raw materials and supply 
chain integrity. Further information on 
these areas is included in the Operating 
Reviews and on subsidiary websites. 

 
on sustainability in line with the GRI3 
Reporting Guidelines. In 2013, the new 
version of these guidelines (G4) was 
issued. We are reviewing our approach  
to sustainability reporting to take account 
of this globally accepted standard and 
also the Integrated Reporting standard 
developed by the International Integrated 
Reporting Council (‘IIRC’), a coalition of 
regulators, investors, companies, standard 
setters, the accounting profession and 
NGOs. Ultimately, as sustainability 
continues to be embedded in standard 
management processes – strategy, planning, 
risk and performance measurement – its 
reporting will become further integrated 
into the Annual Report. 

the Annual Report, to 31 March 2015,  
and includes all Group subsidiaries. Joint 
ventures are not included in the LTI or 
carbon emissions data. There are no 

reporting periods in the scope, boundary 
or measurement methods applied in this 
Report and there is no restatement of 

 
Our People
At 31 March 2015, DCC employed  
10,220 people, broadly in line with last 
year, despite the sale of a number of 
businesses within the Food & Beverage 
division, as we continue to successfully 
extend our geographic footprint, 
particularly into Continental Europe, 

 
of 19% during the year in employee 
numbers in this geographic area.
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Diversity and Equal Opportunity
DCC recognises the variety of 
characteristics which make individuals 

 
a workforce with diverse skills, qualities 
and experience. The DCC Group policy 
statement on diversity and equal 
opportunities applies across the Group 
and our individual companies continue to 
focus on ways to increase the diversity of 
our workforce. In line with our commitment 
to create an inclusive workplace, all 
recruitment, selection and promotion 
decisions are made on individual merit.

Talent Development 
In support of our ambitious growth  
plans, we reported last year that we  
were revising our approach to the 
development of talent across DCC.  
We have now embarked upon a talent 
initiative, in conjunction with external 

provide us with a framework to select, 
assess and develop talent, which we plan 
to use to implement assessment and 
development programmes across the 
DCC Group. 

Graduate Programme
The talent development programme  
is complemented by the DCC Graduate 

years ago with the objective of creating a 
pipeline of high potential, emerging talent. 

graduates an exceptional opportunity to 
participate in three placements across 

The streams we hire into are business IT, 
business management, logistics, 
marketing and sales & marketing. 

cycle this year, we hired 15 graduates who 

bring the number of graduates hired 
since the programme began in 2010 to 
52. We have retained over 85% of the 
graduates who have completed the 
programme and they are now working in 
permanent roles in a variety of functions 
in a number of our businesses.

The DCC Graduate Programme is 
 

of the placements which ensure that 
graduates work on complex, critical and 
demanding projects. This, along with the 
diverse industry nature of the placements 
and regular learning modules, provide 

Our business leaders are delighted with 
the real contribution the graduates are 
making and by their clearly demonstrable 
development.

Corporate Giving
Across the DCC Group, subsidiaries 
support charities and local communities 

fundraising or the provision of particular 
skills and training. At a corporate level, 

and supports social entrepreneurs  
in growing their ideas from concept  
to reality, on a national scale.

Health & Safety

sets out the Board’s commitment to 
continually improving management 
systems and safety cultures – viewed as 
positive drivers of business performance. 
The policy is reinforced in our Business 
Conduct Guidelines.

Each Group business maintains 
appropriate health, safety and 
environmental management systems  
and, in some instances, these are 
accredited to international standards 

 

is a strong business case to do so. Risk 
control measures – technical, procedural 
and behavioural – are implemented and 

and to identify improvement opportunities. 

Within the Energy and Environmental 
divisions, formal governance structures 

and establish high level objectives and 
targets for the operating businesses. 
Communication of best practice, learning 
from events and the development of 
technical and safety standards is achieved 
through regular cross subsidiary meetings, 

experience within the Group. 

Process safety management is a key focus 

hazardous nature of the products we store 
and distribute. Process safety performance 
indicators are used to monitor the integrity 
of the safety critical assets, technology, 
competence and procedures that are in 
place to prevent a major accident occurring.

Health and Safety Performance
At Group level, two Lost Time Injury (‘LTI’) 
metrics are reported monthly by all 
businesses – Lost Time Injury Frequency 

Lost Time Injury (‘LTI’) 

39
36

42

53
48

1.91.71.9
2.32.5

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Number of lost time injuries 
per 200,000 hours worked (LTIFR)

Number of calendar days lost 
per 200,000 hours worked (LTISR)

60

40

20

4

2

6

After a number of years of improving 
performance, both LTI rates increased in 

and manual handling continue to be the 
primary causes of LTIs and while the 
majority result in minor injuries, each one is 
investigated to identify root causes in order 

Implementing safe systems of work and the 
development of personal risk awareness in 
a supportive safety culture are a constant 
focus of attention. We will redouble our 

objective of an injury free workplace for all 
employees and contractors.

UK 76%

Ireland 15%

Continental Europe 9%

Other  <1%

26

1,506 7,722

966

DCC employment by geographic area

526

1,020

60

1,980

1,941 4,693

DCC Energy 46%

DCC Technology 19%

DCC Healthcare 19%

DCC Environmental 10%

DCC Corporate  <1%

Joint ventures 5%

DCC employment by division
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occupational health and safety 
challenges. During the year, all of the 
businesses within the Environmental 
division began a programme of safety 
leadership training and employee 
engagement, with routine safety 
conversations and safety forums. Early 
feedback from these initiatives is positive 
and they have generated innovative 
safety improvements which are shared 
across the Group. 

In the Energy and Environmental divisions, 

metrics and targets, for example, in relation 
to driving performance, spills, near miss 
reporting, process safety indicators,  
are in place and reviewed at monthly 
management meetings. 

 
in business assurance across a number  
of industry sectors. Audits are risk  
based and systematically challenge the 

the subsidiary management systems. 
Audit results are reviewed with divisional 
management and presented to the Audit 
Committee and Board.

 
the Energy division to communicate  
key safety behaviours and golden rules. 
Regular interventions on particular 
themes, for example safe driving, risk 
awareness and manual handling, raise 
awareness and encourage safety 
communication at all levels within the 
organisation. Following a review of the 

subsidiaries have committed to 
implementing it within their businesses. 
Work is being completed to align the 

Ethics and Compliance
DCC seeks to achieve the highest 
standards of business ethics and 
compliance in all our activities. Ensuring 
that these standards are met is the 
responsibility of the leadership team in 

each business in the Group. They are 
supported in this regard by a central 
Group Compliance function and, in our 
Energy and Technology divisions, by 
dedicated compliance personnel. 

The key message of our Compliance 
Programme is that managers and 
employees across the Group should be 
‘Doing the Right Thing’ at all times. This 
means not merely following the laws and 
policies that apply to their work, but also 
exercising good judgement to ensure that 
their actions are seen as fair and reasonable. 

Business Conduct Guidelines 
Our Group Business Conduct Guidelines, 
which are available on our website, set 
out the standards that are expected of 
employees across the Group in a range  

bribery and corruption and dealings with 
customers and suppliers. 

During the year we revised and updated 
 

in the Group and in good compliance 
practice. These revised Guidelines were 
distributed to employees across the 
Group, supported by training and other 
suitable internal communications. As was 
the case previously, the new Guidelines 
are available in all of the principal 
languages used by our employees. 

Over 90% of employees in management, 

roles across the Group have completed 
detailed online training on the Guidelines. 
Employees in other roles received 

Compliance Policies and Training
The Group also maintains detailed 
policies on a range of relevant areas, 
complementing the general requirements 
set out in the Business Conduct 
Guidelines. The areas covered by more 
detailed policies include health and 

competition law, data protection,  
IT security, diversity and equal 
opportunities and share dealing. 
Depending on the nature of their role, 
employees of Group subsidiaries receive 
more detailed training on those policies. 
Having reviewed and updated our 
Business Conduct Guidelines during 
2014, we will be refreshing our other 
policies during the present year to ensure 

Group, current regulatory requirements 
and best practice. 

Whistleblowing 
Employees across the Group are 
encouraged to raise a concern if any  
of our activities are being undertaken  
in a manner that may not be legal or 
ethical. Concerns can be raised with a 
member of management in the business 
where the employee works, with the  
Head of Group Compliance or externally 

independent of DCC and available in 
multiple languages and on a 24 hour 
basis. Our internal policies make clear 
that retaliation against any employee  
who raises a concern is prohibited. 

The Audit Committee has oversight 
responsibility for the whistleblowing 
policy and how it operates.

Following an application made in late 
2014, DCC was recognised by Ethisphere 
as one of the World’s Most Ethical 

standards of business conduct and  
how that commitment is translated into 
practice through our compliance policies 
and procedures. 

Continued
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Environment
Operating in a range of industries,  
our businesses are subject to a number 

requirements covering waste, release  
to the environment and permitting. 

Producer responsibility for waste 
packaging and waste electronic and 
electrical equipment is regulated in all EU 
member states and DCC businesses meet 
their obligations through membership of 
national compliance schemes. 

The impact of spills and uncontrolled 
releases to the soil or groundwater is a 
particular concern to the oil businesses, 
both bulk and retail. Controls to maintain 
asset integrity, monitor tank levels and 
deliver products safely are in place to 
minimise both the likelihood and 
magnitude of spills. Where failures occur, 
swift clean up and remediation measures 
are implemented and lessons learnt are 
applied to prevent reoccurrence.

Businesses within the Environmental 
division operate under the strict 
conditions set out in their waste 
management licences and are subject  
to routine compliance inspections by  
the national regulators. All DCC 
Environmental businesses have 

environmental management systems  
to ensure robust controls are in place  
to minimise negative impacts on  
the environment. 

Energy and Climate Change 
The global challenge of climate change 
continues to drive policy and legislation  
at both EU and national level. Member 
states have implemented various 
mechanisms to support the achievement of 
targets including direct carbon taxes, levies 
on operational carbon emissions, subsidies 
for generation of renewable energy and  
the requirement for energy providers to 

projects in domestic markets. 

meet the requirements of Article 8(4) of 

aimed at raising awareness of energy  
use in larger companies. For DCC’s UK 

be undertaken in 2015 to address over 
90% of total energy consumption 
(electricity, natural gas, heating fuels  

 
will be submitted to the Environment 
Agency in advance of the December  
2015 deadline. 

All subsidiaries report energy use data  
on at least a quarterly basis to DCC’s 
cloud based IT platform. Energy data  
is converted to carbon emissions using 
conversion factors from DEFRA in the  
UK and in line with the international 
Greenhouse Gas Protocol. This information 
is used to comply with mandatory 
reporting requirements, for example,  
the UK Carbon Reduction Commitment 

the CDP, a global initiative, funded by the 
investment community, which encourages 
companies to publicly report their carbon 
emissions and the steps they are taking to 
address the challenge of climate change. 
DCC has been responding to the CDP 
since 2010 and DCC’s disclosure to the 

 
of Irish reporting companies.
 

In absolute terms, DCC carbon emissions 
increased marginally over the prior year 
to 128,000 tonnes CO2e. Increases in 
emissions from acquisitions during the 
period, full year contributions from earlier 
acquisitions and additional processing 

of some businesses and a milder winter, 
which reduced the need for heating of 

projects, including real time energy use 

consolidation of warehousing, vehicle 
engine monitoring and behavioural 
change. These initiatives result in both 
lower costs and lower carbon emissions. 

In relative terms the carbon intensity  
of DCC businesses has decreased by  
25% on a per £ revenue basis against  
a baseline of FY2011.

Absolute CO2e emissions  
(’000 tonnes) by source
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Strategic Report 

We have been engaged by the directors of 
DCC plc (‘DCC’) to perform an independent 
assurance engagement in respect of 
selected aspects of DCC’s sustainability 

Report for the year ended 31 March 2015 
(the Report).

What we did and our Conclusions
We planned and performed our work, 
summarised below, to obtain the 
evidence we considered necessary to 
reach our assurance conclusions on the 
carbon emissions data.

What we are Assuring (Selected 
Sustainability Information)
The carbon emissions data for the year 
ended 31 March 2015 marked with the 
symbol † presented in the Report (the 
carbon emissions data). 

The scope of our work was restricted to 
the carbon emissions data for the year 
ended 31 March 2015 and does not 
extend to information in respect of earlier 
periods or to any other information in  
the Report.

How the Information is Assessed 
(Reporting Criteria)
DCC’s Reporting Criteria 
(http://www.dcc.ie/~/media/Files/D/

emissions data is measured, recorded 
and reported.

Assurance Standard Applied1

Level of Assurance2

Limited Assurance.

Understanding DCC’s Reporting  
and Measurement Methodology
There is not yet an established practice 
for evaluating and measuring 
sustainability performance information. 

techniques used can result in materially 

organisations. It is therefore important  
to read and understand the Reporting 
Criteria at http://www.dcc.ie/~/media/

to evaluate and measure the carbon 
emissions data.

Limited Assurance Work Performed 
on the Carbon Emissions Information 
We performed the following activities:
 – Evaluated the design and 

implementation of key processes  
and controls over the carbon 
emissions data;

 – Assessed the source data used to 
prepare the carbon emissions data  

a sample of calculations;
 – Carried out analytical procedures  

over the carbon emissions data;
 – Examined on a sample basis the 

preparation and collation of the carbon 
emissions data, as well as making 
inquiries of management and others;

 – Performed site visits to seven sites  
to review systems and processes  
in place for managing and reporting  
on sustainability activities, and 
examined source documentation  
on a sample basis;

 –
disclosed on page 65 of the Report,  
we evaluated the methodology and 
basis of converting the original 
reported unit into carbon emission 
equivalent tonnes. We agreed a sample 
of emission factors back to the stated 
source (as detailed in the Reporting 
Criteria); and

 – Reviewed the carbon emissions  
data disclosures. 

Our Conclusions
As a result of our procedures nothing  
has come to our attention that indicates 
that the carbon emissions data for  
the year ended 31 March 2015 is not 
prepared in all material respects with  
the Reporting Criteria.

DCC’s Responsibilities
The directors of DCC are responsible for:
 – designing, implementing and 

maintaining internal controls over 
information relevant to the carbon 
emissions data;

 – establishing objective assessment  
and Reporting Criteria for preparing 
the carbon emissions data;

 – measuring DCC’s performance  
based on the Reporting Criteria; and

 – the content of the Annual Report.

Our Responsibilities
We are responsible for:
 – forming independent conclusions, 

based on our limited assurance 
procedures; and

 – reporting our conclusions to the 
directors of DCC.

This report, including our conclusions,  
has been prepared solely for the directors 
of DCC as a body in accordance with the 
agreement between us, to assist the 
directors in reporting DCC’s sustainability 
performance and activities. We permit this 
report to be disclosed in the Annual Report 
for the year ended 31 March 2015, to 
enable the directors to show they have 
addressed their governance responsibilities 
by obtaining an independent assurance 
report in connection with the carbon 
emissions data. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept or 
assume responsibility to anyone other than 
the directors as a body and DCC plc for our 
work or this report except where terms are 
expressly agreed between us in writing.

Chartered Accountants
Dublin, Ireland
18 May 2015

Notes

Engagements 3000 (Revised) – ‘Assurance 
Engagements other than Audits and Reviews  
of Historical Financial Information’ issued  

assessed against the Reporting Criteria. 

than limited assurance. The evidence gathered 
to support a reasonable assurance conclusion 
is greater than that gathered to support a 
limited assurance conclusion.

3.  We comply with the applicable independence 
and competency requirements of the 
Chartered Accountancy Regulatory Board 
(‘CARB’) Code of Ethics.

 



67

Financial Statem
ents

Supplem
entary Inform

ation
G

overnance
Strategic Report 

Group
Chief Executive Tommy Breen

Fergal O’Dwyer
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Head of Group HR Ann Keenan
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Head of Group Compliance Darragh Byrne
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John Barcroft 
Head of Group Tax Yvonne Divilly
Head of Group Treasury Niall Kelly
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Managing Director Donal Murphy
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Ben Jordan
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Chairman’s Introduction

to the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company to align them 
with the requirements of the new Act.  
An explanation of the proposed changes 
is set out in the Chairman’s Letter and 
Notice of Annual General Meeting.

Board Composition and Diversity 
The Board has a formal Board Diversity 
Policy in place and sees increasing 
diversity at Board level as important to 
achieving DCC’s business objectives.  
On an ongoing basis, we seek to ensure 
we have the right balance of skills, 
experience and diversity on the Board. 

David Jukes joined the Board as a 
non-executive Director on 31 March 2015. 
David has extensive experience of doing 
business at senior management and 
board levels. A successful divisional  
CEO, he has a strong international and 
commercial track record in the business 
to business trading and chemicals 
distribution sectors. 

We are also conscious of the merits  
of gender diversity on the Board,  
which currently comprises 30% female 
Directors. I would highlight that the 
Women on Boards Davies Review Annual 
Report 2015 ranks DCC at thirteenth in 
the FTSE 250 companies for its level of 
female Board representation. 

In 2015, the performance evaluation of 
the Board, its Committees and individual 

conducted by the ICSA, in accordance 
with the requirement under the Code to 
have it externally facilitated every three 
years. I am pleased to report that the 
results of this independent review were 
positive. A number of actions were agreed 
which will be implemented during the 
current year. More information on this 
process can be found on page 75 of  
this report.

Development
As part of their ongoing training and 
development, the non-executive Directors 
made a number of site visits to Group 
subsidiaries during the year ended March 
2015. I personally review Directors’ training 
needs with each Director individually to 
ensure that those needs are matched with 
appropriate internal presentations and 
external events. 

Independence and Re-Election
There are seven non-executive Directors 
and three executive Directors on our 
Board. We recently conducted our annual 
review of the independence of non-

that each of the non-executive Directors  
is independent. As noted in the Code, the 
test is not appropriate to myself, but I did 

the date of my appointment as Chairman. 
In accordance with the Code and our 
practice, all of the Directors will be 
presenting themselves for re-election at 
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 
Further detail on the independence of non-
executive Directors is set out on page 73.

Board Meeting Balance
The intention at Board meetings is to 
achieve an appropriate balance between 
strategic, operational, regulatory and 
other matters. I regularly monitor the 
amount of time devoted to each category 
of business to ensure that we maintain 
the required balance.

Board Committees
Our Board Committees have continued to 

77 to 104 a detailed report introduced by 
the Chairman of each Committee, setting 
out its membership and an overview of its 
activities during the year.

John Moloney
Chairman

As Chairman, one of my primary responsibilities is to 
uphold and promote high standards of integrity, probity 
and corporate governance.

Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Board of DCC, I am 
happy to report full compliance with  
the 2012 version of the UK Corporate 
Governance Code (‘the 2012 Code’),  
which applied to DCC for the year ended 
31 March 2015. We believe that we have  
a strong governance framework, that we 
maintain robust structures, processes 
and procedures to support the principles 
of good corporate governance and that 
they are well applied.

A revised version of the Code was issued 
by the Financial Reporting Council on 
17 September 2014 (‘the 2014 Code’) and 

after 1 October 2014 – in DCC’s case for 

Nomination and Governance Committee 
and the Board have reviewed the new 
requirements in the 2014 Code and are 

fully with these requirements.

The Irish Companies Act 2014 is due to  
be commenced on 1 June 2015 and will 

 
The new Act consolidates all existing Irish 
company law provisions and introduces 

result, we will be putting a resolution to 
the shareholders at the Annual General 
Meeting in respect of proposed changes 
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John Moloney 
BAgrSc, MBA 

Tommy Breen 
BSc (Econ), FCA

Fergal O’Dwyer 
FCA

Donal Murphy 
B Comm, BFS, MBA 

David Byrne 
SC

Non-executive Chairman; 
Chairman, Nomination and 
Governance Committee;
Member, Remuneration 
Committee

Nationality: Irish

Chief Executive 

Nationality: Irish

Chief Financial Officer
Age: 55
Nationality: Irish

Managing Director  
– DCC Energy
Age: 49
Nationality: Irish

Non-executive Deputy 
Chairman and Senior 
Independent Director;
Member, Remuneration 
Committee; Member, 
Nomination and 
Governance Committee

Nationality: Irish
Joined Board

Mr. Moloney joined the Board 
in February 2009. He was 
appointed non-executive 
Chairman in September 2014, 
following Michael Buckley’s 
retirement as a non-executive 
Director and Chairman of the 
Company.

Mr. Breen joined the Board  
in February 2000.

Mr. O’Dwyer joined the Board 
in February 2000.

Mr. Murphy joined the Board Mr. Byrne joined the Board 
and was appointed Deputy 
Chairman and Senior 
Independent Director in 
January 2009.

Key strengths

Mr. Moloney has extensive top 
management and board level 
experience internationally and 
domestically in the dairy, meat 
and nutritionals sectors, 
covering processing, 
marketing and distribution. 

Mr. Breen has worked across 
a broad range of sectors and 
businesses during his 29 
years with the DCC Group. 
During this time he has gained 
significant experience of 
growing businesses 
organically and by acquisition.

He has worked in DCC in 
senior management 
positions for over 25 years 
and during that time he has 
worked closely with all of the 
Group’s material operating 
companies on a range of 
financial management, 
treasury and strategic and 
development matters.

Mr. Murphy has extensive 
experience in managing DCC 
businesses in a number of 
industry sectors and in 
leading the acquisition and 
integration of numerous 
businesses, particularly in  
the Energy sector.

Mr. Byrne has practised at the 
top of the legal profession. His 
international commercial 
experience at board and 
advisory level ranges across 
the food, healthcare and 
environmental sectors.

Previous board and management experience

He is a former Group 
Managing Director of Glanbia 
plc prior to which he worked 
with the Department of 
Agriculture, Food and Forestry 
as well as in the meat industry 
in Ireland. He is a former 
council member of the Irish 
Business and Employers 
Confederation.

previously worked with KPMG, 
and has held a number of 
senior management positions 
within the Group, including 
Managing Director of the 
Energy, Technology and 
Environmental divisions.  
He was appointed Chief 
Operating Officer of DCC in 

became Group Managing 
Director in July 2007. He was 
appointed Chief Executive in 

Mr. O’Dwyer joined DCC in 

Financial Officer in 1994, 
having worked in that role in 
the lead up to DCC’s flotation 
in that year. Prior to joining 
DCC, he previously worked 
with KPMG and Price 
Waterhouse in audit and 
corporate finance.

He joined DCC as Head of 

previously worked with  
Allied Irish Banks plc. 
He was Managing Director of 
DCC Technology from 2004  

appointed Managing Director 
of DCC Energy.

Following 27 years of practice 
as a barrister, he was Attorney 
General of Ireland from 1997 
to 1999. Mr. Byrne served  
as the first EU Commissioner 
for Health and Consumer 
Protection from 1999 to 2004. 
Following this, he served  
as Special Envoy of the 
Director-General of the World 
Health Organisation advising 
on the International Health 
Regulations. He has previously 
been a member of the boards 
of public and private 
companies, including Kingspan 
Group plc, The National 
Concert Hall (Chairman) and 
Irish Life & Permanent plc.  
He is the immediate past chair 
of the National Treasury 
Management Agency Advisory 
Committee and is Chancellor 
Emeritus of Dublin City 
University. 

External appointments

Chairman of Coillte Teo (the 
Irish State Forestry Company) 
and a non-executive director 
of Greencore Group plc, 
Smurfit Kappa plc and a 
number of private companies.

A non-executive director of 
Essentra plc.

No external director 
appointments.

No external director 
appointments.

A member of the Kikkoman 
International Advisory Board. 
Chair of the European Alliance 
for Personalised Medicine in 
Brussels and a Council 
Member of the Royal College 
of Physicians of Ireland.

Board of Directors
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Róisín Brennan 
BCL, FCA 

David Jukes Pamela Kirby 
BSc, PhD

Jane Lodge 
BSc, FCA

Leslie Van De Walle

Non-executive Director;
Member, Audit Committee
Age: 50
Nationality: Irish

Non-executive Director;
Member, Audit Committee

Nationality: British

Non-executive Director;
Member, Remuneration 
Committee

Nationality: British

Non-executive Director;
Chairman, Audit Committee

Nationality: British

Non-executive Director;
Chairman, Remuneration 
Committee; Member,  
Audit Committee;  
Member, Nomination and 
Governance Committee
Age: 59
Nationality: French

Joined Board

Ms. Brennan joined the Board 
in September 2005. 

Mr. Jukes joined the Board  
in March 2015.

Dr. Kirby joined the Board  
in September 2013.

Ms. Lodge joined the Board  
in October 2012.

Mr. Van de Walle joined the 
Board in November 2010.

Key strengths

Ms. Brennan has over 20 
years’ experience advising 
companies on mergers and 
acquisitions, takeovers, 
disposals, fundraisings and 
initial public offerings. 

Mr. Jukes is a successful 
divisional CEO with a strong 
international and commercial 
track record in the Business  
to Business and Chemicals 
Distribution sectors.

Dr. Kirby has extensive 
knowledge of the international 
healthcare sector, having 
worked in the pharmaceutical 
industry for more than twenty 
five years. Dr. Kirby serves  
on the board of a FTSE 100 
company and is the chairman 
of a company listed on the 
NASDAQ stock exchange. 

Ms. Lodge, as a senior audit 
partner for 25 years, has 
extensive experience with 
multinational manufacturing 
companies and her strategic 
work with Deloitte has given 
her a substantial international 
business perspective. She  
has very strong and recent 
financial skills to bring to the 
Audit Committee.

Mr. Van de Walle has a very 
wide range of international 
senior management business 
experience, as well as 
experience as a non-executive 
director, in the oil and gas 
sector, in the food and drinks 
industry, in manufacturing,  
in building materials and in 
the insurance sector.

Previous board and management experience

She is a former Chief 
Executive of IBI Corporate 
Finance where she worked 
from 1990 until 2011. She is a 
former non-executive director 
of The Irish Takeover Panel.

From July 2009 to January 
2011, Mr. Jukes served as  
Vice President, Sales and 
Marketing Univar EMEA and 
from 2002 to 2009 as Chief 
Executive of Distrupol Europe, 
Univar UK, Ireland and the 
Nordics. Prior to joining 
Univar, Mr. Jukes was Senior 
Vice President of Global Sales, 
Marketing and Industry 
Relations for Omnexus, a 
plastics industry consortium 
e-commerce platform and VP 
Business Development for 
Ellis & Everard Plc.

She held senior UK and global 
management positions in 
AstraZeneca PLC and in F. 
Hoffman-La Roche Ltd., where 
she was Director of Global 
Strategic Marketing. Dr. Kirby 
is also a former CEO of 
Quintiles Transnational 
Corporation in the USA,  
the leading global provider  
of biopharmaceutical 
development and commercial 
outsourcing services. She  
was also previously a 
non-executive director of 
Novo Nordisk A/S, Informa plc 
and Smith and Nephew plc. 

Until 2011, Ms. Lodge was  
a senior audit partner with 
Deloitte, where she spent  
over 25 years advising global 
manufacturing companies. 
She was also the Deloitte 
partner in charge of the firm’s 
UK manufacturing industry 
sector, where she was 
responsible for strategy and 
marketing, and was a member 
of the Deloitte Global 
Manufacturing Executive.  
She was a member of the CBI 
Manufacturing Council until 
2011. While at Deloitte, she 
served a term on the Board  
of Partners of Deloitte UK  
and also co-chaired a global 
team of partners to review  
the strategy of the Global 
Deloitte Firm.

He is a former non-executive 
director of Aviva plc and 
former Chief Executive Officer 
of Rexam plc. He previously 
held a number of senior 
executive roles in Royal Dutch 
Shell plc, including Executive 
Vice President of Retail for  
Oil Products and Head of Oil 
Products, Shell Europe. He 
has also held a number of 
senior management positions 
with Cadbury Schweppes plc 
and United Biscuits plc where 
he was CEO. He was also a 
non-executive director of 
Aegis Group plc from 2003  
to 2009.

External appointments

A non-executive director of 
Coillte Teo (the Irish State 
Forestry Company) and of 
UTV Media plc.

President of Univar EMEA. Non-executive Chairman  
of Scynexis Inc and a 
non-executive director  
of Victrex plc, Hikma 
Pharmaceuticals plc and 
Reckitt Benckiser Group plc.

A non-executive director  
of Devro plc and of Costain 
Group PLC and a director of a 
number of private companies.

Non-executive Chairman of 
SIG plc and of Robert Walters 
plc and a non-executive 
director of Cape plc.
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DCC plc – Corporate Governance Framework

Remuneration 
Committee

Nomination  
and Governance 

Committee

Audit 
Committee

Senior
Management 

Group

Executive 
Risk Committee

Sustainability 
Committee

Board of Directors

Chief Executive

Corporate Governance Statement

The Board of Directors
Role
The Board of DCC comprises the 
non-executive Chairman, six other 
non-executive Directors and three 
executive Directors, including the Chief 
Executive. It is collectively responsible  
for the long term success of the Group.  
Its role is to provide leadership, to 
oversee management and to ensure that 
the Company provides its stakeholders 
with a balanced and understandable 
assessment of the Group’s current 
position and prospects.

The Board’s leadership responsibilities,  
in the interest of delivering long term 
value to shareholders, involve working 
with management to set corporate  
values and to develop strategy, including 
deciding which risks it is prepared to  
take in pursuing its strategic objectives. 
Its oversight responsibilities involve  
it in constructively challenging the 
management team in relation to 
operational aspects of the business, 
including approval of budgets, and 
probing whether risk management and 
internal controls are sound. It also is 
responsible for ensuring that accurate, 
timely and understandable information is 
provided about the Group to shareholders, 
debt providers and regulators.

The Board has delegated responsibility 
for management of the Group to the Chief 
Executive and his executive management 
team. The main areas where decisions 
remain with the Board are summarised 
on page 73.

The Board has delegated some of its 
responsibilities to Committees of the 
Board. The composition and activities of 
these Committees are detailed in their 
individual reports on pages 77 to 104. 
The Board receives reports at its meetings 
from the Chairmen of each of the 
Committees on their current activities.

A clear division of responsibility exists 
between the Chairman, who is non-
executive, and the Chief Executive.  
Each of their responsibilities have been 
set out in writing and have been approved 
by the Board.

There is an established procedure for 
Directors to take independent professional 
advice in the furtherance of their duties,  
if they consider this necessary.

This statement describes DCC’s governance principles  
and practices.

For the financial year ended 31 March 2015, DCC’s 
corporate governance practices were subject to the 2012 
version of the UK Corporate Governance Code, which was 
issued by the FRC in September 2012 (‘the 2012 Code’).

This statement details how DCC has applied the principles 
and complied with the provisions set out in the 2012 Code. 
We can confirm full compliance with the 2012 Code.

A revised version of the Code was issued by the FRC  
on 17 September 2014 (‘the 2014 Code’) and applies  
to financial periods beginning after 1 October 2014 –  

We have identified the new requirements emanating from 
the 2014 Code, with the objective of ensuring that DCC  
will be fully compliant with the 2014 Code for the financial 

Copies of both versions of the Code can be obtained from 
the FRC’s website, www.frc.org.uk.
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Schedule of Matters Reserved  
for the Board
The Schedule of Matters Reserved for  
the Board has been reviewed during  
the year to ensure it meets with current 
best practice, in particular guidance as 
issued by the UK Institute of Chartered 
Secretaries and Administrators (‘ICSA’). 

The schedule includes the matters set  
out below:
 – Group strategy.
 – Annual budget.
 – Interim and Annual Accounts.
 – Oversight of the Group’s operations.
 – Major acquisitions and disposals.
 –

proposals. 
 – Approval of changes to the Group’s 

capital structure.
 – Appointment of Directors.
 – Dividend policy and dividends.
 – Treasury policy.
 – Risk management strategy.

Chairman
The Chairman’s primary responsibility is  
to lead the Board, to ensure that it has  

 
group and at individual Director level  
and that it upholds and promotes high 
standards of integrity, probity and 
corporate governance. 

The Chairman is the link between  
the Board and the Company. He is 

relationship with the Chief Executive,  

communications with shareholders and 
for ensuring that members of the Board 
develop and maintain an understanding 
of the views of shareholders. 

 
year, having consulted with the other 
Directors and the Company Secretary,  
the Chairman sets a schedule of Board 
and Committee meetings to be held in 
the following two years, which includes 
the key agenda items for each meeting. 
Further details on these agenda items  
are outlined under ‘Board Meetings’ on 
page 74.

Deputy Chairman and Senior 
Independent Director
The duties of the Deputy Chairman  
(who is also the Senior Independent 
Director) are set out in writing and 
formally approved by the Board. The 
Deputy Chairman chairs meetings of the 
Board if the Chairman is unavailable or is 

He also leads the annual Board evaluation 
of the performance of the Chairman.

The Senior Independent Director is 
available to shareholders who may have 
concerns that cannot be addressed 
through the Chairman or Chief Executive.

Company Secretary
The Directors have access to the advice 
and services of the Company Secretary, 
whose responsibilities include ensuring 
that Board procedures are followed, 
assisting the Chairman in relation to 
corporate governance matters and 
ensuring compliance by the Company with 
its legal and regulatory requirements. 

Appointment of Directors
The Nomination and Governance 
Committee formally agrees criteria  
for new non-executive Director 
appointments, including experience of 
the industry sectors and geographies  
in which the Group operates and 
professional background, and has regard 
to the need for a balance in relation to 
diversity, including gender. The detailed 
appointment process is set out in the 
Nomination and Governance Committee 
Report on page 103.

Following appointment by the Board,  
all Directors are, in accordance with  
the Articles of Association, subject to 
re-election at the following Annual 
General Meeting (‘AGM’). In accordance 

provisions of the Code, all Directors 
submit to re-election at each AGM.

The expectation is that non-executive 
Directors would serve for a term of six 
years and may also be invited to serve  
an additional period thereafter, generally 
not extending beyond nine years in total. 
After three years’ service, and again after 
six years’ service, each non-executive 
Director’s performance is reviewed by the 
Nomination and Governance Committee, 
with a view to recommending to the 
Board whether a further period of service 
is appropriate, subject to the usual annual 
approval by shareholders at the AGM.

The terms and conditions of appointment 
of non-executive Directors are set out in 
their letters of appointment, which are 
available for inspection at the Company’s 

hours and at the AGM of the Company.

Details of the length of tenure of each 
Director on the Board is set out in the 
Nomination and Governance Committee 
Report on page 102.

Induction and Development of Directors
New non-executive Directors undertake  
a structured induction process which 
includes a series of meetings with Group 
and divisional management, detailed 
divisional presentations, visits to key 

the external auditor.

The Chairman invites external experts to 
attend certain Board meetings to address 
the Board on developments in corporate 
governance, risk management and 
executive remuneration and on relevant 
industry and sectoral matters. 

The Chairman and Company Secretary 
review Directors’ training needs, in 
conjunction with individual Directors,  
and match those needs with appropriate 
external seminars and speakers. The 
Chairman also discusses individual training 
and development requirements for each 
Director as part of the annual evaluation 
process and Directors are encouraged to 
undertake appropriate training on relevant 
matters. In addition, a non-executive 
Director electronic library is available 
which is regularly updated with relevant 
publications and changes in legislation. 

Non-executive Directors are expected to 
meet individually during the year, outside 
of Board meetings, with members of 
senior management throughout the Group 
and to visit a number of subsidiaries to 
familiarise themselves with the business  
in more detail than is possible during 
Board meetings. 

All Directors are encouraged to avail  
of opportunities to hear the views of  
and meet with the Group’s shareholders 
and analysts. The section on ‘Relations 

further information on opportunities  
for Directors to meet with the Group’s 
shareholders.

Independence
The Board has carried out its annual 
evaluation of the independence of each  
of its non-executive Directors, taking 
account of the relevant provisions of  
the Code, namely whether the Directors 
are independent in character and 
judgment and free from relationships  
or circumstances which are likely to  

 
the Directors’ judgment. 

independence requirements of the Code. 
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In relation to Róisín Brennan, who  
has now served as a Director for nine  
and a half years, the Board is entirely 

independent in the discharge of her 
responsibilities as a Director.

John Moloney has been Chairman of the 
Company since September 2014. On his 
appointment as Chairman, Mr Moloney 
met the independence criteria as set out 
in the Code. Thereafter, as noted in the 
Code, the test of independence is not 
appropriate in relation to the Chairman.

While Mr Moloney holds several other 
directorships outside of the DCC Group, 

interfere with the discharge of his duties 
to DCC. 

Board Meetings
A schedule of Board and Committee 
meetings is circulated to the Board for  
the following two years, which includes 
the key agenda items for each meeting. 
Board papers are circulated electronically 
in the week preceding the meeting. 
During the year ended 31 March 2015, the 
Board held thirteen meetings. Individual 
attendance at these meetings and 
attendance at Committee meetings is set 
out in the table opposite. There is regular 
contact as required between meetings in 
order to progress the Group’s business. 

The key recurrent Board agenda themes 
are divided into normal business (which 

investor relations, human resources and 
governance, risk and compliance) and 
developmental issues (which include 
strategy, acquisitions, sectoral and 
divisional reviews, succession planning, 
management talent development and 
Directors’ education). The Board also 
conducts a detailed review of post-
acquisition business performance.

One and a half days of a two day Board 
meeting each December are devoted 
exclusively to strategy and three year 
plans. During the year under review,  
the Board devoted substantial time 
outside its December meeting to strategic 
development issues, including in Energy 

reviews of the Fuel Card and the Retail 
operations, in Technology an overall 

 
of the French businesses and in 

 
DCC Vital businesses and new product 
development in DCC Health & Beauty. 

agenda item on succession planning and 
management talent development. Against 
a template agreed by the Chief Executive 
and the Nomination and Governance 
Committee, the Chief Executive brings  
a detailed plan for review by that 
Committee. At an immediately subsequent 
Board meeting the plan is presented to 
the Board, discussed and approved.

The non-executive Directors meet a 
number of times each year without 
executives being present.
 
Audit Committee 
The primary function of the Audit 
Committee is to assist the Board in 

responsibilities. Further details of the 
activities of the Audit Committee are  

Remuneration Committee 
The Remuneration Committee is 
responsible for determining the 
Remuneration Policy and conditions  
of employment for executive Directors 
and senior management. Further details 
of the activities of the Remuneration 
Committee are set out in the Remuneration 

Nomination and  
Governance Committee 
The Nomination and Governance 
Committee is responsible for considering 
the size, composition and structure  
of the Board and succession planning 
requirements and for monitoring the 
Company’s compliance with corporate 
governance, legal and best practice 
requirements. Further details of the 
activities of the Nomination and 
Governance Committee are set out  
in its Report on pages 101 to 104.

Chief Executive
The Chief Executive has day to day 
management responsibility for the 
running of the Group’s operations and  
for the implementation of Group strategy 
and policies agreed by the Board. The 
Chief Executive also has a key role in the 
process for the setting and review of 
strategy. The Chief Executive instils  
the Company’s culture and standards, 
which include appropriate corporate 
governance throughout the Group.  
In executing his responsibilities, the  
Chief Executive is supported by the  

Secretary, who, together with the Chief 
Executive, are responsible for ensuring 
that high quality information is provided 

strategic performance.

Board of Directors: Attendance at meetings during the year ended 31 March 2015:

Board Audit Committee
Remuneration 

Committee

Nomination and 
Governance 
Committee

Director A B A B A B A B

John Moloney1 13 13 2 2 5 5
Tommy Breen 13 13 – – – – – –
Róisín Brennan2 13 13 4 4 3 3 2 2
David Byrne 13 13 – – 7
David Jukes3 1 1 – – – – – –
Pamela Kirby4 13 12 – – 5 5 – –
Jane Lodge 13 13 – – – –
Donal Murphy 13 13 – – – – – –
Fergal O’Dwyer 13 13 – – – – – –
Leslie Van De Walle 13 13
Michael Buckley5 – – 3 3 4 4
Kevin Melia 4 3 2 2 – – – –

Column A indicates the number of meetings held during the period the Director was a member of the Board 
and/or Committee.
Column B indicates the number of meetings attended during the period the Director was a member of the Board 
and/or Committee.

1. John Moloney left the Audit Committee and was appointed to the Remuneration Committee and the 
Nomination and Governance Committee on 1 June 2014.

2. Róisín Brennan left the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination and Governance Committee and was 
appointed to the Audit Committee on 1 June 2014.

3. David Jukes was appointed to the Board on 31 March 2015.
4. Pamela Kirby was appointed to the Remuneration Committee on 1 June 2014.
5. Michael Buckley retired as Chairman and non-executive Director on 30 September 2014.
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Executive Directors
The executive Directors support the  
Chief Executive in devising and executing 
strategy and in overseeing the operational 
performance of the whole business.

Executive Risk Committee
The responsibilities of the Executive Risk 
Committee are set out in the Risk Report 
on page 11.

Senior Management Group
The Senior Management Group reports 
to the Chief Executive at weekly 
management meetings.

Sustainability Committee
The Sustainability Committee is 
responsible for monitoring developments 
in corporate sustainability and identifying 
how these can be used to augment and 
strengthen our businesses.

Remuneration
It had been the Company’s practice since 
2009 to put the Remuneration Report  
to an advisory, non-binding shareholder 
vote at the AGM. 

At the 2014 AGM, two separate advisory, 
non-binding resolutions on the 
Remuneration Policy and on the Annual 
Report on Remuneration were put to 
shareholders. 

At the 2015 AGM, the Annual Report on 
Remuneration will be put to an advisory, 
non-binding shareholder vote. As the 
Remuneration Policy remains unchanged, 
it will not be put to a shareholder vote.

Share Ownership and Dealing
Details of the Directors’ interests in DCC 
shares are set out in the Remuneration 
Report on pages 97 to 99. 

The Board has adopted the DCC Share 
Dealing Policy which applies to dealings  
in DCC shares by the Directors and 
Company Secretary of DCC, directors of 
all Group companies and all DCC Head 

 
on the Model Code, as set out in the 
Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority. 
Under the Policy, Directors and relevant 
executives are required to obtain 
clearance from the Chairman or Chief 
Executive before dealing in DCC shares 
and are prohibited from dealing in the 
shares during prohibited periods as 

periods for share dealing by Directors  
and relevant executives, being the four  
21 day periods following the updating  
of the market on the Group’s trading 
position through the preliminary results 

announcement in May, the Interim 
Management Statement in July (at the 
AGM), the interim results announcement 
in November and the Interim Management 
Statement in January/February.

Risk Management  
and Internal Control 
The Board is responsible for the Group’s 
system of risk management and internal 
control. It is designed to manage rather 
than eliminate the risk of failure to 
achieve business objectives and provides 
reasonable but not absolute assurance 
against material misstatement or loss. 
Details in relation to the Group’s risk 
management structures are set out  
in the Risk Report on page 10.

The Board has delegated responsibility  
for the ongoing monitoring of the 

Committee. Details in relation to the Audit 
Committee’s work in this regard are set out 

In accordance with the FRC guidance for 
directors on internal control published in 
October 2005, ‘Internal Control: Revised 
Guidance for Directors on the Combined 
Code’ which applies to DCC for the year 

that there is an ongoing process for 
identifying, evaluating and managing any 

 
it has been in place for the year under 
review and up to the date of approval of 

process is regularly reviewed by the Board. 

The Board receives reports at each 
meeting from the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee on its activities and in addition 
has considered a report from the Audit 
Committee on the conduct of and the 

annual assessment of risk management 
and internal control.

Further details on this annual assessment 
are set out in the Audit Committee Report 

Revised guidance, entitled ‘Guidance on 
Risk Management, Internal Control and 
Related Financial and Business Reporting’ 
was issued by the FRC in September  
2014 and applies to accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 October 2014. We 
have considered this revised Guidance in 
the planning of risk management activities 

 
are prepared subject to the oversight  

ensuring correct data is captured from 
Group locations and all required 
information for disclosure in the 

provided. A control framework has been 
put in place around the recording of 
appropriate eliminations and other 

statements are reviewed by the Audit 
Committee and approved by the Board.

Board Performance Evaluation 
The Board conducts an annual  
evaluation of its own performance,  
that of each of its principal committees, 
the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination  
and Governance Committees, and  
that of Committee Chairmen and  
individual Directors. 

In 2015, the entire performance 

and conducted by the ICSA, in accordance 
with the requirement, under Provision 

facilitated every three years. 

The various phases of the external 
performance evaluation process  
which commenced in early March and 
concluded in May 2015 are set out below:

 – The Chairman spoke with each of the 
Directors to appraise their individual 
performance and to enquire if they 
had any views they wished to express 
on the performance of any other 
Director. The Chairman prepared  
a short report on individual Director 
performance.

 – The Head of ICSA Board Evaluation 

interview with each Director. In the 
interviews, the Directors would have 
been asked to express their views on 
the quality of each of seven aspects of 
the Board’s and principal Committees’ 
performance, to ascertain whether they 
meet his/her needs and expectations. 

 – David Byrne, as Senior Independent 
Director, spoke with each of the 
Directors to seek their views on John 
Moloney’s performance as Chairman.

 – The non-executive Directors  
assessed the performance of the 
executive Directors.

 – Each of the Audit Committee,  
the Remuneration Committee and  
the Nomination and Governance 
Committee reviewed their own 
performance taking account of  
the ICSA reports. 
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 –  
the Board considered the ICSA  

recommendations. The ICSA attended 
the Board meeting to facilitate  
a discussion on their report.

 – Following this discussion, the Board 
formally concluded on its own 
performance, on the performance of 
Committees and on the performance 
of individual Directors, including the 
Chairman. A number of actions were 
agreed which will be implemented by 
the Chairman during the current year. 

All action items arising from the 2014 
evaluation were substantially completed 
during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Relations with Shareholders 
DCC recognises the importance of 
communications with shareholders. 
Presentations are made to both existing 
and prospective institutional shareholders, 
principally after the release of the interim 
and annual results. DCC issues an Interim 
Management Statement twice yearly, 
typically in January/February and July. Major 

and the Company’s website www.dcc.ie 
provides the full text of all press releases. 
The website also contains annual and 
interim reports and incorporates audio  
and slide show investor presentations.

The Board is kept informed of the views  
of shareholders through the executive 
Directors’ attendance at investor 
presentations and results presentations. 
Furthermore, relevant feedback from 
such meetings, investor relations reports 
and brokers notes are provided to the 
entire Board on a regular basis.

On 4 June 2015, a Capital Markets Day will 
take place in the London Stock Exchange 
which will be attended by the Chairman 
and a number of the non-executive 
Directors. Most of DCC’s top shareholders 
as well as various brokers, analysts and 
fund managers will be present at this 
Capital Markets Day. The previous 
Investor Day was held in June 2013.

The Company Secretary engages  
annually with proxy advisors in  
advance of the AGM.

The Company’s AGM provides 
shareholders with the opportunity to 
question the Chairman, the Committee 
Chairmen and the Board. Further details 
on the Company’s AGM is set out in the 

Business Conduct Guidelines
DCC’s Business Conduct Guidelines set out 
the Group’s commitment to the highest 
standards of integrity and compliance. 
They have been circulated to employees 
across the Group and are also available  
on the Company’s website www.dcc.ie. 
Further detail on this is provided in the 

Report of the Directors 
For the purposes of the European 

Regulations 2009, details of substantial 
shareholdings in the Company and  
details in relation to the purchase of  
the Company’s own shares are set  
out in the Report of the Directors on 
pages 105 to 107.

Going Concern 
The Company’s business activities, 

 
its future development, performance  
and position are set out in the Chief 
Executive’s Review on pages 4 to 5.  

 

borrowing facilities are described in the 

statements include the Company’s 
objectives, policies and processes for 

management objectives, details of its 

activities and its exposures to credit risk 
and liquidity risk. The Company has 

broad spread of businesses with a large 
number of customers and suppliers across 

Having assessed the relevant business 
risks, the Directors believe that the 
Company is well placed to manage its 
business risks successfully. The Directors 
have a reasonable expectation that the 
Company, and the Group as a whole,  
have adequate resources to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable 
future. For this reason, they continue  
to adopt the going concern basis in 

Compliance Statement 
DCC has complied, throughout the year 
ended 31 March 2015, with the provisions 
set out in the 2012 Code.

John Moloney, Tommy Breen 
Directors
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performance, business model and 
strategy. The work done in this regard  

This report also sets out, at page 79,  

statements and how these issues  
were addressed.

During the year, the Committee engaged 
in a formal tender process for the 

statements in respect of the year to 

of this process, the Board approved the 
appointment of KPMG as auditors to the 
company. This appointment will be put  
to shareholders for their approval at the 
2015 Annual General Meeting. Full details 
of the tender process are set out on 

Annual Report and Accounts will 
therefore be the last external audit to be 
conducted by PricewaterhouseCoopers 
(‘PwC’). I would like to record my thanks to 

many years of excellent service to DCC.

One of the Audit Committee’s key 
responsibilities is to review the Company’s 
internal control and risk management 
systems. Further details in regard to  

In September 2014, the FRC issued a 
revised UK Corporate Governance Code 
(‘the 2014 Code’) and new guidance 
entitled ‘Guidance on Risk Management, 
Internal Control and Related Financial  
and Business Reporting’, both of which 

The Committee has reviewed the 2014 
Code and the new Guidance and is 

The Board, the Audit Committee and 
Group management are fully committed 

and risk management within the Group.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

Jane Lodge
Chairman, Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four independent  
non-executive Directors, Jane Lodge (Chairman),  
Róisín Brennan, David Jukes (joined 31 March 2015)  
and Leslie Van de Walle. The members of the Committee 
have significant financial and business experience.  
Further biographical details regarding the members  
of the Audit Committee are set out on pages 70 to 71. 

Audit Committee Report

Dear Shareholder,

As Chairman of DCC’s Audit Committee,  
I am pleased to present the report of the 
Committee for the year ended 31 March 
2015 which has been prepared by the 
Committee and approved by the Board.

The responsibilities of the Audit 
Committee are summarised in the table 

Terms of Reference, which are available 
on the DCC website www.dcc.ie.

This report details how the Audit 
Committee has met its responsibilities 
under its Terms of Reference and under 
the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code 
(‘the 2012 Code’) and the Guidance on 
Audit Committees, which applied to  

In particular, the Audit Committee has 
concluded and has advised the Board 
accordingly that the Annual Report  
and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, 
balanced and understandable and 
provides the information necessary for 
shareholders to assess the Company’s 
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Fair, Balanced and Understandable
The 2012 Code requires that the Board 
should present a fair, balanced and 
understandable assessment of the 
Company’s position and prospects  

 
that the annual report and accounts, 
taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and 
understandable and provides the 
information necessary for shareholders 
to assess the Company’s performance, 
business model and strategy. 

At the request of the Board, the 
Committee considered whether the  
2015 Annual Report and Accounts met 
the requirements. 

The Committee considered and discussed 
with management the established and 
documented process put in place by 
management for the preparation of  
the 2015 Annual Report and Accounts,  
in particular timetable, co-ordination  
and review activities. The Committee  
also noted the formal process undertaken  
by the external auditors. This enabled  
the Committee, and then the Board,  
to conclude that the Annual Report,  
taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and 
understandable and that it provides the 
necessary information for shareholders 
to assess performance, business model 
and strategy.

Financial Judgements 
In regard to the Annual Report and 
Accounts, the Committee assesses 
whether suitable accounting policies have 
been adopted and whether management 
has made appropriate estimates and 
judgements. The Committee obtains 
support from the external auditors in 
making these assessments.

The Committee pays particular attention 
to matters it considers to be important  
by virtue of their impact on the Group’s 
results and particularly those which 
involve a relatively higher level of 
complexity, judgement or estimation  
by management. The table on page 79 

by the Committee in relation to the 
 

ended 31 March 2015.

that they were not aware of any material 

no material misstatement in the course  
of their work.

Risk Management and  
Internal Control 
The Audit Committee has been delegated 
responsibility by the Board for the ongoing 

Group’s system of risk management and 
internal control. 

The Audit Committee receives a report  
at each meeting on the activities of the 
Group Internal Audit function, including 
internal audits, IT audits and special 
investigations. Reports are also received 
from the Risk Committee and the 
Enterprise Risk Management and Group 
Compliance functions. Further details on 
the Group’s risk management framework 
are set out in the Risk Report on page 10.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee 
reports to the Board at each meeting on 
the Committee’s activities in regard to the 
Group’s risk management and internal 
control systems. The Board also receives 
a summary risk report, prepared by the 
Head of Enterprise Risk Management, at 
each Board meeting and receives a report 
on Health, Safety and Environmental 
matters on a quarterly basis.

The Audit Committee conducts, on behalf 
of the Board, the annual assessment of 
the operation of the Group’s system of 
risk management and internal control. 
This assessment was based on a detailed 
review carried out by Enterprise Risk 
Management and Group Internal  
Audit, utilising the risk register process 
described in the Risk Report on page 10. 
This review took account of the principal 
business risks facing the Group, the 
controls in place to manage those risks 

compliance controls) and the procedures 
in place to monitor them. Where areas  

 
the necessary actions in respect of the 
relevant control procedures have been  
or are being taken. 

The Chairman of the Audit Committee  
has reported to the Board on the conduct 

from this annual assessment of risk 
management and internal control. 

Role and Responsibilities

 –  
in them.

 – Provide advice on whether the Annual Report and Accounts, when taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and 
provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s performance, business model and strategy. 

 – Oversee the relationship with the external auditor, including approval of remuneration and terms of engagement.
 –
 – Make a recommendation to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor.
 – Ensure the external audit is put to tender at least every 10 years. 
 – Develop and implement a policy on the supply of non-audit services by the external auditor to avoid any threat to auditor objectivity 

and independence.
 –
 – Review the Company’s internal control and risk management systems and the Company’s statements on internal control and  

risk management.
 –

reporting or other matters.
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External Auditor
The Audit Committee oversees the 
relationship with the external auditor 
including approval of the external 
auditor’s fee proposals. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers (‘PwC’) were the 
external auditors for the Company and 
they conducted the audit in respect of the 
year ended 31 March 2015. KPMG have 
been appointed as the external auditor 

 
a formal external audit tender process, 
which is detailed below.
 
The Audit Committee reviewed the full 
PwC external audit plan at the meeting 
held in October 2014 and reviewed  
a brief update at the meeting in March 
2015, prior to the commencement of  
the audit. Following the audit, the Audit 
Committee met with PwC to review the 

The Audit Committee reviews the 

process. As part of this process, audit 

completed by Group and subsidiary 

summarised by management in a report 
to the Audit Committee. Based on its 
consideration of this report and its own 
interaction with PwC, in the form of 
reports and meetings, the Audit 
Committee concludes on the 

process and reports its conclusions to  
the Board. 

The Audit Committee meets with the 
external auditors on a regular basis 
without the presence of management.

In accordance with its Terms of Reference, 
the Audit Committee is required to make 
a recommendation to the Board on the 
appointment, reappointment and 
removal of the external auditor. 

External Audit Tender Process
As noted in last year’s Audit Committee 
Report, the Audit Committee was keeping 
developments at EU level in regard to audit 
tenure under close review. Taking account 
of these developments, a decision was 
taken in mid-2014 to commence a formal 

external audit tender process to select  
a new external auditor for the year to 

A request for proposal was sent to three 
 

It was agreed, in light of the rules emerging 
from the EU, that PwC would not be invited 
to take part in the tender process.

Detailed tender proposals were received 

presentations to an executive committee 

Company Secretary, the Head of Group 
Accounting and the Head of Internal Audit.

Following consultation with the Audit 
Committee in regard to the outcome  
of these presentations, it was agreed  

presentations to the Audit Committee  
in March 2015. These presentations were 
also attended by the Chairman of the 
Board, the Chief Executive and the 
members of the executive committee 
noted above. 

Goodwill
In order to satisfy itself that this balance was appropriately stated, the Committee considered the impairment reviews 
carried out by management. Impairment reviews are carried out annually using the carrying values of subsidiaries at 
31 December and the latest three year plan information.

In performing their impairment reviews, management determined the recoverable amount of each cash generating 

determine the value in use. In calculating the value in use, management judgement is required in forecasting cash 

average cost of capital. Sensitivity analysis was considered on the discount rate and the long term growth rate. The 
Committee constructively challenged management’s key assumptions to understand their impact on the CGU’s 

impairment charge was made against the carrying value of goodwill relating to a small subsidiary in the Healthcare 
division. The Committee agreed with management’s results that all of the Group’s other CGU’s displayed  
an excess of value in use over their carrying values.

Exceptional 
Items

During the year, the Committee considered a detailed paper prepared by management in respect of the Group’s 

Other Matters In addition, the Committee has considered a number of other judgements which have been made by management 

provisioning for impairment of trade receivables and inventories and tax provisioning.
Going Concern

This report took account of the Guidance on Going Concern and Liquidity Risk for directors of listed companies (2009),  
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2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

Audit £’000 Non-audit £’000

Non-Audit as
% of Audit

748

756

687

630

1,002

1,607

1,600

1,451

1,263

1,174

46%

47%

47%

50%

85%

Audit Committee Report Continued

further discussion, the Audit Committee 
decided to recommend to the Board  
that KPMG be appointed as the external 
auditors. The Board accepted this 
recommendation and appointed KPMG  
as the external auditor for the year to 

put to shareholders for their approval  
at the 2015 Annual General Meeting. 

 
no matters in connection with their 
resignation as auditors which need to be 
brought to the attention of shareholders.

Independence
The Audit Committee has a process in 
place to ensure that the independence  
of the audit is not compromised, which 
includes monitoring the nature and 
extent of services provided by the 
external auditor through its annual review 
of fees paid to the external auditor for 
audit and non-audit work and seeking 

that they are in compliance with relevant 
ethical and professional guidance and 
that, in their professional judgment,  
they are independent from the Group. 

The Audit Committee has approved a 
policy on the employment of employees 
or former employees of the external 
auditor. This policy provides that the  
Chief Executive will consult with the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee  
prior to the appointment to a senior 

role of any employee or former employee 
of the external auditor, where such a 
person was a member of the external 
audit team in the previous two years.

Non-Audit Services
The Audit Committee has approved a 
policy on the engagement of the external 
auditor to provide non-audit services, 
which provides that the external auditor 
is permitted to provide non-audit services 
that are not, or are not perceived to be,  

providing they have the skill, competence 
and integrity to carry out the work  
and are considered to be the most 
appropriate to undertake such work  
in the best interests of the DCC Group.  
The policy also provides that any 
non-audit work which would result in the 
aggregate of non-audit fees paid to the 
external auditor exceeding 50% of annual 
audit fees must be approved in advance 
by the Chief Executive and the Chairman 
of the Audit Committee. Details of the 
amounts paid to the external auditor 
during the year for non-audit services are 
set out in note 7 on page 141. A summary 

year period from 2011 to 2015 inclusive  
is set out in the table below.

Group Internal Audit
The Audit Committee approves the 
annual work programme for the Group 
Internal Audit function, ensures that it  
is adequately resourced and has 
appropriate standing within the Group. 

External Quality Assessments (‘EQA’) by 
independent external consultants are 

Audit function with the International 
Professional Performance Framework  
of the Institute of Internal Auditors. The 
most recent EQA review was successfully 
completed by KPMG in 2011 and the  
next EQA review is planned for late 2015. 
An internal review against the same 
standards is completed on an annual basis.

Group Internal Audit uses the market 
leading audit management system, 
Teammate, to prepare workpapers and 
audit reports and to record and monitor 
progress with respect to corrective action 
plans. The Teammate system is used  
as a central platform for all related 
assurance activities including the 
recording and monitoring of corrective 
actions arising from Group HSE,  
Group Compliance, external audit and 
management self-assessment reviews. 

The COBIT (‘Control Objectives for 
Information and related Technology’) 
based IT standards framework previously 
developed by Group Internal Audit and 
Group IT continues to be used to underpin 
the integration of new acquisitions. 

The Group Internal Audit function 
incorporates a dedicated IT audit team, 
which has been further resourced to 
ensure greater use of data analytics 
throughout the audit process.

The Audit Committee receives regular 
reports from Group Internal Audit, which 

 
of each audit in the period.

The Audit Committee ensures  
co-ordination between Group Internal  
Audit and the external auditor, with four 
meetings per annum held to maximise 

and co-ordinated activities.

The Head of Internal Audit has direct 
access to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee and the Audit Committee 
meets with the Head of Internal Audit  
on a regular basis without the presence  
of management.

Whistleblowing Arrangements
The Audit Committee is responsible  
for ensuring that the Group maintains 
suitable whistleblowing arrangements  
for its employees. The Committee 
reviewed those arrangements during the 
year to ensure that they continue to meet 
the needs of the Group as it grows and 
develops into new geographies. 

Governance
Composition
The Audit Committee comprises four 
independent non-executive Directors,  
Jane Lodge (Chairman), Róisín Brennan, 
David Jukes (joined 31 March 2015) and 
Leslie Van de Walle. Each member’s length 
of tenure at 31 March 2015 is set out in 

for these Directors are set out on pages 

experience, as required by the Code,  
and that the members of the Audit 
Committee have an excellent mix of skills 

 
and audit matters arising from the  
senior positions they hold or held in  
other organisations. 

Meetings
The Committee met six times during the 
year ended 31 March 2015 and there was 
full attendance by all members of the 
Committee (excluding David Jukes, who 
only joined on 31 March 2015).

Audit vs Non-Audit Fees
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Jane Lodge (Chairman)

Róisín Brennan1

David Jukes2

Leslie Van De Walle

Number of Years

0.0 0.5 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5 3.0

2.5

0.8

0

2.7

The Chief Executive, Chief Financial 

Management, Head of Internal Audit, 
Head of Group Sustainability, Head of 
Group Compliance, Chief Information 

and representatives of the external 
auditor are invited to attend all or part  
of any meeting. The Company Secretary  
is the secretary to the Audit Committee. 

The Committee also meets separately  
a number of times each year with the 
external auditor and with the Head of 
Internal Audit, without other executive 
management being present.

Annual Evaluation of Performance 
As detailed on page 75, the Board 
conducts an annual evaluation of its own 
performance and that of its Committees, 
Committee Chairmen and individual 
Directors. In 2015, this process was 

1. Róisín Brennan was previously a member of the Audit Committee from September 2005 until March 2009.
2. David Jukes joined the Board and became a member of the Audit Committee on 31 March 2015.

externally facilitated by the ICSA, in 
accordance with the requirement, under 

externally facilitated every three years.

The conclusion from this process was  
that the performance of the Committee 
and of the Chairman of the Committee 
was satisfactory and that no changes 
were necessary to the Committee’s Terms 
of Reference. 

Reporting
The Chairman of the Audit Committee 
reports to the Board at each meeting  
on the activities of the Committee.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee 
attends the Annual General Meeting  
to answer questions on the report on  
the Committee’s activities and matters 
within the scope of the Committee’s 
responsibilities.

Audit Committee Tenure
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Remuneration Report

Performance
DCC achieved a very strong result in the 
year to 31 March 2015, with operating 

continuing activities being 10.5% ahead  
of the prior year (11.9% on a constant 
currency basis). Adjusted earnings per 

and it is proposed that the dividend for 
the year will be increased by 10%.

Return on capital employed, a key metric 
 

in the prior year, and is again substantially 
in excess of the Group’s cost of capital.

DCC has generated a total shareholder 

Bonuses
The bonuses earned by the executive 
Directors in respect of the year ended 
31 March 2015 are set out on page 93. 

 
in Group adjusted earnings per share in 
the year and achievement of a range of 
developmental and personal objectives. 
The bonuses earned represent 

for the year for the executive Directors.

Long Term Incentive Plan
Amendments to Long Term  
Incentive Plan
At the 2014 Annual General Meeting, 
shareholders approved a series of 
amendments to the DCC plc Long Term 
Incentive Plan 2009 (‘LTIP’) relating to the 
quantum of awards, the performance 
conditions, the vesting period and 
threshold vesting levels. Full details  
of the amendments were set out in  
the Remuneration Report in the 2014 
Annual Report.

The awards made to the executive 
Directors in November 2014, as set  

amended LTIP.

Vesting of LTIP Awards
In December 2014, the Remuneration 
Committee determined that 59.4% of  
the share options granted in November 
2011 under the LTIP had vested, based  
on performance under the TSR and EPS 
conditions (this was the same as the 
estimated vesting of 59.4% included  
in last year’s Report). Further details  
on this vesting are set out on page 95.

Introduction
Dear Shareholder,

As Chairman of DCC’s Remuneration 
Committee, I am pleased to present the 
Remuneration Report for the year ended 
31 March 2015 which has been prepared 
by the Committee and approved by  
the Board.

The responsibilities of the Remuneration 
Committee are summarised in the table 

Terms of Reference, which are available 
on the DCC website www.dcc.ie.

DCC’s Remuneration Policy seeks to 
incentivise executive Directors and  
other senior Group executives to create 
shareholder value and consequently  
their remuneration is weighted towards 
performance related elements with 
targets incentivising delivery of strategy 
over the short and long term. The full 
Remuneration Policy, which was approved 
by shareholders at the 2014 Annual 
General Meeting and remains unchanged, 

The Remuneration Committee comprises three 
independent non-executive Directors, Leslie Van de Walle 
(Chairman), David Byrne and Pam Kirby and the Chairman 
of the Board, John Moloney. The members of the Committee 
have significant financial and business experience, including 
in the area of executive remuneration. Further biographical 
details regarding the members of the Remuneration 
Committee are set out on pages 70 to 71.
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Remuneration 
Policy 2014

Remuneration 
Report 2014

Remuneration 
Report 2013

Remuneration 
Report 2012

Remuneration 
Report 2011

Remuneration 
Report 2010

Remuneration 
Report 2009

% For % Against

98.9

99.2

98.6

99.9

99.8

99.9

99.90.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

1.4

0.8

1.1

AGM Votes 

DCC’s TSR Vs the FTSE 350 since 1 April 2010
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The charts above show the growth of a hypothetical 
€100 holding in DCC plc shares since 1 April 2010 and 
1 April 2005 respectively, relative to the FTSE 350 index.

The extent of vesting of the share  
options granted in November 2012 will  
be determined by the Remuneration 
Committee in December 2015. It is 
currently estimated that 100% of the 
share options granted will vest. 

Further details in relation to the LTIP  

Format of Report and  
Shareholder Votes
In last year’s report, I noted that in October 
2013, the Large and Medium-sized 
Companies and Groups (Accounts and 
Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013 

the UK. While DCC, as an Irish incorporated 
company, is not subject to these regulatory 
requirements, we recognised that they 
represented best practice in remuneration 
reporting and, given our listing on the 
London Stock Exchange, we substantially 
applied the UK Regulations to the 2014 
Remuneration Report on a voluntary basis 
and have adopted the same approach in 
respect of this year’s Report.

At the 2014 Annual General Meeting, 
separate resolutions on the Remuneration 
Policy and on the Annual Report on 
Remuneration were put to shareholders, 
on an advisory rather than on a binding 
basis. Both resolutions were passed by 
shareholders. The results of the votes are 
summarised in the chart below and set 
out in detail in the table on page 100. 

The Annual Report on Remuneration,  
as set out on pages 92 to 99, will be put  
to an advisory vote by shareholders at  
the 2015 Annual General Meeting. As the 
Remuneration Policy remains unchanged 
since last year, it is not required, in 
accordance with the UK Regulations,  
to be put to shareholders at the 2015 
Annual General Meeting. 

It is our intention to operate in line with 
the approved Policy. We welcome and  
will consider any shareholder feedback  
on the Remuneration Policy and Annual 
Report on Remuneration. 

Conclusion

Committee has implemented the Group’s 
existing remuneration policy in the year 
ended 31 March 2015 in a manner that 

 
the Group in the year.

On behalf of the Remuneration 
Committee. 

Leslie Van de Walle
Chairman, Remuneration Committee

Role and Responsibilities

 – To determine and agree with the Board the policy for the remuneration of the Chief Executive, other executive Directors and certain 
Group senior executives (as determined by the Committee).

 – To determine the remuneration packages of the Chairman, Chief Executive, other executive Directors and senior executives, 
including salary, bonuses, pension rights and compensation payments.

 – To oversee remuneration structures for other Group and subsidiary senior management and to oversee any major changes in 

 – To nominate executives for inclusion in the Company’s long term incentive schemes, to grant options or awards under these 
schemes, to determine whether the criteria for the vesting of options or awards have been met and to make any necessary 
amendments to the rules of these schemes.

 – To ensure that contractual terms on termination or redundancy, and any payments made, are fair to the individual and the Company.
 – To be exclusively responsible for establishing the selection criteria, selecting, appointing and setting the terms of reference for any 

remuneration consultants who advise the Committee.
 – To obtain reliable, up to date information about remuneration in other companies of comparable scale and complexity.
 – To agree the policy for authorising claims for expenses from the Directors.
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Remuneration Report Continued

Remuneration Policy Report
DCC’s Remuneration Policy (‘the Policy’), which was approved by shareholders at the 2014 Annual General Meeting, was set out in full  
in the 2014 Annual Report and is reproduced below, subject only to the updating of the Scenarios Charts on page 90 and page and other 
minor references.

As an Irish incorporated company, DCC is not required to comply with the UK legislation which requires UK companies to submit their 
remuneration policies to a binding shareholder vote. However, we recognise the need for our remuneration policies, practices and reporting 

General Meeting. 

As the Remuneration Policy remains unchanged since last year, it is not required, in accordance with the UK Regulations, to be put to 
shareholders at the 2015 Annual General Meeting. The Company intends to operate its remuneration arrangements in line with the 
approved Remuneration Policy.

The Policy is designed and managed to support a high performance and entrepreneurial culture, taking into account competitive market positioning. 

The Board seeks to align the interests of executive Directors and other senior Group executives with those of shareholders, within the 
framework set out in the UK Corporate Governance Code. Central to this policy is the Group’s belief in long-term, performance based 
incentivisation and the encouragement of share ownership. 

term element of incentive payments at the median of a market capitalisation comparator group. 

The Remuneration Committee seeks to ensure: 
 – that the Group will attract, motivate and retain individuals of the highest calibre; 
 – that executives are rewarded in a fair and balanced way for their individual and team contribution to the Group’s performance; 
 – that executives receive a level of remuneration that is appropriate to their scale of responsibility and individual performance;
 – that the overall approach to remuneration has regard to the sectors and geographies within which the Group operates and the markets 

from which it draws its executives; and
 – that risk is properly considered in setting remuneration policy and in determining remuneration packages.

DCC’s strategy of fostering entrepreneurship requires well designed incentive plans that reward the creation of shareholder value through 
organic and acquisitive growth while maintaining high returns on capital employed, strong cash generation and a focus on good risk 
management. The typical elements of the remuneration package for executive Directors and other senior Group executives are base pay, 

creation of sustainable shareholder value. 

The Remuneration Committee takes external advice from remuneration consultants on market practice to ensure that remuneration 
structures continue to support the key remuneration policy objectives. 

 
DCC’s and 30 of whom have market capitalisations just above DCC’s (the ‘market capitalisation comparator group’). 

The Remuneration Committee also considers it useful to use a set of other comparators as secondary references to ensure rigorous and 
comprehensive benchmarking, being the FTSE 250 and a group of Irish listed industrial companies which can be taken to be broadly 
comparable to DCC.
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Key elements of pay of executive Directors and other senior Group management under the Policy are set out in the table below:

Element and link to strategy Operation Maximum Opportunity

Base Salary

Attract and retain skilled  
and experienced senior 
executives. 

Base salaries are reviewed annually on 1 April. 

The factors taken into account include:
 – Role and experience 
 – Company performance
 – Personal performance
 – Competitive market practice
 – Benchmarking, principally against the ‘market 

capitalisation comparator group’. 

When setting pay policy, account is taken of movements  
in pay generally across the Group.

No prescribed maximum base salary  
or maximum annual increase.

General intention that any increases will  
be in line with the general increase across 
the Group.

Increases may be higher in certain 
circumstances such as changes in role  

 
in market practice.

To provide market competitive 
cover, club subscriptions or cash equivalent.

No maximum level has been set as 
payments depend on individual  
Director circumstances.

Annual Bonus

To reward the achievement of 
annual performance targets.

Bonus payments to executive Directors and other senior 
Group executives are based upon meeting pre-determined 
targets for a number of key measures, including Group 

contribution and attainment of personal objectives. The 
contribution and personal targets are focused on areas such 
as delivery on strategy, organisational development, risk 
management and talent development/succession planning. 

The measures, their weighting and the targets are reviewed 
on an annual basis.

The current measures for the executive Directors, and their 
weighting, are set out on page 92. The targets are considered 

prospective basis, but may be disclosed retrospectively.

In regard to Mr. Breen, any actual bonus earned in excess  
of 100% of salary, once the appropriate tax and social security 
deductions have been made, will be invested in DCC shares 
which will be made available to him after three years,  
or on his employment terminating if earlier, together  
with accrued dividends. 

Bonus levels are determined by the Committee after the year 
end based on actual performance achieved. The Committee 

 
in respect of determining the bonuses to be awarded.  
In particular, the Committee has the discretion to reduce 
bonuses in the event that a predetermined target return  
on capital employed is not achieved. 

A formal clawback policy is in place for the executive Directors 
and other senior Group, divisional and subsidiary management, 
under which bonuses are subject to clawback for a period of 

The Committee has discretion in relation to bonus payments 
to joiners and leavers.

The maximum bonus potential, as a 
percentage of base salary, for the 
executive Directors is as follows:

Executive Director % of Base Salary

Tommy Breen 120%
Donal Murphy 100%
Fergal O’Dwyer 100%

The maximum bonus potential, as a 
percentage of base salary, for other senior 
Group executives ranges between 40% 
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Element and link to strategy Operation Maximum Opportunity

Long Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP’)

To align the interests of 
executives with those of the 
Group’s shareholders and to 

long term performance based 
incentivisation.

The LTIP provides for the Remuneration Committee to grant 
nominal cost options to acquire shares to Group employees, 
including executive Directors.

grant, with the extent of vesting being determined over the 

out below.

In addition to the detailed performance conditions, an award 

shown a sustained improvement in the three year period 
since the award date.

The extent of vesting for awards granted to participants  
will be determined by the Remuneration Committee, in its 
absolute discretion, based on the performance conditions 
set out below.

Return on Capital Employed (‘ROCE’):
Up to 40% of an award will vest depending on ROCE 
achieved in excess of the Group’s Weighted Average  
Cost of Capital (‘WACC’) over a three year period with the 
Remuneration Committee to set a range for threshold and 
maximum vesting at the time of each award in the light of 

transactions, and three year plans for the Group.

Percentage excess over WACC % of total award vesting

Below % set as threshold 0%
At % set as threshold 10%
Between % set as threshold 
and % set as maximum

10%-40% 
pro rata

Above % set as maximum 40%

The range set will be disclosed in the Annual Report on 
Remuneration.

The calculation of ROCE will be consistent with the Group 

The market value of the shares subject to 
the options granted in any period of 12 
months may not, at the date of the grant, 
exceed 200% of base pay.
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Element and link to strategy Operation Maximum Opportunity

Long Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP’) Continued

Earnings per Share (‘EPS’):
Up to 40% of an award will vest depending on EPS growth 
over a three year period starting on 1 April in the year in 
which the award is granted compared with the change in  
the UK Retail Price Index (‘RPI’) as follows:

Annualised EPS growth in excess  
of annualised change in RPI % of total award vesting

Less than 3% 0%
At 3% 10%

10%-40% pro rata
40%

(level of excess over RPI) will be set at the time of each award 

corporate transactions, and three year plans for the Group 
and prevailing business and economic circumstances. The 
range set will be disclosed in the Annual Report on 
Remuneration.

Total Shareholder Return (‘TSR’):
Up to 20% of an award will vest depending on TSR 
performance over a three year period, starting on 1 April in 
the year in which the award is granted, compared with the 
FTSE 350 Index (the ‘Index’).

TSR % of total award vesting

Below the Index 0%
At the Index 5%

out-performance
5%-20% 
pro rata

of the Index
20%

No re-testing of the performance conditions is permitted.

The performance conditions and their relative weighting may 

with the Rules of the LTIP, provided that they remain no  
less challenging and are aligned with the interests of the 
Company’s shareholders.

In the case of participants other than the executive 
Directors, the Remuneration Committee will have discretion 

growth performance conditions, provided that they remain 
no less challenging and are aligned with the interests of  
the Company’s shareholders. These additional conditions 
will not account for more than 20% of vesting, with a 
corresponding reduction in the percentage of vesting 
dependent on the ROCE performance condition.

A formal clawback policy is in place, under which awards are 
subject to clawback in the event of a material restatement  
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Element and link to strategy Operation Maximum Opportunity

Pension

To reward sustained 
contribution.

A small number of senior Group executives, including the 

pension scheme. 

contribution pension scheme. The pension scheme gives the 
Company full discretion to pay appropriate pension levels 
and the Company reviews market and benchmarking data 
for pension contributions for each employee group.

through an Irish Revenue approved 

caps, as introduced by the Irish Finance Act 

have elected to cease accruing pension 

non-pensionable cash allowance in lieu of 

allowances have been calculated based  
on independent actuarial advice, approved 
by the Remuneration Committee, as the 
equivalent of the reduction in liability of 
the Company arising from the pension 

contribution pension scheme for other 

their seniority and experience. The 

benchmarking data.

Pensionable salary is calculated as 105%  
of base salary and does not include any 

Payments from Existing Awards
Subject to the achievement of the applicable performance conditions, executive Directors are eligible to receive payment from any award 
made prior to the approval and implementation of the Remuneration Policy detailed in this report.

Clawback Policy
Bonus payments made to executives may be subject to clawback for a period of three years from payment in certain circumstances including:
 –
 – a material breach of applicable health and safety regulations; or
 –

by the individual executive.

The LTIP allows for the giving of discretion to the Remuneration Committee to reduce or impose further conditions on awards prior to 
vesting in the circumstances as outlined above.

Remuneration Policy for Recruitment of New Executive Directors
In determining the remuneration package for a new executive Director, the Remuneration Committee would be guided by the principle of 

 
a role, if it considers this to be in the best interests of the Company and the shareholders. The Remuneration Committee will generally set  
a remuneration package which is in accordance with the terms of the approved Remuneration Policy in force at the time of the appointment, 
though the Committee may make payments outside of the Policy if required in the particular circumstances and if in the best interests of 
the Company and the shareholders. Any such payments which relate to the buyout of variable pay (bonuses or awards) from a previous 
employer will be based on matching the estimated fair value of that variable pay and will take account of the performance conditions and 
the time until vesting of that variable pay.

For an internal appointment, any variable pay element awarded in respect of the prior role and any other ongoing remuneration obligations 
existing prior to appointment would be honoured. 



Financial Statem
ents

Supplem
entary Inform

ation
G

overnance
Strategic Report 

89

Remuneration Policy for Other Employees

Directors and a number of senior Group executives, it aims to create a broad policy framework, to be applied by management to senior 
executives throughout the Group, through its oversight of remuneration structures for other Group and subsidiary senior management  

role being undertaken, the industry in which the business operates, the level of seniority and responsibilities, the location of the role and 
local market practice.

Consultation with Employees
Although the Remuneration Committee does not consult with employees on the Directors Remuneration Policy, it does consider 
remuneration arrangements and trends across the broader employee population when determining the Policy. 

Consultation with Shareholders

changes in policy. The Committee also takes into account the views of shareholder organisations and proxy voting agencies.

As set out in last year’s Annual Report, the Remuneration Committee undertook a detailed consultation process in regard to the then 
proposed changes to the LTIP.

The Committee acknowledges that shareholders have a right to have a ‘say on pay’ by putting the Remuneration Policy and the Annual 
Report on Remuneration to advisory votes at the Annual General Meeting.

Exit Payments Policy
The provisions on exit in respect of each of the elements of pay are as follows:

period is 12 months and for the other executive Directors the notice period is 3 months. In all cases, the notice period applies to both the 
Company and the executive.

Annual Bonus

The Remuneration Committee can apply appropriate discretion in respect of determining the bonuses to be awarded based on actual 

Long Term Incentive Plan

To the extent that a share award or option has vested on the participant’s cessation date, the participant may exercise the share award or 
 

In general, a share award or option that has not vested on the participant’s cessation date immediately lapses. 

The Committee would normally exercise its discretion when dealing with a participant who ceases to be an employee by reason of certain 
exceptional circumstances e.g. death, injury or disability, redundancy, retirement or any other exceptional circumstances. In such circumstances, 
any share award or option that has not already vested on the participant’s cessation date would be eligible for vesting on a date determined by 
the Remuneration Committee. The number of shares, if any, in respect of which the share award or option vests would be determined by the 
Remuneration Committee. 

In the event that a participant ceases to be an employee by reason of a termination of his employment for serious misconduct, each share 
award and option held by the participant, whether or not vested, will automatically lapse immediately upon the service of notice of such 
termination, unless the Committee in its sole discretion determines otherwise. 

Pension

 
in respect of termination of employment.
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Remuneration Report Continued

Service Contracts
With the exception of Tommy Breen, Chief Executive, who has a service agreement with a notice period of twelve months, none of the other 
Directors has a service contract with the Company or with any member of the Group. Mr. Breen’s service contract provides that either he  
or the Company can terminate his employment by giving 12 months’ notice in writing. The Company may, at its sole discretion, require that 
Mr. Breen, instead of working out the period of notice, cease employment immediately in which case he would receive compensation in the 
form of base salary only in respect of the notice period. The service contract also provides for summary termination (i.e. without notice)  
in a number of circumstances, including material breach or grave misconduct. The service contract does not include any provisions for 

Mr. O’Dwyer and Mr. Murphy have letters of appointment which provide for three months’ notice periods.

Share Ownership Guidelines
DCC’s remuneration policy has at its core recognition that the spirit of ownership and entrepreneurship is essential to the creation of long 
term high performance and that share ownership is important in aligning the interests of executive Directors and other senior Group 
executives with those of shareholders.

base salary as follows: 

Executive Share ownership guideline

Chief Executive 3 times annual base salary
Other executive Directors 2 times annual base salary
Senior Group executives 1 times annual base salary

The position of the executive Directors and senior Group executives under the Share Ownership Guidelines is reviewed annually by the 
Remuneration Committee. The position of the executive Directors as at 31 March 2015 is set out in the Annual Report on Remuneration  
on page 99.

Scenarios Charts 
The current value and composition of the executive Directors’ remuneration packages at minimum, median and maximum performance are 

disclosed in this report continue to be presented in euro.

Tommy Breen, Chief Executive Donal Murphy, Executive Director Fergal O’Dwyer, Executive Director

Notes:

2. Annual = bonus
3. Long = maximum value of options that can be granted under the DCC plc Long Term Incentive Plan 2009.

of maximum LTIP value (long).

100% of maximum LTIP value (long).
7. In calculating any value that may be delivered in shares, no account has been taken of any potential increase or decrease in share price.
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Policy for non-executive Directors

Element and link to strategy Operation Maximum Opportunity

Fees

The fees paid to non-executive Directors 

time demands of their Board and Board 
committee duties. 

A basic non-executive Director fee is paid 
for Board membership. Additional fees are 
paid to the members and the Chairmen  
of Board Committees, to the Chairman  
and to the Deputy Chairman/Senior 
Independent Director.

The remuneration of the Chairman is 
determined by the Remuneration Committee 
for approval by the Board. The Chairman 
absents himself from the Committee meeting 
while this matter is being considered.

The remuneration of the other non-
executive Directors is determined by  
the Chairman and the Chief Executive  
for approval by the Board.

The fees are reviewed annually, taking 
account of any changes in responsibilities 
and benchmarking advice from external 
remuneration consultants on the level of 
fees in a range of comparable Irish and  
UK companies.

No prescribed maximum annual increase.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, 
shareholders set the maximum aggregate 
ordinary remuneration (basic fees, excluding 
fees for committee membership and 

was set at the 2014 Annual General Meeting.

Non-executives Directors do not participate 
in the Company’s LTIP and do not receive 

Non-executive Directors Letters of Appointment
The terms and conditions of appointment of non-executive Directors are set out in their letters of appointment, which are available for 
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Annual Report on Remuneration

Salary

Executive Director

 
 

€

 
March 2015  

€

Tommy Breen 737,000 715,000
Donal Murphy 440,000 420,000
Fergal O’Dwyer 452,500 440,000

The increases in salaries for the executive Directors over recent years are shown in the table below:

Executive Director 2014/2015 2013/2014 2012/2013 2011/2012

Tommy Breen 3.1% 2.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Donal Murphy 2.4% 2.5% 0.0% 0.0%
Fergal O’Dwyer 2.3% 7.5% 0.0% 0.0%

benchmarking against market practice.

The increase in Mr. O’Dwyer’s salary in 2013/2014 followed a benchmarking exercise which showed his salary was positioned towards the 
lower quartile of the primary comparator group.

Bonus

from those which applied for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Executive Director Maximum bonus potential

Tommy Breen 120% of salary
Donal Murphy 100% of salary
Fergal O’Dwyer 100% of salary

The Committee has set performance targets for the year which will determine the extent of payment of bonuses to the executive Directors, 
as follows: 

Executive Director Performance Targets

Tommy Breen 70% based on growth in Group adjusted earnings per share and 30% based on overall contribution and attainment 
of personal objectives.

Donal Murphy
and 40% based on overall contribution and attainment of personal objectives.

Fergal O’Dwyer 70% based on growth in Group adjusted earnings per share and 30% based on overall contribution and attainment 
of personal objectives.

Bonuses for other senior Group executives are based upon meeting pre-determined targets which relate to Group earnings, divisional 

payment below threshold up to full payment at the maximum of the range. The Committee considers that information on the ranges  

The Committee will keep the performance targets under review in light of acquisition and other development activity during the year  



Financial Statem
ents

Supplem
entary Inform

ation
G

overnance
Strategic Report 

93

 
a company car, life/disability cover and club subscriptions or cash equivalent.
 

 

higher of €5 million or the value of individual accrued pension entitlements as at 7 December 2005. The Irish Finance Act 2011 reduced 
these thresholds to the higher of €2.3 million or the value of individual accrued pension entitlements as at 7 December 2010. As a result of 
this change the Remuneration Committee decided that the executive Directors and the other senior Group executives, who are members  

 
Long Term Incentives

the LTIP, full details of which are set out in last year’s Remuneration Report. These amendments were approved by shareholders at the 2014 
Annual General Meeting. 

will be in accordance with the amended LTIP.

For the purposes of the ROCE performance condition, the Remuneration Committee has set a ROCE range for threshold and maximum 

For the purposes of the EPS performance condition, the Remuneration Committee has set EPS growth equal to UK RPI plus 7% per annum 

Both the ROCE Range and the EPS Range will be kept under review by the Committee in light of acquisition and other development activity  

Executive Directors’ Remuneration Details
The table below sets out the details of the remuneration payable to the executive Directors for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Salary Bonus
Retirement  

LTIP Audited Total
2015 

€’000
2014 

€’000
2015 

€’000
2014 

€’000
2015 

€’000
2014 

€’000
2015 

€’000
2014 

€’000
2015 

€’000
2014 

€’000
2015 

€’000
2014 

€’000

Executive 
Directors
Tommy Breen 715 700 532 88 468 2,050 1,253 3,853
Donal Murphy 420 410 284 33 32 122 102 976 597 1,835 1,503
Fergal O’Dwyer 440 430 273 33 33 323 254 976 597 2,045 1,720

1,575 1,540 1,089 1,533 154 150 913 721 4,002 2,447 7,733

There were no payments made to former Directors during the year ended 31 March 2015.

Salary
The salaries of the Executive Directors for the year ended 31 March 2015 represented increases over the prior year as shown in the table below:

Salary % Increase

Tommy Breen €715,000 2.1%
Donal Murphy €420,000 2.4%
Fergal O’Dwyer €440,000 2.3%

 
in roles and responsibilities.
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Determination of Bonuses for the year ended 31 March 2015

The Committee concluded that there had been very strong achievement of the targets set in respect of overall contribution and attainment 
of personal objectives, in particular with regard to delivery on strategy, acquisitions and organisational development.

The resultant bonus payout levels for the year ended 31 March 2015 were as follows:

Tommy Breen 
% of Salary

Donal Murphy 
% of Salary

Fergal O’Dwyer 
% of Salary

Component Max % Payout % Max % Payout % Max % Payout %

Group EPS 20.0 9.1 70.0 32.0
40.0

Contribution / Personal 40.0 40.0 30.0 30.0
120.0 74.4 100.0 100.0

year ended 31 March 2014 amounted to 109.3% of salary, of which 9.3%, net of tax and social security deductions, was invested in DCC 
shares, which will be made available to him after three years, or on his employment terminating if earlier, together with accrued dividends.

actuarial advice approved by the Remuneration Committee as the equivalent of the reduction in liability of the Company arising from the 

allowance of €323,000 for Fergal O’Dwyer. 

 
1 

€’000

Transfer value equivalent to the change  
1 

€’000
year end2 

€’000

Tommy Breen (10) (217)
Donal Murphy – – 115
Fergal O’Dwyer – –
Total (10) (217)

2. Figures represent the total accrued pension payable from normal retirement date, based on pensionable service at 31 March 2015.

Long Term Incentive Plan
The values of the LTIP as shown in the table on page 93 for 2015 and 2014 related to awards made in November 2012 and November 2011 
respectively. Both of these awards were made under the LTIP prior to being amended in 2014. The vesting criteria which applied to the 2012 
and 2011 awards are summarised below.

TSR

Remuneration Committee. 

TSR rank % of total award vesting 

Below median 0%
Median 25%
Median – 75th percentile
Above 75th percentile



Financial Statem
ents

Supplem
entary Inform

ation
G

overnance
Strategic Report 

95

EPS
40% of shares vest depending on EPS growth over a three year period starting on 1 April in the year in which the award is granted compared 
with the change in the Irish Consumer Price Index (‘CPI’).

EPS growth in excess of CPI % of total award vesting

Below 3% 0%
3% 15%
3%-7% 15%-40% pro rata
Above 7% 40%

2015
The LTIP awards granted in November 2012 will vest in December 2015. The extent of vesting will be determined by the Committee,  

performance (40% of the total award) over the three year period ended 31 March 2015. The Group’s TSR performance is expected to give 

Consequently, 100% of the 2012 awards are expected to vest. The value of the LTIP for the year ended 31 March 2015 is estimated using  

2014
 

total award) and EPS performance (40% of the total award) over the three year period ended 31 March 2014. An analysis was conducted  

of the total award. DCC’s adjusted EPS increased by 4.1% annualised over the three year period. CPI increased by an annualised 1.0% over the 

Committee determined that 59.43% of the 2011 awards had vested. The value of the LTIP for the year ended 31 March 2014 is based on the 

LTIP – Historic vesting
The extent of vesting of awards made under the LTIP since its introduction in 2009 is set out in the table below.

2012 award: estimated vested/lapsed in 2015

2009 award: vested/lapsed in 2012

2010 award: vested/lapsed in 2013

2011 award: vested/lapsed in 2014

% vested % lapsed

74.2%

57.6%

40.6%

0%

25.8%

42.4%

59.4%

100% 0%

Chief Executive’s Remuneration
The charts below show the total remuneration for the Chief Executive for the six years from 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2015 and map the total 
remuneration against the six year trend in EPS and TSR, using a base of 100 for 2010 for comparator purposes.

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

4,000

€000

3,000

2,000

1,000

Fixed pay €’000 Variable pay €’000 Long term pay €’000

€1.67m €1.55m €1.64m

€2.40m

€3.17m

€3.85m

%3 26%

42%

59%

100%

95%
57%

100% 91% 62%100%

0

30%

 

300

250

200

150

100

50

0

TSR CEO EPS

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

1. Total remuneration paid to the Chief Executive for the years 2010 to 2015 inclusive. Further details in relation to remuneration paid in 2015 
and 2014 is set out on page 93.

3. Variable pay comprises the annual bonus; the percentage shown is the value of the bonus paid as a percentage of the maximum opportunity.

plc Long Term Incentive Plan 2009 (for 2012 to 2015); the percentage shown is the value of the awards vested as a percentage of the 
maximum opportunity (actual vesting for 2010 to 2014 and estimated vesting for 2015).



Governance

96

Remuneration received 
by all employees
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Remuneration Report Continued

The percentage change in elements of remuneration for the Chief Executive between the year ended 31 March 2015 and the year ended 
31 March 2014 is as follows:
Salary   +2.1%

Bonus   -30.5%

 
in the Group as a whole between the year ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014.

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
The table below sets out the amount paid in remuneration to all employees of the Group compared to dividends to shareholders, for 2015 and 2014.

Policy on External Board Appointments

that such appointments can bring both to the Company and to the Director in terms of broadening their knowledge and experience.

The fees received for such roles may be retained by the executive Directors. Tommy Breen took up the position of non-executive director  

Non-executive Directors’ Remuneration Details
The remuneration paid to non-executive Directors for the year ended 31 March 2015 is set out in the table below. Non-executive Directors 
are paid a basic fee. Additional fees are paid to the members and the Chairmen of Board Committees, to the Chairman and to the Deputy 
Chairman/Senior Independent Director. 

The remuneration of the Chairman is determined by the Remuneration Committee for approval by the Board. The Chairman absents himself 
from the Committee meeting while this matter is being considered. The remuneration of the other non-executive Directors is determined by 
the Chairman and the Chief Executive for approval by the Board. 

The fees are reviewed annually, taking account of any changes in responsibilities and benchmarking advice from external remuneration 
consultants on the level of fees in a range of comparable Irish and UK companies.

Basic Fee
Committee Chair  

and Membership Fees

Chairman / Deputy 
Chairman / Senior 

Independent Director Fees Audited Total
2015

€’000
2014

€’000
2015

€’000
2014

€’000
2015

€’000
2014

€’000
2015

€’000
2014

€’000

Non–executive Directors
John Moloney1 60 8 76 – 144
Róisín Brennan 60 8 – – 68
David Byrne 60 8 35 35 103 103
David Jukes2 – – – – – – – –
Pamela Kirby3 60 35 5 – – – 65 35
Jane Lodge 60 20 20 – – 80
Leslie Van de Walle 60 24 24 – – 84
Michael Buckley4 30 2 61 122 93 190
Kevin Melia5 15 2 – – 17

405 455 77 172 157 654
Ex gratia pension to dependant of retired 
Director  10  10
Total  664
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Notes
1. John Moloney was appointed as Chairman on 30 September 2014. 
2. David Jukes was appointed as a Director on 31 March 2015.
3. Pamela Kirby was appointed as a Director on 3 September 2013.
4. Michael Buckley retired as a non-executive Director and Chairman on 30 September 2014.
5. Kevin Melia passed away in June 2014.

€

Chairman (to include basic and committee fees) 225,000
Basic Fee
Committee Fees:
Audit 
Nomination and Governance 3,000
Remuneration 5,000
Additional Fees:
Audit Committee Chairman 12,000
Remuneration Committee Chairman 7,500
Deputy Chairman Fee 23,000
Senior Independent Director Fee 12,000

Total Directors’ Remuneration Audited Total
2015 
€’m

2014 
€’m

Executive Directors
Base Salary  1,575  1,540 
Bonus  1,089  1,533 

 154  150 
 913  721 

LTIP  4,002  2,447 
Total executive Directors’ remuneration  7,733 
Non-executive Directors
Fees 654
Total non-executive Directors’ remuneration  654 
Ex gratia payment to dependant of retired Director 10 10
Total Directors’ remuneration  8,397  7,097

Executive and Non-executive Directors’ and Company Secretary’s Interests
The interests of the Directors and the Company Secretary (including their respective family interests) in the share capital of DCC plc at 
31 March 2015 (together with their interests at 31 March 2014) are set out below:

No. of  
Ordinary Shares 

At 31 March 
2015

No. of  
Ordinary Shares 

At 31 March 
2014

Directors
John Moloney 2,000 2,000
Tommy Breen 250,744 250,000
Róisín Brennan – –
David Byrne 1,200 1,200
David Jukes1 – –
Pam Kirby 2,500 2,500
Jane Lodge 3,000 3,000
Donal Murphy 90,913
Fergal O’Dwyer 240,389
Leslie Van de Walle 670
Company Secretary
Gerard Whyte 145,000 144,400

1. David Jukes was appointed as a Director on 31 March 2015.
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no interests in the share capital or loan stock of the Company or any other Group undertaking at 31 March 2015. 

The shareholdings held by the executive Directors are substantially in excess of the share ownership guidelines in place, which are set out 
on page 90 of this report. 

The Company’s Register of Directors Interests (which is open to inspection) contains full details of Directors’ shareholdings and share options.

Executive Directors’ and Company Secretary’s Long Term Incentives
DCC plc Long Term Incentive Plan 2009 
Details of the executive Directors’ and the Company Secretary’s awards, in the form of nominal cost options, under the DCC plc Long Term 
Incentive Plan 2009 are set out in the table below:

Number of options

Performance period Earliest exercise date

Market 
price on 

award
At 31 March 

2014
Granted in 

year
Lapsed in 

year

Executive Directors
Tommy Breen – – 1 April 2009 – 31 March 2012 20 August 2012

– – 1 April 2010 – 31 March 2013 15 November 2013 €21.25
– (19,474) 1 April 2011 – 31 March 2014 15 November 2014 €17.50

37,070 – – 1 April 2012 – 31 March 2015 12 November 2015
– –

– – 1 April 2014 – 31 March 2017 12 November 2019

Donal Murphy – – 1 April 2009 – 31 March 2012 20 August 2012
– – 1 April 2010 – 31 March 2013 15 November 2013 €21.25
– (9,273) 1 April 2011 – 31 March 2014 15 November 2014 €17.50
– – 1 April 2012 – 31 March 2015 12 November 2015

12,059 – –
– – 1 April 2014 – 31 March 2017  12 November 2019

Fergal O’Dwyer – – 1 April 2009 – 31 March 2012 20 August 2012
– – 1 April 2010 – 31 March 2013 15 November 2013 €21.25
– (9,273) 1 April 2011 – 31 March 2014 15 November 2014 €17.50
– – 1 April 2012 – 31 March 2015 12 November 2015
– –

– – 1 April 2014 – 31 March 2017 12 November 2019

Company Secretary
Gerard Whyte – – 1 April 2009 – 31 March 2012 20 August 2012

– – 1 April 2010 – 31 March 2013 15 November 2013 €21.25
10,500 – 1 April 2011 – 31 March 2014 15 November 2014 €17.50

– – 1 April 2012 – 31 March 2015 12 November 2015
5,559 – –

– – 1 April 2014 – 31 March 2017 12 November 2019

The LTIP awards which were granted in November 2014 will vest in November 2019. The extent of vesting will be based on ROCE (40% of the 
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DCC plc 1998 Employee Share Option Scheme

Employee Share Option Scheme are set out in the table below.

Number of options  Options exercised in year

  

At 31 
March 

2014
Exercised in 

year
Lapsed in 

year

At 31 
March 

2015

Weighted 
average 

option price
at 31 March 

2015 
€

Normal Exercise 
Period

Exercise 
price 

€

Market 
price at 
date of 

exercise 

Executive Directors
Tommy Breen 
Basic Tier 100,000 (15,000) –
Donal Murphy 
Basic Tier 45,000 (15,000) – 30,000 €19.52
Fergal O’Dwyer 
Basic Tier 72,500 (15,000) – 57,500 €19.27
Company Secretary
Gerard Whyte 
Basic Tier 45,000 (10,000) – 35,000

and second tier options granted, net of options lapsed, amounted to 7.1% of issued share capital, of which 0.7% is currently outstanding. 

years from the date of grant. Basic tier options may normally be exercised only if there has been growth in the adjusted earnings per share 
of the Company equivalent to the increase in the Consumer Price Index plus 2%, compound, per annum over a period of at least three years 
following the date of grant. Second tier options may normally be exercised only if the growth in the adjusted earnings per share over a 

of growth in adjusted earnings per share and if there has been growth in the adjusted earnings per share of the Company equivalent to the 
increase in the Consumer Price Index plus 10%, compound, per annum in that period. 

appears in note 10 on pages 142 to 144.

Share Ownership Guidelines
The shareholdings held by the executive Directors as at 31 March 2015, as shown below, are substantially in excess of the guidelines set out 
on page 90.

Executive 

Number of 
shares held as at 

31 March 2015 

Shareholding 
as a multiple 

of base salary 
for the year 

ended 
31 March 2015

Share 
ownership 

guideline

Tommy Breen 250,744 19.4 3.0
Donal Murphy 90,913 12.0 2.0
Fergal O’Dwyer 30.2 2.0

The shareholdings in the table comprise only the shares held by the executive Directors. Unvested and unexercised share options are not 
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Governance
Composition
The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, Leslie Van de Walle (Chairman), David Byrne and Pam 

including in the area of executive remuneration. Each member’s length of tenure at 31 March 2015 is set out in the table below. Further 
biographical details regarding the members of the Remuneration Committee are set out on pages 70 to 71. 

Leslie Van de Walle (Chairman)

David Byrne

Pam Kirby

John Moloney

Number of Years

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

4.5

6

0.8

0.8

Meetings
The Committee met six times during the year ended 31 March 2015 and there was full attendance by all members of the Committee, subject 
to one meeting which David Byrne could not attend. The main agenda items included remuneration policy and the operation of the DCC plc 
Long Term Incentive Plan 2009, remuneration trends and market practice, the remuneration packages of the Chairman, the Chief Executive, 
the other executive Directors and certain senior Group executives, pension matters, grants of share options under the Company’s LTIP and 
approval of this report. 

The Chief Executive and the Head of Group Human Resources may be invited to attend meetings of the Committee, except when their own 
remuneration is being discussed. No Director is involved in consideration of his or her own remuneration. The Company Secretary acts as 
secretary to the Remuneration Committee.

Annual Evaluation of Performance 
As detailed on page 75, the Board conducts an annual evaluation of its own performance and that of its Committees, Committee Chairmen 
and individual Directors. In 2015, this process was externally facilitated by the ICSA, in accordance with the Code. The conclusion from this 
process was that the performance of the Committee and of the Chairman of the Committee were satisfactory and that no changes were 
necessary to the Committee’s Terms of Reference. 

Reporting 
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee reports to the Board at each meeting on the activities of the Committee.

The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee attends the Annual General Meeting to answer questions on the report on the Committees’ 
activities and matters within the scope of the Committee’s responsibilities. 

External Advice
The Remuneration Committee seeks independent advice when necessary from external consultants. Towers Watson acts as independent 
remuneration advisors to the Committee and during the year provided advice in relation to market trends, competitive positioning and 
developments in remuneration policy and practice. Towers Watson is a signatory to the Remuneration Consultants Group Code of Conduct 
and any advice was provided in accordance with this code. In light of this, and the level and nature of the service received, the Committee 

In the year to 31 March 2015, Towers Watson received fees of €53,000 in respect of advice provided to the Committee in regard to executive 
Director remuneration. Towers Watson also provided services to the Group on benchmarking, incentive design, Directors Remuneration 
Report and in relation to the LTIP.

pension practice and developments and act as actuaries and pension advisors to a number of companies in the Group. 

The table below shows the voting outcome at the 2014 AGM in relation to the 2014 Annual Report on Remuneration, the Remuneration 
Policy and the Amendments to the LTIP.

2014 Annual General Meeting Votes on Remuneration Matters

Vote Total votes cast Total votes for Total votes against Total abstentions

Advisory vote on 2014 Annual Report on Remuneration
(99.17%)

510,137 7,953

Advisory vote on 2014 Remuneration Policy
(1.07%)

Binding vote on Amendments to the LTIP
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Nomination and Governance Committee Report

In this context, the Committee undertook  
a formal process which led to the 
recommendation to the Board that David 
Jukes be appointed as a new non-executive 
Director of the Company in March 2015. 

The Committee also engaged in a process 
in relation to the appointment of a new 
Chairman, following which I was appointed 
Chairman Designate in June 2014. I took up 
the position of Chairman in September 
2014 following the retirement of Michael 
Buckley, my predecessor as Chairman of 
the Board and Chairman of this Committee.

The Committee is conscious of the merits  
of gender diversity on the Board, which 
currently comprises 30% female Directors. 
As I noted in my introduction to the 
Governance section, the Women on 
Boards Davies Review Annual Report  
2015 ranks DCC at thirteenth in the FTSE 
250 companies for its level of female 
Board representation. 

The Committee is also responsible for 
reviewing corporate governance 
developments and in particular has 
reviewed the changes to the UK Corporate 
Governance Code issued in September 
2014 (‘the 2014 Code’). This applies to 

1 October 2014 – in DCC’s case for the 

UK Corporate Governance Code (‘the Code’) 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 and we 

emanating from the 2014 Code, with the 
objective of ensuring that DCC will be fully 
compliant with the 2014 Code for the 

On behalf of the Nomination and 
Governance Committee

John Moloney
Chairman, Nomination and Governance 
Committee

The Nomination and Governance Committee comprises 
John Moloney (Chairman) and two independent non-
executive Directors, David Byrne and Leslie Van de Walle. 
Further biographical details regarding the members of the 
Nomination and Governance Committee are set out on 
pages 70 to 71.

Dear Shareholder,

As Chairman of DCC’s Nomination and 
Governance Committee, I am pleased to 
present the report of the Committee for the 
year ended 31 March 2015 which has been 
prepared by the Committee and approved 
by the Board.

The responsibilities of the Committee  
are summarised in the table on page 102 
and are set out in full in its Terms of 
Reference, which are available on the  
DCC website www.dcc.ie.

The Nomination and Governance 
Committee is responsible for keeping 
Board composition under constant 
review, including the skills, knowledge  
and experience required, taking account 
of the Group’s businesses, strategic 
direction and diversity objectives.  
The Committee has overseen the 
development of an excellent balance of 
background and experience on our Board 
as vacancies have arisen in recent years. 
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John Moloney (Chairman)

David Byrne

Leslie Van De Walle

Number of Years
0 1 2 3 4 5 6

0.8

6

4

Pamela Kirby

Jane Lodge

Tommy Breen

Fergal O’Dwyer

Leslie Van de Walle

Donal Murphy

John Moloney

Non-executive

Executive

Róisín Brennan

David Byrne

David Jukes*

Number of Years
0 3 6 9 12 15

6

9.5

6

0

1.5

2.5

4.5

0

15

6

15

Role and Responsibilities

Board Composition and Renewal
 – Regularly review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) required of the Board 

compared to its current position and make recommendations to the Board with regard to any changes.
 – Before making a nomination, to evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge, independence and experience on the Board, and, in the 

light of this evaluation, to prepare a description of the role and capabilities required for a particular appointment.
 – Keep under review the leadership needs of the organisation, both executive and non-executive, with a view to ensuring the 

 – Give consideration to succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive, and senior Group management.
 –

 – Keep under review the Board Diversity Policy and the setting of measurable objectives for implementing the Policy.

Corporate Governance
 – Monitor the Company’s compliance with corporate governance best practice and with applicable legal, regulatory and listing 

requirements (including but not limited to the Companies Acts, the UK Listing Authority’s Listing Rules and the UK Corporate 
Governance Code) and recommend to the Board such changes or additional action as the Committee deems necessary.

 –
 – Oversee the conduct of the annual evaluation of Board, Committee and individual Director performance.

Nomination and Governance Committee Report Continued

The length of tenure of the Directors on the Board and on the Nomination and Governance Committee is set out below. The length 
of tenure of members of other Board Committees is dealt with in the individual Committee reports.

* David Jukes joined the Board on 31 March 2015.

Length of Tenure on Nomination and Governance Committee

Length of Tenure on Board 
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Board Composition and Renewal
At each of its meetings during the year, the Nomination and Governance Committee considered the composition of the Board to ensure the 
Board had the appropriate combination of skills, knowledge and experience.

Appointment of new non-executive Director
 

at senior management and Board level, as well as a track record of business development internationally. 

 
which was reviewed by the Chairman, who undertook preliminary interviews with a number of candidates. A short list was then drawn up, 
reviewed with and approved by the Committee. Those on the short list were interviewed by the Chairman and by a number of the executive 
and non-executive Directors. When David Jukes emerged as the preferred candidate, he further met on an individual basis with the 
executive Directors and most of the non-executive Directors, before a formal proposal was made to the Board. This culminated in David 
being appointed to the Board on 31 March 2015. 

and renewal.

Appointment of Chairman
As noted in the introduction, John Moloney was appointed Chairman Designate in June 2014 and took up the position of Chairman of the 
Board in September 2014 following the retirement of Michael Buckley. As part of the process to appoint a new Chairman, the Committee 
gave detailed consideration to the requirements of the role and to John Moloney’s previous executive and non-executive director 

In accordance with the Code, Michael Buckley did not chair the Committee when it was dealing with the appointment of his successor as Chairman. 

The Company did not use an external search consultancy or open advertising in relation to the appointment of the new Chairman as it was 
not deemed necessary.

Re-appointment of non-executive Directors
During the year, John Moloney, David Byrne and Róisín Brennan each completed terms as non-executive Directors. After detailed consideration, 
including of performance and independence, the Committee recommended to the Board and the Board requested that they serve additional terms.

As noted in the Corporate Governance Statement on page 73, particular regard was taken of the fact that Róisín Brennan has served on the 
Board for nine and a half years.

Chairman 10%

Executive Directors 30%

Non-executive Directors 60%

Split of Directors

Diversity
Board diversity was a regular agenda item at Committee meetings during the year. A Board Diversity Policy, developed by the Committee 
and approved by the Board in 2013, is available on the Company’s website www.dcc.ie. 

A Group Diversity and Equal Opportunities Policy Statement, developed by Group Human Resources, has also been implemented in Group 
subsidiaries.

In reviewing the composition of the Board and giving consideration to the appointment of new non-executive Directors, the Committee 
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The composition of the Board in terms of gender and geographic location as at 31 March 2015 is illustrated below.

Succession Planning and Management Talent Development 
The Committee has particular regard to the leadership needs of the organisation and gives full consideration to succession planning for 
Directors and senior management, in particular the Chairman and Chief Executive, taking into account Group strategy, as well as the 
challenges and opportunities facing the Group and the skills and expertise required. A detailed succession management plan, prepared by 
the Chief Executive, is considered by the Committee on an annual basis and presented to the Board for approval.

The Committee also has oversight of Group management talent development programmes and reviews these with the Chief Executive 
before they are presented to the Board.

Corporate Governance

compliance with corporate governance best practice, with particular reference to the UK Corporate Governance Code. The Committee 
recommends any necessary action required to be adopted and implemented by the Board in respect of the Code, with particular reference 
to any revisions to the Code.

The Nomination and Governance Committee reviewed and approved the Corporate Governance Statement in the Annual Report and other 
material being made public in respect of the Company’s corporate governance.

The terms and conditions of appointment of non-executive Directors are set out in their letters of appointment, and include expected time 
commitment in respect of Board and Committee meetings, boardroom development training and visits to Group subsidiaries. The letters of 

of the Company.

Governance
Composition
The Nomination and Governance Committee comprises John Moloney (Chairman) and two independent non-executive Directors, David 
Byrne and Leslie Van De Walle. Each member’s length of tenure at 31 March 2015 is set out in the table on page 102. Further biographical 
details regarding the members of the Nomination and Governance Committee are set out on pages 70 to 71. 

Meetings
The Nomination and Governance Committee met eight times during the year ended 31 March 2015 and there was full attendance by all 
members of the Committee. 

The Chief Executive, other executives and external advisers are invited to attend all or part of any meeting. The Company Secretary is the 
secretary to the Nomination and Governance Committee.

Annual Evaluation of Performance 
As detailed on page 75, the Board conducts an annual evaluation of its own performance and that of its Committees, Committee Chairmen 
and individual Directors. In 2015, this process was externally facilitated by the ICSA, in accordance with the Code. The conclusion from this 
process was that the performance of the Committee and of the Chairman of the Committee was satisfactory and that no changes were 
necessary to the Committee’s Terms of Reference.

Reporting
The Chairman of the Nomination and Governance Committee reports to the Board at each meeting on the activities of the Committee.

The Chairman of the Nomination and Governance Committee attends the Annual General Meeting to answer questions on the report on 
the Committees’ activities and matters within the scope of the Committee’s responsibilities.

Nomination and Governance Committee Report Continued

Male 70%

Female 30% UK 40%

Ireland 60%

Gender Diversity Geographical Spread
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Report of the Directors

Results and Review of Activities

of the results for the year are set out in the Group Income Statement on page 115. 

 

Dividends 

Subject to shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting on 17 July 2015, this dividend will be paid on 23 July 2015 to shareholders 

million. This represents an increase of 10% on the prior year’s total dividend per share. 

31 March 2015 are shown in note 40 on page 173. 

Share Capital and Treasury Shares 

4,211,270 treasury shares were in issue at 31 March 2015. All of these shares are of the same class. With the exception of treasury shares 
which have no voting rights and no entitlement to dividends, they all carry equal voting rights and rank for dividends. 

(4.95% of the issued share capital) with a nominal value of €1.092 million. 

DCC plc Long Term Incentive Plan 2009, leaving a balance held as treasury shares at 31 March 2015 of 4,211,270 shares (4.77% of the issued 
share capital) with a nominal value of €1.053 million. 

 

the date of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company. A special resolution will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to renew 
this authority. 

At each Annual General Meeting, in addition to the authority to buy back shares referred to above, the Directors seek authority to exercise 
all the powers of the Company to allot shares up to an aggregate amount of €7,352,400, representing approximately one third of the issued 
share capital of the Company. 

The Directors also seek authority to allot shares for cash, other than strictly pro-rata to existing shareholdings. This proposed authority is 

share capital of the Company.

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 37 on page 171 and are deemed to form part of this Report. 

Principal Risks and Uncertainties 
Under Irish company law (Regulation 37 of the European Communities (Companies: Group Accounts) Regulations 1992, as amended),  
DCC is required to give a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group. These are addressed in the Risk Report  
on pages 10 to 15. 

Directors 
The names of the Directors and a short biographical note on each Director appear on pages 70 to 71. 

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, all Directors submit to re-election at each Annual General Meeting. 

With the exception of Tommy Breen, who has a service agreement with a notice period of twelve months, none of the other Directors has  
a service contract with the Company or with any member of the Group. 
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Corporate Governance 

provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Group’s system of risk management and internal control and the adoption of  
 

of this Report.

DCC plc is fully compliant with the 2012 version of the UK Corporate Governance Code, which applied to the Company for the year ended 
31 March 2015.

appointment and the re-election of Directors and the amendment of the Company’s Articles of Association are set out in the Corporate 
Governance Statement. 

General Meetings 

Chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination and Governance Committees. The Chief Executive presents at the AGM on the 
Group’s business and its performance during the prior year and answers questions from shareholders. 

Notice of the AGM, the Form of Proxy and the Annual Report are sent to shareholders at least 20 working days before the AGM. At the AGM, 
resolutions are voted on by a show of hands of those shareholders attending, in person or by proxy. After each resolution has been dealt 
with, details are given of the level of proxy votes cast on each resolution and the numbers for, against and withheld. 

If validly requested, resolutions can be voted by way of a poll. In a poll, the votes of shareholders present and voting at the AGM are added to 
the proxy votes received in advance of the AGM and the total number of votes for, against and withheld for each resolution are announced. 

All other general meetings are called Extraordinary General Meetings (‘EGM’). An EGM called for the passing of a special resolution must be 

preceding AGM and the Company continues to allow shareholders to vote by electronic means, an EGM to consider an ordinary resolution 
may be called at fourteen clear days’ notice. 

A quorum for an AGM or an EGM of the Company is constituted by three shareholders, present in person, by proxy or by a duly authorised 
representative in the case of a corporate member. The passing of resolutions at a general meeting, other than special resolutions, requires  
a simple majority. To be passed, a special resolution requires a majority of at least 75% of the votes cast. 

Shareholders have the right to attend, speak, ask questions and vote at general meetings. In accordance with Irish company law, the 

Shareholders may exercise their right to vote by appointing a proxy/proxies, by electronic means or in writing, to vote on some or all of their 
shares. The requirements for the receipt of valid proxy forms are set out in the notes to the Notice convening the meeting. 

A shareholder or a group of shareholders, holding at least 5% of the issued share capital of the Company, has the right to requisition a 
general meeting. A shareholder or a group of shareholders, holding at least 3% of the issued share capital, has the right to put an item on 
the agenda of an AGM or to table a draft resolution for an item on the agenda of a general meeting. 

The 2015 AGM will be held at 11.00 a.m. on 17 July 2015 at the InterContinental Hotel, Simmonscourt Road, Ballsbridge, Dublin 4, Ireland. 

Memorandum and Articles of Association 
The Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association sets out the objects and powers of the Company. The Articles of Association detail 
the rights attaching to shares, the method by which the Company’s shares can be purchased or re-issued, the provisions which apply to the 
holding of and voting at general meetings and the rules relating to the Directors, including their appointment, retirement, re-election, duties 
and powers. 

The Company’s Articles of Association may be amended by a special resolution passed by the shareholders at an AGM or EGM of the Company. 

A copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association can be obtained from the Company’s website www.dcc.ie. 

The Notice of the 2015 AGM sets out details of a resolution to be put to shareholders at the AGM in regard to changes to the Memorandum 
and Articles of Association of the Company to align them with the requirements of the new Irish Companies Act 2014.

Transparency Rules
As required by the Transparency Rules published by the Central Bank of Ireland under Section 22 of the Investment Funds, Companies  

Report of the Directors Continued
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As at 31 March 2015

No. of €0.25 
Ordinary Shares

% of Issued 
Share Capital 

(excluding 
treasury shares)

No. of €0.25 
Ordinary Shares

% of Issued 
Share Capital 

(excluding 
treasury shares)

FMR LLC and FIL Limited on behalf of its direct and indirect subsidiaries* 11,012,773 13.11%
Invesco* 5.32% 5.24%
Blackrock* 4.34%
Setanta Asset Management* 3.95%
Mawer Investment Management* 3.90% 3,277,427 3.90%
Jim Flavin 3.13% 3.13%

* notified as non-beneficial interests

Principal Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures 

Research and Development 
Certain Group companies are involved in ongoing development work aimed at improving the quality, competitiveness, technology and range 
of their products. 

Political Contributions 
There were no political contributions which require to be disclosed under the Electoral Act, 1997. 

Accounting Records 
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper books and accounting records, as outlined in Section 202 of the Companies Act, 
1990, are kept by the Company. The Directors believe that they have complied with this requirement by providing adequate resources to 
maintain proper books and accounting records throughout the Group including the appointment of personnel with appropriate 

Takeover Regulations 

Company. In addition, the Company’s long term incentive plans contain change of control provisions which can allow for the acceleration  
of the exercise of share options or awards in the event that a change of control occurs with respect to the Company. 

Auditors
A formal external audit tender process has now been completed by the Audit Committee on behalf of the Board and KPMG have been 

 
is required for the appointment of new statutory auditors and the Board is recommending that KPMG be appointed. 

attention of members or creditors of the Company.

John Moloney, Tommy Breen 
Directors
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

 
and regulations. 

 –
 –
 –

 –  

 

 

 
of fraud and other irregularities. 

Directors’ Statement Pursuant to the Transparency Regulations
 

 –

 –

 –

On behalf of the Board

John Moloney    Tommy Breen
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Report on the Financial Statements 
Our opinion

 –
 

 –

 –

What we have audited

 –
 –
 –
 –
 –

 

Our audit approach
Overview

 –

Audit scope
 –

 –

continuing operations. 

Areas of focus
 –
 –
 –

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus

 

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of DCC plc

Materiality

Areas of
focus

Audit scope



Financial Statem
ents

Supplem
entary Inform

ation
G

overnance
Strategic Report 

111

Area of focus How our audit addressed the area of focus

Goodwill impairment assessment

 

 
 

 

 

Acquisition and disposal accounting 
 

19 businesses for an aggregate initial 

 

 

interests and the assets and liabilities 

 
 

business. The Group has disclosed the  

 

 

businesses resulted in a gain on disposal  
 

discontinued operations.

DCC plc. 
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Area of focus How our audit addressed the area of focus

 

 

 

 

 
How we tailored the audit scope

Group operates.

Materiality

Overall Group materiality
How we determined it
Rationale for benchmark applied

 

Going concern

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of DCC plc 
Continued
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Other required reporting
Consistency of other information
Companies Acts 1963 to 2013 opinions

ISAs (UK & Ireland) reporting

 –
 –
 –

 –

 –

 –

Directors’ remuneration

Corporate governance statement

Other matters on which we are required to report by the Companies Acts 1963 to 2013
 –
 –
 –
 –

Our responsibilities and those of the directors
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 –

 –
 –

 
 
 

Paul Hennessy

Dublin 

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of DCC plc 
Continued
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Note

2015 Restated 2014 

Pre
exceptionals

£’000

Exceptionals 
(note 11)

£’000
Total
£’000

exceptionals
Exceptionals

Total

Continuing operations
Revenue 5 10,606,080 – 10,606,080 –
Cost of sales (9,781,910) – (9,781,910) –

824,170 – 824,170 –
(262,923) – (262,923) –
(350,978) – (350,978) –

6 19,657 3,798 23,455
Other operating expenses 6 (8,210) (23,602) (31,812)

of intangible assets 5 221,716 (19,804) 201,912
5 (24,057) – (24,057) –

197,659 (19,804) 177,855
12 (60,216) (2,191) (62,407)
12 31,288 – 31,288 –

14 402 – 402 –

operations 169,133 (21,995) 147,138

discontinued operations 16 5,088 11,079 16,167
174,221 (10,916) 163,305

15 (18,881) – (18,881)
155,340 (10,916) 144,424

144,427
Non-controlling interests (3)

144,424

128,661
15,763

144,424

Earnings per ordinary share
19  153.20p  144.02p
19  18.77p
19  171.97p

Diluted – continuing operations 19  152.10p
Diluted – discontinued operations 19  18.63p
Diluted 19  170.73p

John Moloney, Tommy Breen, Directors

Group Income Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2015
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Note
2015

£’000
2014

144,424

(15,007)
(2,721)
(6,942)

324
(24,346)

33 (19,302)
2,187

(17,115)

(41,461)
102,963

103,555
Non-controlling interests (592)

102,963

Continuing operations 103,378
Discontinued operations (415)

102,963

John Moloney, Tommy Breen, Directors

Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2015 
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Note
2015

£’000

Restated
2014

 
ASSETS
Non-current assets

20 464,689
Intangible assets 21 759,179

22 4,963
32 9,380
29 233,150

1,471,361
 
Current assets

24 320,655
25 847,274
29 5,395
28 1,260,942

2,434,266
16 12,196 –

2,446,462
Total assets 3,917,823

EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Parent

37 14,688
38 83,032
39 12,756
39 (10,462)
39 32,683
39 932

Retained earnings 40 849,119
Equity attributable to owners of the Parent 982,748
Non-controlling interests 41 4,245
Total equity 986,993
 
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities

30 1,314,386
29 92
32 30,533
33 10,230
35 29,016
34 40,149
36 1,272

1,425,678
 
Current liabilities

26 1,312,136
16,095

30 149,472
29 7,902
35 8,096
34 3,235

1,496,936
16 8,216 –

1,505,152
Total liabilities 2,930,830
Total equity and liabilities 3,917,823

 
John Moloney, Tommy Breen, Directors

Group Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015 
 Attributable to owners of the Parent

Share
capital

£’000

Share
premium

£’000

Retained
earnings

£’000

Other
reserves
(note 39)

£’000
Total
£’000

Non-
controlling

interests
£’000

Total
equity

£’000

At 1 April 2014 14,688 83,032 786,158 57,540 941,418 4,837 946,255

– – 144,427 – 144,427 (3) 144,424

– – – (14,418) (14,418) (589) (15,007)
– – – (2,721) (2,721) – (2,721)

– – (19,302) – (19,302) – (19,302)
– – 2,187 – 2,187 – 2,187
– – – (6,942) (6,942) – (6,942)
– – – 324 324 – 324

Total comprehensive income – – 127,312 (23,757) 103,555 (592) 102,963

– – 1,699 – 1,699 – 1,699
– – – 2,126 2,126 – 2,126
– – (66,050) – (66,050) – (66,050)

At 31 March 2015 14,688 83,032 849,119 35,909 982,748 4,245 986,993

capital
Retained
earnings

Other

Total

Non-
controlling

interests
Total

– – –

– – –
 – – – –

– – – –
– – – –
– – – –
– – – –
– –

– – – –
– – – –
– – –

John Moloney, Tommy Breen, Directors

Group Statement of Changes in Equity



Financial Statem
ents

Supplem
entary Inform

ation
G

overnance
Strategic Report 

119

Note
2015

£’000

Restated
2014

Operating activities
42 377,818

Exceptionals (16,454)
361,364

Interest paid (59,678)
(32,361)

269,325

Investing activities

16,054
36 52 100

828
16 55,090

31,222
103,246

(79,401)
46 (107,223)

(16,326)
(202,950)

(99,704)

Financing activities

1,699
448,989

–
–

450,688

(169,631)
(486)

(9,832) –
18 (66,050)
41 –

(245,999)
204,689

374,310
(58,206)
813,561

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 31 1,129,665

28 1,260,942
31 (133,629)
16 2,352 –

1,129,665

John Moloney, Tommy Breen, Directors

Group Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2015
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Note
2015

£’000
2014

17 127,185

(24,962)
(24,962)

102,223

102,223

Company Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2015

Note
2015

£’000
2014

ASSETS
Non-current assets

23 122,792
122,792

Current assets
25 258,033
28 617

258,650
Total assets 381,442

EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Parent

37 14,688
38 83,032
39 34,839

Retained earnings 40 69,865
Total equity 202,424

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities

14,128
14,128

Current liabilities
26 164,890

164,890
Total liabilities 179,018
Total equity and liabilities 381,442

John Moloney, Tommy Breen, Directors

Company Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

Share
capital

£’000

Share
premium

£’000

Retained
earnings

£’000

Other
reserves
(note 39)

£’000

Total
equity

£’000

At 1 April 2014 14,688 83,032 7,031 59,801 164,552

– – 127,185 – 127,185

– – – (24,962) (24,962)
Total comprehensive income – – 127,185 (24,962) 102,223

– – 1,699 – 1,699
– – (66,050) – (66,050)

At 31 March 2015 14,688 83,032 69,865 34,839 202,424

capital
Retained
earnings

Other
Total

– – –

– – –
– –

– – –
– – –

John Moloney, Tommy Breen, Directors

Company Statement of Changes in Equity
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Note
2015

£’000
2014

Operating activities
42 (94,544)

Interest paid (3,210)
(97,754)

Investing activities

10,371
37,775 –

115,716 14
163,862

(3,945)
(3,945)

159,917

Financing activities

1,699
1,699

18 (66,050)
(66,050)
(64,351)

(2,188)
(194)

2,999
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 617

John Moloney, Tommy Breen, Directors

Company Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2015
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Statement of Compliance 

Basis of Preparation

Adoption of IFRS and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (‘IFRIC’) Interpretations

 – Consolidated Financial Statements

Separate Financial Statements

 – Joint Arrangements Interests in Joint Ventures

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

 – Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

 – Financial Instruments: Presentation

 – Financial Instruments Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Continued
 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

Revenue Construction Contracts

 

Basis of Consolidation
Subsidiaries

 

 
 

Joint ventures 

 

 

Associates

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Investments in Subsidiary Undertakings 

Revenue Recognition

Sales of goods

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued
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Continued

Sales of services

 

Interest income

Dividend income

Rental income

Segment Reporting 

Foreign Currency Translation
Functional and presentation currency

Transactions and balances 
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Continued
Group companies

 
the rates on the transaction dates. The related balance sheets are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. 

 
 

Exceptional Items
 

 

 
 
 

Property, Plant and Equipment

Annual Rate

1

2

1

1

 
at each balance sheet date.

Impairment of Assets

 

 
 

Business Combinations
Business combinations from 1 April 2010

 

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued
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Continued

Business combinations prior to 1 April 2010

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Goodwill

transition date. 

recognition.

disposal. 

proportion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Continued
Intangible Assets (other than Goodwill)

Inventories

Financial Instruments

 
Leases

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and Other Payables

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued
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Continued
Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings

Derivative Financial Instruments 

Hedging

Fair value hedge
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Continued
Provisions

Environmental Provisions

Finance Costs

Finance Income

Income Tax
Current tax

Deferred tax

foreseeable future.

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued
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Continued

Pension and Other Post Employment Obligations

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Share-Based Payment Transactions

Share-based Payment
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Continued

 

 

Government Grants

 

Equity
Treasury shares

 
 

Dividends

Non-Controlling Interests

2. Financial Risk Management
Financial Risk Factors

Fair Value Estimation

 
at each balance sheet date. 

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued
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2. Financial Risk Management Continued

 

3. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

 

Goodwill
 

 

Business Combinations

 

Taxation

Provision for Impairment of Trade Receivables
 

 

Useful Lives for Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

charge for the period.
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4. Adoption of New Accounting Standards
Joint Arrangements Accounting 

Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Impact on Group Income Statement

As
reported

Change in
accounting

Restated

 Restated
continuing
operations

 Restated
discontinued

operations

Net operating exceptionals –
–

–

–

– 144.02p
Diluted –

191.20p –  191.20p
Diluted 190.14p –  190.14p

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued
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4. Adoption of New Accounting Standards Continued
Impact on Group Balance Sheet

 As
reported

Change in
 accounting

Restated

Assets

Intangible assets

Other current and non-current assets –
Total assets

–

Other current and non-current liabilities –
Total liabilities

Impact on Group Cash Flow Statement

 As
 reported

Change in
accounting 

 Restated

–

21
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5. Segment Information
Analysis by operating segment and by geography

DCC Energy 

DCC Technology

DCC Healthcare 

DCC Environmental 

Income Statement items 

Year ended 31 March 2015
DCC 

Energy
£’000

DCC
Technology

£’000

DCC
Healthcare

£’000

DCC
Environmental

£’000
Total
£’000

Segment revenue 7,624,082 2,350,284 488,114 143,600 10,606,080

119,392 49,341 39,689 13,294 221,716
(14,334) (2,794) (6,143) (786) (24,057)

(7,137) (11,101) (1,161) (405) (19,804)

97,921 35,446 32,385 12,103 177,855
(62,407)
31,288

402
147,138
(18,477)
128,661

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued
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5. Segment Information Continued

DCC DCC DCC DCC
Total

Balance Sheet items

As at 31 March 2015
DCC 

Energy
£’000

DCC
Technology

£’000

DCC
Healthcare

£’000

DCC
Environmental

£’000

Discontinued
operations

£’000
Total
£’000

Segment assets 1,295,081 575,816 348,753 172,147 – 2,391,797

Reconciliation to total assets as reported in the Group Balance Sheet
4,963

238,545
9,380

1,260,942
12,196

Total assets as reported in the Group Balance Sheet 3,917,823

Segment liabilities 789,025 429,028 102,878 38,523 – 1,359,454

Reconciliation to total liabilities as reported in the Group Balance Sheet
1,463,858

7,994
46,628
43,384

1,296
8,216

Total liabilities as reported in the Group Balance Sheet 2,930,830



138

5. Segment Information Continued

DCC DCC DCC DCC Discontinued
operations Total

Reconciliation to total assets as reported in the Group Balance Sheet

Reconciliation to total liabilities as reported in the Group Balance Sheet

Other segment information

Year ended 31 March 2015
DCC 

Energy
£’000

DCC
Technology

£’000

DCC
Healthcare

£’000

DCC
Environmental

£’000

Discontinued
operations

£’000
Total
£’000

Capital expenditure – additions 49,648 8,653 7,241 9,062 722 75,326

26,594 736 2,916 – 22 30,268

Depreciation 39,759 4,859 6,412 7,558 1,122 59,710

43,365 15,645 54,337 – 2,365 115,712

34,582 1,587 53,303 – 2,156 91,628

– – 5,637 – – 5,637
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5. Segment Information Continued

DCC DCC DCC DCC Discontinued
operations Total

Capital expenditure – additions

–

Depreciation

– –

Geographical analysis

Year ended 31 March
 UK  Republic of Ireland  Rest of the World Total

2015
£’000

Restated
2014 2015

£’000

Restated
2014 2015

£’000

Restated
2014 2015

£’000

Restated
2014

Income Statement items

8,023,403 717,077 1,865,600 10,606,080

170,014 17,671 34,031 221,716
(15,200) (1,164) (7,693) (24,057)

Net operating exceptionals (12,822) (5,222) (1,760) (19,804)
141,992 11,285 24,578 177,855

Balance Sheet items

1,759,724 213,479 418,594 2,391,797

974,137 114,892 270,425 1,359,454

Other segment information

Non-current assets** 951,649 120,238 156,944 1,228,831

Capital expenditure – additions 52,078 12,325 10,923 75,326

Capital expenditure
2,921 22 27,325 30,268

Depreciation 43,003 9,115 7,592 59,710

Total consideration
55,791 2,372 57,549 115,712

54,434 2,163 35,031 91,628

– 5,637 – – 5,637
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5. Segment Information Continued

 

2015
£’000

Restated
2014

663 44
2,463

Throughput 5,432
1,941
5,479
3,679

19,657
3,798

23,455

Other operating expenses
(2,126)

(425)
(2,727)

Other operating expenses (2,932)
(8,210)

(23,602)
Total other operating expenses (31,812)

Continuing
operations

2015
£’000

Discontinued
operations

2015
£’000

Total
2015

£’000

Continuing
operations

2014

Discontinued
operations

2014
Total
2014

58,588 1,122 59,710
24,057 1,288 25,345

5,637 – 5,637
1,508 – 1,508 –

(3,252) (4) (3,256)
 (358) – (358) –

987 (128) 859 11
Operating lease rentals
– land and buildings 16,145 193 16,338

471 162 633
11,281 252 11,533
27,897 607 28,504
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Continued

2015
£’000

2014

Audit fees 621
249

31 4
901

Audit fees 986
356
112

1,454

Auditor statutory disclosure

8. Directors’ Emoluments and Interests

9. Employment

2015
Number

Restated
2014

4,698
1,767
1,963
1,019

Continuing operations 9,447
309

9,756

2015
£’000

Restated
2014

Wages and salaries 326,427
37,696

2,126
11,173

394
377,816

Continuing operations 362,799
Discontinued operations 15,017

377,816
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10. Employee Share Options and Awards
Share-based Payment. The 

 

Impact on Income Statement
Share-based Payment

Date of grant
Grant
price

Minimum
duration 

of
vesting 
period

Number of
share 

awards/
options 
granted

Weighted
average

fair value

Expense in 
Income Statement

2015
£’000

2014

DCC plc Long Term Incentive Plan 2009
20 August 2009 (10) –

€12.00 (9)
299

€12.09 619
651
576 –

Total expense 2,126

Share options and awards
DCC plc Long Term Incentive Plan 2009

Share-based Payment 

2015
Number of

share 
awards

2014

share 

At 1 April 742,574
Granted 192,407
Exercised (28,026)
Expired (114,806)

792,149
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10. Employee Share Options and Awards Continued

£26.96

2015 2014

1.90
2.5

21.0
6.0

£34.56

 

Analysis of closing balance – outstanding at end of year

Date of grant Date of expiry

2015
Number of

share 
awards

2014

share 

20 August 2009 41,988
56,200

148,106
206,398
147,050
192,407 –
792,149

Analysis of closing balance – exercisable at end of year

DCC plc 1998 Employee Share Option Scheme
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10. Employee Share Options and Awards Continued

2015 2014
Average
exercise

price in €
per share Options

exercise
price in €
per share Options

At 1 April 17.96 804,250
Exercised 16.60 (127,400)
Expired 13.72 (89,500)

18.90 587,350
18.90 587,350

Analysis of closing balance – outstanding at end of year

2015 2014

Date of grant Date of expiry

Exercise
price

per share Options

Exercise
price

per share Options

€12.75 –
€15.65 –
€16.70 63,350
€18.05 91,000
€23.35 204,000
€19.50 12,500
€15.68 216,500

587,350

Analysis of closing balance – exercisable at end of year

2015 2014

Date of grant Date of expiry

Exercise
price

per share Options

Exercise
price

per share Options

€12.75 –
€15.65 –
€16.70 63,350
€18.05 91,000
€23.35 204,000
€19.50 12,500
€15.68 216,500

587,350
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2015
£’000

Restated
2014

 
Restructuring costs (15,027)

(5,637)
(3,396)
(1,508)

415
894

–
6,381
(1,926)

(19,804)

(2,191)
(21,995)

–
(21,995)

8,214 –
2,865

(10,916)

–
(10,916)

3,798
Exceptional operating expense (23,602)

(19,804)
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12. Finance Costs and Finance Income

2015
£’000

Restated
2014

Finance costs

(23,567)
(10)

(31,061)
(118)

(1,632)
Other interest (3,512)

(59,900)

(316)
(2,191)

(62,407)

Finance income
3,441

27,844
3

31,288

(31,119)

9,377
177,282

(189,431)
(2,772)

(6,927)
6,820

(107)

37,819
(37,131)

688

(2,191)

13. Foreign Currency

Average rate Closing rate
2015

Stg£1=
2014 2015

Stg£1=
2014

Euro 1.2674 1.3749
9.4577 10.2705

11.6866 12.7734
10.7266 11.9669
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Joint 
ventures

2015
£’000

Associates
2015

£’000

Total
2015

£’000

Restated

2014
Associates

2014

Restated
Total
2014

21,373 3,140 24,513

661 24 685 40
– – – – – –

661 24 685 40
(196) – (196)
465 24 489

Continuing operations 378 24 402
Discontinued operations 87 – 87 –

465 24 489

(i) Income tax expense recognised in the Income Statement

2015
£’000

Restated
2014

1,741
–

17,897
4,548

(5,359) –
Total current taxation 18,827

(4,589)
814

1,638
2,191

Total deferred tax 54

18,881

Continuing operations 18,477
Discontinued operations 404

18,881
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Continued
(ii) Deferred tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 

2015
£’000

Restated
2014

(1,777)
(410)

(2,187)
(324)

(2,511)

163,305
(402)

25,345
188,248

23,531
(2,997)
8,349

(4,994)
23,889

Tax on exceptional gain –
(5,008)
18,881

2015
%

2014

12.0%

exceptionals (0.4%)
11.6%
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Net Result from Discontinued Operations

 

2015
£’000

 

55,090
Costs of disposal (4,326)
Total net consideration 50,764

16,737
Intangible assets 17,573

627
Net deferred tax asset 383

16,192
21,439
(8,782)

(79)
(19,017)

Other current liabilities (552)
44,521
(2,721)

750
42,550

8,214

55,176
(86)

Net cash inflow from disposal of discontinued operations 55,090
Disposal costs paid (2,431)

52,659
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Continued

2015
£’000

2014

Revenue 143,360
Cost of sales (111,314)

32,046
Operating expenses (25,563)

6,483
(1,288)
5,195
(194)

87
5,088
2,865
8,214 –

16,167
(404)

15,763

2015
£’000

2014

(1,756)
4,674

– –
2,918

2015
£’000

Assets
647

48
2,537
6,612
2,352

12,196

Liabilities
(7,863)

(103)
(250)

(8,216)
Net assets 3,980
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18. Dividends

2015
£’000

2014

41,927

24,123

66,050

rate for the period.

19. Earnings per Ordinary Share

Continuing
operations

2015
£’000

Discontinued
operations

(note 16)
2015

£’000

Total
2015

£’000

Continuing
operations

2014

Discontinued 
operations 

 
2014 

Total
2014

128,664 15,763 144,427
19,171 1,166 20,337
21,995 (11,079) 10,916

non-controlling interests 169,830 5,850 175,680

Basic earnings per ordinary share

Continuing
operations

2015
pence

Discontinued
operations

2015
pence

Total
2015

pence

Continuing
operations

2014
pence

Discontinued
operations

2014
pence

Total
2014

pence

153.20p 18.77p 171.97p 144.02p
22.83p 1.39p 24.22p

Exceptionals after tax 26.19p (13.19p) 13.00p
202.22p 6.97p 209.19p  191.20p

83,983

intangible assets and net exceptionals.
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19. Earnings per Ordinary Share Continued

Diluted earnings per ordinary share

Continuing
operations

2015
pence

Discontinued
operations

2015
pence

Total
2015

pence

Continuing
operations

2014
pence

Discontinued
operations

2014
pence

Total
2014

pence

152.10p 18.63p 170.73p
22.66p 1.38p 24.04p

Exceptionals after tax 26.00p (13.10p) 12.90p
200.76p 6.91p 207.67p  190.14p

84,594

2015
‘000

2014

 
83,983

611
84,594

 

as at the end of the reporting period. 
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Group

Land &
buildings

£’000

Plant &
machinery

& 
cylinders

£’000

Fixtures &

equipment
£’000

Motor
vehicles

£’000
Total
£’000

Year ended 31 March 2015

152,394 208,986 32,654 70,830 464,864
(4,717) (7,144) (1,343) (1,165) (14,369)
3,983 22,980 2,204 1,101 30,268

(13,323) (1,757) (919) (738) (16,737)
Additions 9,483 43,762 12,609 9,472 75,326
Disposals (1,216) (1,325) (517) (9,740) (12,798)
Depreciation charge (3,762) (31,499) (12,226) (12,223) (59,710)

(425) (588) (495) – (1,508)
(606) – (41) – (647)
(494) (4,499) 2,444 2,549 –

141,317 228,916 34,370 60,086 464,689

At 31 March 2015
Cost 172,651 577,166 109,975 148,884 1,008,676

(31,334) (348,250) (75,605) (88,798) (543,987)
141,317 228,916 34,370 60,086 464,689

449
Disposal of subsidiaries –
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation charge

– – –
–

Cost

2015 
£’000

2014 

477
305

29
811
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21. Intangible Assets

Group
Goodwill 

£’000

Customer 
related 

intangibles
£’000

Brand 
related 

intangibles 
£’000

Total 
£’000

Year ended 31 March 2015
688,439 54,077 – 742,516
(23,779) (2,215) (416) (26,410)
67,715 18,484 5,429 91,628

(13,510) (4,063) – (17,573)
(5,637) – – (5,637)

– (24,802) (543) (25,345)
713,228 41,481 4,470 759,179

At 31 March 2015
Cost 752,745 142,508 5,013 900,266

(39,517) (101,027) (543) (141,087)
713,228 41,481 4,470 759,179

–
–
–

– –
– –

– –
–

Cost –
–
–
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21. Intangible Assets Continued
Cash-generating units

 
Operating Segments

Cash-generating units Goodwill (£’000)

2015 
number

Restated 
2014 2015 

£’000

Restated 
2014 

12 12 419,136
7 62,603
4 4 154,121
4 4 77,368

Discontinued operations – 4 –
27 29 713,228

Impairment of Assets

2015 
£’000

2014 

252,735
135,209

 

Impairment testing of goodwill
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21. Intangible Assets Continued
Sensitivity Analysis

 

Increase in discount rate
0.4 percentage points

22. Equity Accounted Investments

2015 
£’000

Restated 
2014 

At 1 April 6,124
489

(828)
(627) –

Exchange and other (195)
4,963

Non-
current 

assets 
£’000

Current 
assets 
£’000

Non-
current 

liabilities 
£’000

Current 
liabilities 

£’000

Net 
assets 
£’000

As at 31 March 2015
5,081 2,573 – (3,356) 4,298

Associates 338 420 – (93) 665
Total 5,419 2,993 – (3,449) 4,963

Associates
Total

Nature of Business Financial Year End % Shareholding Relevant Share Capital

 
 

 

 
 products.
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23. Investments in Subsidiary Undertakings

Company
2015 

£’000
2014 

At 1 April 142,692
Additions 3,945
Disposals (6,675) –
Exchange (17,170)

122,792

24. Inventories

Group
2015

£’000

Restated
2014

16,149
1,974

302,532
320,655

25. Trade and Other Receivables

Group
2015 

£’000

Restated 
2014 

774,546
(15,103)
58,333

8,818
Other debtors 20,680

847,274

Company
2015 

£’000
2014 

258,033
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26. Trade and Other Payables

Group
2015

£’000

Restated
2014

1,095,648
Other creditors and accruals 140,709

10,328
57,846

24 20
4,469
3,112

1,312,136

Company
2015

£’000
2014

164,448
Other creditors and accruals 442

164,890

27. Movement in Working Capital

Group
Inventories 

£’000

Trade 
and other 

receivables 
£’000

Trade 
and other 
payables 

£’000
Total 
£’000

Year ended 31 March 2015
501,408 957,821 (1,489,054) (29,825)
(10,979) (38,393) 48,317 (1,055)
20,878 49,138 (56,834) 13,182
(16,192) (21,439) 19,017 (18,614)
(2,538) (2,582) 1,067 (4,053)

(169,385) (90,659) 157,488 (102,556)
(2,537) (6,612) 7,863 (1,286)

320,655 847,274 (1,312,136) (144,207)

Disposal of subsidiaries
–
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27. Movement in Working Capital Continued

Company

Trade 
and other

receivables
£’000

Trade 
and other
payables

£’000
Total 
£’000

Year ended 31 March 2015
At 1 April 2014 335,662 (316,801) 18,861

(37,777) 30,179 (7,598)
(28,405) – (28,405)
(11,447) 107,604 96,157

258,033 (179,018) 79,015

–

28. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Group
2015

£’000

Restated
2014

251,592
1,009,350
1,260,942

2015
£’000

Restated
2014

1,260,942
(133,629)

2,352 –
1,129,665

Company
2015

£’000
2014

617
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29. Derivative Financial Instruments

Group
2015

£’000
2014

Non-current assets
187,033
26,561 –
17,018
2,538 –

233,150
Current assets

2,610
–

2,026
48 2
39

672 20
–
–

5,395
Total assets 238,545

Non-current liabilities
–

(92)
–

(92)
Current liabilities

–
–

(933)
–

(208)
(6,501)

(225)
(35)

(7,902)
Total liabilities (7,994)

230,551

Interest rate swaps

Currency swaps
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29. Derivative Financial Instruments Continued
Cross currency interest rate swaps

 

Forward foreign exchange contracts

 
after the balance sheet date.

Commodity price forward contracts

balance sheet date.

30. Borrowings

Group
2015

£’000
2014

Non-current
213

1,314,173
1,314,386

Current
133,629

357
15,486

149,472
Total borrowings 1,463,858

2015
£’000

2014

99,759
303,562
911,065

1,314,386
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30. Borrowings Continued
Unsecured Notes 

 

 

 
 

 

2015 2014

7.1 years

 4.78%
 4.91%
 3.49%

 2.10%
 1.84%
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31. Analysis of Net Cash/(Debt)
Reconciliation of opening to closing net cash/(debt)

Restated
At 1

April 2014
£’000 £’000

Fair value adjustment
Translation
adjustment

£’000

At 31
March 2015

£’000

Income
Statement

£’000

Cash Flow
Hedge Reserve

£’000

962,139 360,591 – – (59,436) 1,263,294
(148,578) 13,719 – – 1,230 (133,629)
813,561 374,310 – – (58,206) 1,129,665

(1,120) 486 – – 64 (570)
(892,859) (279,358) (196,358) – 38,916 (1,329,659)

(6,874) 8,098 194,167 37,131 (1,971) 230,551

(87,292) 103,536 (2,191) 37,131 (21,197) 29,987

(89,763) 103,655 (2,191) 37,131 (21,197) 27,635

Restated
At 1 Translation

Restated

– –
– –
– –
– –

–
144

Group net debt 

Euro
£’000

Sterling
£’000

US Dollar
£’000

Swedish Krona
£’000

Other
£’000

Total
£’000

414,859 803,136 9,049 20,128 16,122 1,263,294
(722,902) (740,644) – (312) – (1,463,858)
138,285 95,656 (3,390) – – 230,551
(169,758) 158,148 5,659 19,816 16,122 29,987

Euro Other Total

–
– –
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Property
plant and

equipment
£’000

Intangible
assets
£’000

Tax losses
and credits

£’000

Retirement

obligations
£’000

Short term
temporary

and other

£’000
Total
£’000

9,590 14,438 (3,009) (2,420) (2,332) 16,267
2,433 (5,156) (257) 1,725 1,309 54

– – – (2,187) (324) (2,511)
3,028 4,382 – – 616 8,026

(218) (277) – 875 3 383
Deferred tax attributable to asset held for sale 

10 – – – 38 48
(446) (996) 287 170 (129) (1,114)

14,397 12,391 (2,979) (1,837) (819) 21,153

Deferred tax asset (1,265) – (2,979) (1,944) (3,192) (9,380)
15,662 12,391 – 107 2,373 30,533
14,397 12,391 (2,979) (1,837) (819) 21,153

plant and Intangible
assets

Tax losses
and credits obligations

and other
Total

– – –
– – –

Deferred tax asset –
–
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Group

Discount rates

Asset volatility

 

Mortality risk
 

2015 2014

Republic of Ireland schemes
Rate of increase in salaries  n/a*

 1.25% – 2.50%
Discount rate  1.50%

 1.60%

UK schemes
Rate of increase in salaries  3.10%

 1.55% – 3.10%
Discount rate  3.35%

 3.10%
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Continued

 

2015 2014

Current retirees
 24.1
 25.9

Future retirees
 26.9
 28.9

2015
ROI

£’000
UK

£’000
Total
£’000

22,673 10,000 32,673
31,848 13,840 45,688

870 1,145 2,015
Cash 3,269 1,518 4,787

58,660 26,503 85,163
(66,056) (29,337) (95,393)

(7,396) (2,834) (10,230)

2014
ROI Total

Cash
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Continued

2015
£’000

2014

(677)
326
(43)

(394)

Continuing operations (72)
Discontinued operations (322)

(394)

5,922 –
2,823
8,745

6,381
Discontinued operations 2,364 –

8,745

(3,875)
3,439

(436)

(316)
Discontinued operations (120)

(436)

2015
£’000

2014

17,895
1,300

(1,282) –
(37,215)
(19,302)
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Continued

2015
£’000

2014

At 1 April 103,922
3,439

17,895
7,189

184
(43)

(2,295)
Disposal of subsidiaries (36,249) –
Exchange (8,879)

85,163

2015
£’000

2014

At 1 April 119,955
677

(326)
Interest cost 3,875

(1,300)
1,282 –

37,215
184

(2,295)
(8,745)

Disposal of subsidiaries (45,031) –
Exchange (10,098)

95,393

Sensitivity analysis for principal assumptions used to measure scheme liabilities
 
 

Assumption Change in assumption Impact on Irish plan liabilities Impact on UK plan liabilities 

Discount rate
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Continued
Split of scheme assets

UK  Republic of Ireland  Total
2015

£’000
2014 2015

£’000
2014 2015

£’000
2014

9,499 21,200 30,699
501 1,473 1,974

5,709 17,281 22,990
8,131 14,567 22,698
1,518 3,269 4,787

1,145 870 2,015
26,503 58,660 85,163

34. Contingent Acquisition Consideration
Group

 

2015
£’000

2014

3,235
8,394

31,755
43,384

Non-current liabilities 40,149
Current liabilities 3,235

43,384

 
 

2015
£’000

2014

At 1 April 53,323
8,489

(79) –
–

(1,056)
(16,326)

Exchange and other (967)
43,384
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35. Provisions for Liabilities and Charges
 

Group

Rationalisation,
restructuring

and
redundancy

£’000

Environmental
and

remediation
£’000

Insurance
and other

£’000
Total
£’000

13,265 9,609 8,068 30,942
(460) (391) 3,118 2,267
(503) (904) (2,071) (3,478)

– 10,829 – 10,829
 

– – (250) (250)
Exchange and other (1,653) (1,147) (398) (3,198)

10,649 17,996 8,467 37,112

Non–current liabilities 4,979 17,821 6,216 29,016
Current liabilities 5,670 175 2,251 8,096

10,649 17,996 8,467 37,112

 

Group

restructuring
and and Insurance

and other Total

– –
Exchange and other

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities 440

Rationalisation, restructuring and redundancy

Environmental and remediation

Insurance and other
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36. Government Grants 

Group
2015

£’000
2014

At 1 April 1,343
(358)
281 –

52 100
(22)

1,296
(24)

1,272

related capital assets.

37. Share Capital
 
Group and Company

2015
£’000

2014

Authorised
25,365

Issued
 

 
14,688

 

 

 
on each share is paid up. 

 
 

Restriction on transfer of shares

 

four transferees. 

Restriction of voting rights
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38. Share Premium

Group and Company
2015

£’000
2014

83,032

 

39. Other Reserves

Group

Share
based

payment
reserve1

£’000

 

hedge
reserve2

£’000

Foreign 
currency

translation
reserve3

£’000

Other
reserves4

£’000
Total
£’000

– – –
 – – –

– – –
– – –
– – –

– transfers to sales – – –
– transfers to cost of sales – – –
– transfers to operating expenses – – –
– tax on transfers – – –

– – –
10,630 (3,844) 49,822 932 57,540

– – (14,418) – (14,418)
– – (2,721) – (2,721)

– 37,131 – – 37,131
– (15,901) – – (15,901)
– (2,633) – – (2,633)

– transfers to sales – 4,893 – – 4,893
– transfers to cost of sales – 7,889 – – 7,889
– transfers to operating expenses – (40,954) – – (40,954)
– tax on transfers – 2,957 – – 2,957

2,126 – – – 2,126
12,756 (10,462) 32,683 932 35,909
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39. Other Reserves Continued

Company

Foreign
currency

translation
reserve5

£’000

Other
reserves6

£’000
Total
£’000

229
–

59,572 229 59,801
(24,962) – (24,962)
34,610 229 34,839

rate at the balance sheet date.

40. Retained Earnings

Group
2015

£’000
2014

At 1 April 786,158
144,427

(19,302)
2,187
1,699

(66,050)
849,119

 
Company

2015
£’000

2014

At 1 April 7,031
127,185

1,699
(66,050)
69,865

 

 

41. Non-Controlling Interests 

Group
2015

£’000
2014

At 1 April 4,837
(3)
–

Exchange (589)
4,245
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42. Cash Generated from Operations

Group
2015

£’000

Restated
2014

144,424

18,881
(489)

– net operating exceptionals 8,725
31,313

202,854
2,126

59,710
25,345
(3,256)

(358)
(11,159)

169,385
90,659

(157,488)
377,818

Company
2015

£’000
2014

127,185

– net operating exceptionals (31,100) –
(7,160)

(87,312)
1,613

11,447
(107,604)

Cash generated from operations (94,544)

43. Contingencies
Guarantees

Other
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Group
2015

£’000
2014

 
9,613

 
132,821
142,434

45. Commitments under Operating and Finance Leases
Group
Operating leases

 

2015
£’000

2014

23,073
60,129
80,929

164,131

respect of operating leases.

Finance leases
 

 2015 2014

Minimum
payments

£’000

Present
value of

payments
£’000

359 357
216 213
575 570

(5) – –
570 570

46. Business Combinations

 –

 –

 –
 –
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46. Business Combinations Continued

2015
£’000

Williams

2015
£’000
Qstar

2015
£’000

Others

2015
£’000
Total

Assets
Non-current assets

2,598 26,152 1,518 30,268
11,827 6,983 5,103 23,913

2 – – 2
Total non-current assets 14,427 33,135 6,621 54,183

Current assets
2,536 5,603 12,739 20,878
6,816 27,815 14,507 49,138

Total current assets 9,352 33,418 27,246 70,016

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

(2,365) (4,879) (784) (8,028)
– (10,829) – (10,829)

(281) – – (281)
Total non-current liabilities (2,646) (15,708) (784) (19,138)

Current liabilities
(8,686) (35,520) (12,628) (56,834)

183 – (413) (230)
Total current liabilities (8,503) (35,520) (13,041) (57,064)

12,630 15,325 20,042 47,997
31,819 23,370 12,526 67,715

Total consideration (enterprise value) 44,449 38,695 32,568 115,712

Cash 47,926 36,402 17,410 101,738
– – 9,246 9,246

(3,477) – (284) (3,761)
44,449 36,402 26,372 107,223

– 2,293 6,196 8,489
Total consideration 44,449 38,695 32,568 115,712
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46. Business Combinations Continued

Williams

Book
value
£’000

Fair value
adjustments

£’000

Fair
value
£’000

2,600 11,827 14,427
Current assets 9,352 – 9,352
Non-current liabilities (281) (2,365) (2,646)
Current liabilities (8,503) – (8,503)

3,168 9,462 12,630
41,281 (9,462) 31,819
44,449 – 44,449

Qstar

Book
value
£’000

Fair value
adjustments

£’000

Fair
value
£’000

26,152 6,983 33,135
Current assets 33,418 – 33,418
Non-current liabilities (14,172) (1,536) (15,708)
Current liabilities (35,520) – (35,520)

9,878 5,447 15,325
28,817 (5,447) 23,370
38,695 – 38,695

Others

Book
value
£’000

Fair value
adjustments

£’000

Fair
value
£’000

1,518 5,103 6,621
Current assets 27,246 – 27,246
Non-current liabilities (303) (481) (784)
Current liabilities (13,041) – (13,041)

15,420 4,622 20,042
17,148 (4,622) 12,526

32,568 – 32,568

Total

Book
value
£’000

Fair value
adjustments

£’000

Fair
value
£’000

30,270 23,913 54,183
Current assets 70,016 – 70,016
Non-current liabilities (14,756) (4,382) (19,138)
Current liabilities (57,064) – (57,064)

28,466 19,531 47,997
87,246 (19,531) 67,715

115,712 – 115,712
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46. Business Combinations Continued

 
tax purposes.

 

 

2015
£’000

Revenue 397,257
Cost of sales (343,176)

54,081
Operating costs (38,741)

15,340
8

15,348
(2,684)
12,664

2015
£’000

Revenue 10,658,071
145,324
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47. Financial Risk and Capital Management
Capital risk management

Group
2015

£’000

Restated
2014

982,748
(29,987)
43,384

996,145

Financial risk management

(i) Credit risk management
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47. Financial Risk and Capital Management Continued

Group
2015

£’000
2014

42,986
10,447

2,899
1,437

57,769

Group
2015

£’000

Restated
2014

At 1 April 17,222
4,635

(1,523)
(3,929)

45
Exchange (1,069)
Disposal of subsidiaries (248) –

(30) –
15,103

Company

(ii) Liquidity risk management

 
 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued



Financial Statem
ents

Supplem
entary Inform

ation
G

overnance
Strategic Report 

181

47. Financial Risk and Capital Management Continued

Group
As at 31 March 2015

Less than
1 year
£’000

Between
1 and 2 years

£’000

Between
2 and 5 years

£’000

Over
5 years

£’000
Total
£’000

(1,312,136) – – – (1,312,136)
(149,196) (95,150) (267,058) (875,415) (1,386,819)
(61,480) (56,590) (146,062) (138,989) (403,121)
(3,235) (8,394) (31,755) – (43,384)

(34,439) (91,054) (257,247) (697,976) (1,080,716)
(5,117) – – – (5,117)

(1,565,603) (251,188) (702,122) (1,712,380) (4,231,293)

4,080 4,061 7,449 8,418 24,008
66,573 129,713 372,261 864,604 1,433,151
70,653 133,774 379,710 873,022 1,457,159

Group Total

– – –

–

– – –
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47. Financial Risk and Capital Management Continued

Company
As at 31 March 2015

Less than
1 year
£’000

Between
1 and 2 years

£’000

Between
2 and 5 years

£’000

Over
5 years

£’000
Total
£’000

164,890 – 14,128 – 179,018

Total

– –

(iii) Market risk management
Foreign exchange risk management

not intended to be repatriated. 

 

Sensitivity to currency movements
Group

Company

Interest rate risk management
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47. Financial Risk and Capital Management Continued 
Sensitivity of interest charges to interest rate movements
Group

Company

Commodity price risk management

Sensitivity to commodity price movements
Group

Company

 

 

2015

Group
Book value

£’000
Fair value

£’000

Financial assets
238,545 238,545
847,274 847,274

1,260,942 1,260,942
2,346,761 2,346,761

Financial liabilities
1,463,858 1,439,781

7,994 7,994
43,384 43,384

1,312,136 1,312,136
2,827,372 2,803,295
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47. Financial Risk and Capital Management Continued

2015  2014

Company
Book value

£’000
Fair value

£’000

Financial assets
258,033 258,033

617 617
258,650 258,650

Financial liabilities
179,018 179,018
179,018 179,018

Group

 –
 –

 –

Group
Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2015

Level 1
£’000

Level 2
£’000

Level 3
£’000

Total
£’000

Financial assets
– 238,545 – 238,545
– 238,545 – 238,545

Financial liabilities
– – 43,384 43,384
– 7,994 – 7,994
– 7,994 43,384 51,378

Group Total

– –
– –

– –
– –
–

Level 2 fair value measurement:

 –

 –

 –

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued
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47. Financial Risk and Capital Management Continued
Level 3 fair value measurement:

 –  

 –  

Company

(i) Financial assets

Group
As at 31 March 2015

Gross amounts  
of recognised 

£’000

Gross amounts  
of recognised 

Balance Sheet 
£’000

Net amounts of 

presented in the 
Balance Sheet

£’000

Related amounts not set  

Net amount
£’000

Financial
liabilities

£’000

Cash
collateral
received

£’000

235,760 – 235,760 (92) – 235,668
199,362 – 199,362 (85,227) – 114,135
435,122 – 435,122 (85,319) – 349,803

Group

 
of recognised 

 
of recognised 

 
 presented in the 

 

liabilities

Cash
collateral

– –
– –
– –

(ii) Financial liabilities

Group
As at 31 March 2015

Gross amounts  
of recognised 

£’000

Gross amounts  
of recognised 

 

Balance Sheet
£’000

Net amounts of 

presented in the 
Balance Sheet

£’000

Related amounts not set  

Net amount
£’000

 
 

Financial
assets
£’000

Cash
collateral
provided

£’000

92 – 92 (92) – –
85,227 – 85,227 (85,227) – –
85,319 – 85,319 (85,319) – –

Group

 
of recognised 

 
of recognised 

 
 presented in the 

 

assets

Cash
collateral

– –
– – –
– –
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47. Financial Risk and Capital Management Continued

 

 

48. Related Party Transactions
Related 

Party Disclosures  

Group
Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

 

Compensation of key management personnel

 

2015
£’000

2014

2,224
720
791 404

3,735

Company
Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

49. Events after the Balance Sheet Date
Butagaz S.A.S.
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49. Events after the Balance Sheet Date Continued

 

Butagaz

Book
value
£’000

306,087
Current assets 186,633
Non-current liabilities (237,018)
Current liabilities (115,581)

140,121
153,709
293,830

Computers Unlimited

 

Book
value
£’000

Fair value
adjustments

£’000

Fair
value
£’000

869 2,153 3,022
Current assets 29,628 – 29,628
Non-current liabilities – (431) (431)
Current liabilities (14,481) – (14,481)

16,016 1,722 17,738
7,984 (1,722) 6,262

24,000 – 24,000

Bottle Green Limited
 

50. Approval of Financial Statements
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Group Directory – Principal Subsidiaries1  
and Joint Ventures
DCC Energy 
Company name & address Principal activity Contact details

DCC Energy Limited
DCC House, Leopardstown Road,  
Foxrock, Dublin 18
Ireland

Holding and divisional management
company

Tel: +353 1 2799 400
Fax: +353 1 2831 017
Email: energy@dcc.ie
www.dcc.ie

Oil

Certas Energy UK Limited 
302 Bridgewater Place,
Birchwood Park,
Warrington WA3 6XG, England

Procurement, sales, marketing and 
distribution of petroleum and lubricant 
products

Tel: +44 1925 858 500
Fax: +44 1925 858 501
Email: info@certasenergy.co.uk
www.certasenergy.co.uk

Emo Oil Limited
Clonminam Industrial Estate,
Portlaoise, 
Co. Laois, Ireland

Procurement, sales, marketing and 
distribution of petroleum products

Tel: +353 578 674 700
Fax: +353 578 674 775
Email: info@emo.ie
www.emo.ie

DCC Energy Limited
Airport Road West,
Sydenham, Belfast BT3 9ED, 
Northern Ireland

Procurement, sales, marketing and 
distribution of petroleum products

Tel: +44 28 9045 6789
Fax: +44 28 9045 7371 
Email: enquiries@emooil.com
www.emooil.com

DCC Energi Danmark A/S
Naerum Hovedgade 8,
2850 Naerum, Denmark

Procurement, sales, marketing and 
distribution of petroleum products and 
natural gas

Tel: +45 7010 2010
Fax: +45 4558 0190
Email: info@dccenergi.dk
www.dccenergi.dk

Energie Direct 
MineralölhandelsgesmbH
Alte Poststraße 400,
A-8055 Graz,
Austria

Procurement, sales, marketing and 
distribution of petroleum products

Tel: +43 316 210
Fax: +43 316 210 2110
Email: info@energiedirect.at
www.energiedirect.at

Swea Energi AB
Storgatan 35,
434 32 Kungsbacka,
Sweden

Procurement, sales, marketing and 
distribution of petroleum products

Tel: +46 300 687000
Fax: +46 300 687050
Email: info@sweaenergi.se
www.sweaenergi.se

Qstar Försäljning AB 
Spårgatan 5, 
Box 633, 
601 14 Norrköping,
Sweden

Procurement, sales and marketing of 
petroleum products

Tel: +46 11 280 000
Fax: +46 11 280 029
Email: info@qstar.se
www.qstar.se 

Fuel Card Services Limited
Alexandra House,
Lawnswood Business Park,
Redvers Close, 
Leeds LS16 6QY, England

Sale and administration of petroleum 
products through the use of fuel cards

Tel: +44 113 384 6264
Fax: +44 844 870 9827
Email: info@fuelcardservices.com
www.fuelcardservices.com

LPG

Flogas Britain Limited
81 Rayns Way,
Syston, Leicester LE7 1PF, 
England

Procurement, sales, marketing and Tel: +44 116 2649 000
Fax: +44 116 2649 001

Flogas Ireland Limited
Knockbrack House,
Matthews Lane,
Donore Road, 
Drogheda, Co. Louth, Ireland

Procurement, sales, marketing and 
 

gas and natural gas

Tel: +353 41 9831 041
Fax: +353 41 9834 652
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Group Directory – Principal Subsidiaries  
and Joint Ventures Continued
DCC Energy 
Company name & address Principal activity Contact details

Benegas BV 
Zuiderzeestraatweg 1, 3882NC, 
Putten, The Netherlands

Procurement, sales, marketing and Tel: +31 3417 23300
Fax: +31 3413 60216
Email: info@benegas.com
www.benegas.nl

Flogas Sverige AB
Brännkyrkagatan 63,
11822 Stockholm,
Sweden

Procurement, sales, marketing and Tel: +46 08 6750080

Flogas Norge AS
Nydalsveien 153, 3 etg,
0484 Oslo,
Norway

Procurement, sales, marketing and Tel: +47 90248000

DCC Technology 
Company name & address Principal activity Contact details

DCC Technology Limited
DCC House, 
Leopardstown Road, Foxrock, 
Dublin 18
Ireland

Holding and divisional management  
company

Tel: +353 1 2799 400
Fax: +353 1 2831 017
Email: technology@dcc.ie
www.dcc.ie

Exertis (UK) Ltd
Shorten Brook Way, 
Altham Business Park, Altham, 
Accrington, Lancashire BB5 5YJ, 
England

Sales, marketing and distribution of 
technology products 

Tel: +44 1282 776 776
Fax: +44 1282 770 001
Email: enquiries@exertis.co.uk
www.exertis.co.uk

Exertis Ireland Limited
M50 Business Park,
Ballymount Road Upper, 
Dublin 12, Ireland

Sales, marketing and distribution of 
technology products

Tel: +353 1 4087 171
Fax: +353 1 4193 111
Email: ireland.info@exertis.com
www.exertis.ie

Exertis Supply Chain Services Limited 
M50 Business Park, 
Ballymount Road Upper, 
Dublin 12, Ireland 

Provision of supply chain management 
and outsourced procurement services

Tel: +353 1 4056 500
Fax: +353 1 4056 555
Email: info@exertissupplychain.com
www.exertissupplychain.com

Exertis Banque Magnetique SAS

99 Avenue de la Pyramide,
95700, Roissy en France, France

Sales, marketing and distribution of 
technology peripherals 
and accessories

Tel: +33 1 49 90 93 93
Fax: +33 1 49 90 94 94
Email: info@exertisbm.fr
www.exertisbanquemagnetique.fr

Exertis Comtrade SAS
300 rue du Président Salvador Allende, 
92700 Colombes, France

Sales, marketing and distribution of 
technology peripherals 
and accessories

Tel: +33 1 56 47 04 70
Fax: +33 1 56 470 471
Email: info@exertiscomtrade.fr
www.exertiscomtrade.fr

Exertis CapTech AB
Ekonomivagen 11
436 33 Askim
Sweden

Sales, marketing and distribution of 
technology products

Tel: +46 31 450400 
Fax: +46 31 450401
Email: info@exertis.se
www.exertis.se
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DCC Healthcare 
Company name & address Principal activity Contact details

DCC Healthcare Limited
DCC House, 
Leopardstown Road, Foxrock, 
Dublin 18
Ireland

Holding and divisional management  
company

Tel: +353 1 2799 400
Fax: +353 1 2831 017
Email: healthcare@dcc.ie
www.dcc.ie

DCC Vital

DCC Vital Limited
Fannin House, 
South County Business Park, 
Leopardstown, Dublin 18, Ireland

Holding company for the operations of 
the DCC Vital group of companies

Tel: +353 1 2907 000
Fax: +353 1 2954 777
Email: info@dccvital.com
www.dccvital.com

Fannin Limited
Fannin House, 
South County Business Park,
Leopardstown, Dublin 18, Ireland

Sales, marketing, distribution and other 
services to healthcare providers and  
medical and pharma brand owners/
manufacturers 

Tel: +353 1 2907 000
Fax: +353 1 2954 777
Email: info@fannin.eu
www.fannin.eu

Fannin (UK) Limited
42-46 Booth Drive, Park Farm South,
Wellingborough, Northamptonshire,
NN8 6GT, England

Sales, marketing, distribution and other 
services to healthcare providers and  
medical and pharma brand owners/
manufacturers

Tel: +44 1530 514 566
Fax: +44 1635 550 050
Email: serviceuk@fannin.eu
www.fannin.eu

Kent Pharmaceuticals Limited
Joshna House,
Crowbridge Road, 
Orbital Park, Ashford,
Kent TN24 0GR, England

Sales marketing and distribution of a 
broad range of pharmaceuticals to hospital 
and community pharmacies in Britain

Tel: +44 845 437 5565
Fax: +44 845 437 5567
Email: info@kentpharm.co.uk
www.kentpharm.co.uk

Athlone Laboratories Limited
Ballymurray, 
Co. Roscommon, Ireland

Manufacture and supply of oral beta  
– lactam antibiotics for the British, Irish 
and international markets

Tel: +353 9066 61109
Fax: +353 9066 61921
www.athlone-laboratories.com

Williams Medical Services Ltd
Craiglas House
The Maerdy Industrial Estate
Rhymney, Gwent, NP22 5PY, Wales

Sales marketing and distribution of a  
broad range of medical supplies and  
services to UK healthcare market, primarily 
GPs and primary care organisations

Tel: +44 (0) 1685 844739
Fax: +44 (0) 1685 844725
Email: sales@wms.co.uk
www.wms.co.uk

Squadron Medical Limited
Greaves Close,

Derbyshire, S44 5FB, England

Provision of value-added distribution  
services to healthcare providers and 
brand owners/manufacturers

Tel: +44 1246 822 822
Fax: +44 1246 820 410
Email: enquiries@squadronmedical.co.uk
www.squadronmedical.co.uk

The TPS Healthcare Group Limited
27-35 Napier Place,
Wardpark, North Cumbernauld,
Glasgow G68 0LL, Scotland

Provision of value-added distribution  
services to healthcare providers and 
brand owners/manufacturers

Tel: +44 1236 739 668
Fax: +44 1236 738 376
Email: corporate@tpshealthcare.com
www.tpshealthcare.com

Health & Beauty Solutions

DCC Health & Beauty Solutions
9-12 Hardwick Road,
Astmoor Industrial Estate, Runcorn,
Cheshire WA7 1PH, England

Outsourced solutions for the health
and beauty industry

Tel: +44 1928 573 734
Fax: +44 1928 580 694
Email: enquiries@dcchealthandbeauty.com
www.dcchealthandbeauty.com

Thompson & Capper Limited
9-12 Hardwick Road,
Astmoor Industrial Estate, Runcorn,
Cheshire WA7 1PH, England

Development, contract manufacture 
and packing of tablet and hard gel 
capsule nutraceuticals

Tel: +44 1928 573 734
Fax: +44 1928 580 694
Email: enquiries@thompsonandcapper.com
www.thompsonandcapper.com
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DCC Healthcare 
Company name & address Principal activity Contact details

EuroCaps Limited
Crown Business Park,
Dukestown, Tredegar,
Gwent NP22 4EF, Wales

Development and contract manufacture 
of soft gel capsule nutraceuticals

Tel: +44 1495 308 900
Fax: +44 1495 308 990
Email: info@eurocaps.co.uk
www.eurocaps.co.uk

Laleham Healthcare Limited
Sycamore Park,
Mill Lane, Alton,
Hampshire GU34 2PR, England

Development, contract manufacture 
and packing of liquids and creams for 
the beauty and consumer healthcare  
sectors

Tel: +44 1420 566 500
Fax: +44 1420 566 566
Email: info@laleham.com
www.laleham.com

Vitamex Manufacturing AB
Box 715,
SE-601 16 Norrköping,
Sweden

Development, contract manufacture 
and packing of tablet and hard gel 
capsule nutraceuticals 

Tel: +46 11 23 00 00
Fax: +46 11 18 79 45
Email: info@vitamex.se
www.vitamex.se

DCC Environmental 
Company name & address Principal activity Contact details

DCC Environmental Limited
DCC House, 
Leopardstown Road, Foxrock, 
Dublin 18
Ireland

Holding and divisional management  
company

Tel: +353 1 2799 400
Fax: +353 1 2831 017
Email: environmental@dcc.ie
www.dcc.ie

William Tracey Limited
49 Burnbrae Road, 
Linwood Industrial Estate, Linwood, 
Renfrewshire, PA3 3BD, Scotland

Recycling and waste management Tel: +44 1505 321 000
Fax: +44 1505 335 555
Email: info@wmtracey.co.uk
www.williamtraceygroup.com

Wastecycle Limited
Enviro Building, Private Road No. 4,
Colwick Industrial Estate,
Nottingham NG4 2JT, England

Recycling and waste management Tel: +44 115 9403 111
Fax: +44 115 940 4141
Email: enquiries@wastecycle.co.uk
www.wastecycle.co.uk

Oakwood Fuels Limited
Brailwood Road,
Bilsthorpe, Newark 
Nottinghamshire, NG22 8UA, England

Specialist waste 
treatment/management services

Tel: +44 1623 871 964
Fax: +44 1623 871 905
Email: mail@oakwoodgroup.uk.com
www.oakwoodfuels.co.uk

Enva Ireland Limited
Clonminam Industrial Estate,
Portlaoise, 
Co. Laois, Ireland

Specialist waste 
treatment/management services

Tel: +353 578 678 600
Fax: +353 578 678 699
Email: info@enva.ie
www.enva.com

Joint Venture 
Company name & address Principal activity Contact details

KSG*
McKee Avenue, 
Finglas,
Dublin 11, Ireland

Restaurant and hospitality service  
provider

Tel: +353 1 814 0600
Fax: +353 1 814 0601
Email: info@ksg.ie
www.ksg.ie

*50% owned joint venture

Group Directory – Principal Subsidiaries  
and Joint Ventures Continued
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Shareholder Information

Share Price Data
2015 

£
2014 

£

Share price at 18 May 43.90
Market capitalisation at 18 May 3,688m 2,604m

Share price at 31 March 40.23
Market capitalisation at 31 March 3,380m 2,734m

41.96
– Low 30.33

Geographic division1
Number of 

shares2 % of shares

UK 26,479,877 31.5
North America 25,870,719 30.8
Europe/Asia 6,502,765 7.7
Ireland 4,591,465 5.5
Retail3 20,573,308 24.5
Total 84,018,134 100.0

Range of shares held
Number of 

accounts
% of 

accounts
Number of 

shares2 % of shares

Over 250,000 65 2.14 64,067,516 76.2
100,001 – 250,000 58 1.91 9,247,693 11.0
10,000 – 100,000 230 7.59 7,780,591 9.3
Less than 10,000 2,679 88.36 2,922,334 3.5
Total 3,032 100.0 84,018,134 100.0

Notes:

2 Excludes 4,211,270 shares held as Treasury Shares

Shareholdings as at 31 March 2015

North America 30.8%

Retail3 24.5%

Ireland 5.5%

Europe/Asia 7.7%

UK 31.5%

By location

Less than 10,000 3.5%

10,000–100,000 9.3%

100,001–250,000 11.0%

Over 250,000 76.2%

By size of holding

Share Listing

Dividends

Shareholders may also elect to receive dividend payments by electronic funds transfer directly into their bank accounts, rather than by 
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CREST

 

Financial Calendar 
Final results announced for 2015

28 May 2015

17 July 2015

17 July 2015

23 July 2015

10 November 2015

Proposed payment date for the interim dividend December 2015

February 2016

Annual General Meeting, Electronic Proxy Voting and CREST Voting

which are set out on the Form of Proxy or in the email broadcast that you would have received if you have elected to receive 

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies via the CREST electronic proxy appointment service should refer to the notes in the 

Electronic Communications

Website

Registrar

Fax: + 353 1 447 5571

Investor Relations

Fax: + 353 1 2831 017

Shareholder Information Continued
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Corporate Information

DCC House
Leopardstown Road
Foxrock
Dublin 18

Auditors 
PricewaterhouseCoopers 
Chartered Accountants 

Dublin 1 

Registrar

Limited
Heron House

Dublin 18

Bankers

Nordea
Rabobank

Solicitors

2 Grand Canal Square
Dublin 2 

Stockbrokers
Davy

Dublin 2

Vintners Place 

London 

London
E14 5JP



196

 

 

 –
 –
 –

non-GAAP measures can have limitations as analytical tools and should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for an analysis  

The principal non-GAAP measures used by the Group are as follows:

EBITDA

Net interest

Adjusted earnings per share

Net capital expenditure
Net capital expenditure comprises purchases of property, plant and equipment, proceeds from the disposal of property, plant and 

Cash conversion ratio

Net cash/debt

Committed acquisition expenditure

Non-GAAP Information
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Group Income Statement
Year ended 31 March

Restated
2011
£’m

Restated
2012
£’m

Restated
2013
£’m

Restated
2014
£’m

2015
£’m

Revenue

Exceptional items

Share of equity accounted investments –

–

 

 

* excludes exceptional items

Group Balance Sheet
As at 31 March

2011
£’m

2012
£’m

2013
£’m

2014
£’m

2015
£’m

Non-current and current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Equity accounted investments

Total assets
 
Equity
Non-current and current liabilities

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Group Cash Flow
Year ended 31 March

2011
£’m

2012
£’m

2013
£’m

2014
£’m

2015
£’m

Capital expenditure
Acquisitions

Other Information 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

 Joint Arrangements

5 Year Review
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Corporate Governance Statement 72
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Health & Safety 63

 

 

Group 16
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DCC Healthcare 47
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Memorandum and Articles of Association 106
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Notes to the Financial Statements 123
 

DCC Environmental 48
DCC Healthcare 40

 

 

Property, Plant and Equipment 153

Provisions 130

 

Related Party Transactions 186
Relations with Shareholders 76
Remuneration Committee 82
Remuneration Policy Report 84
Remuneration Report 82
Report of the Directors 105

Return on Capital Employed 58

Risk Report 10
 

Share Capital 171
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Share Price and Market Capitalisation 61
Statement of Compliance 123
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Talent Development 63

Transparency Rules 106
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Notes





DCC plc, 
DCC House,  
Leopardstown Road,
Foxrock, Dublin 18,  
Ireland

Tel: + 353 1 279 9400 
Fax: + 353 1 283 1017 
Email: info@dcc.ie 

www.dcc.ie
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